VI.
VILI.
VIIL.
. Approval of CCMHB Board Meeting Minutes (pages 21-28)*

Xl.

Xil.

Xill.

CHAMPAIGN COUNTY
DEVELOPMENTAL

c DISABILITIES BOARD
CHAMPAIGN COUNTY

MENTAL HEALTH BOARD

Champaign County Mental Health Board (CCMHB) Meeting Agenda
Wednesday, February 18, 2026, 5:45PM

This meeting will be held in person at the
Shields-Carter Room of the Scott M. Bennett Administrative Center, 102 East Main Street, Urbana, IL 61801
Members of the public may attend in person or watch the meeting live through this link:
https://uso2web.zoom.us/j/81393675682 Meeting ID: 813 9367 5682

. Call to order
Il.
Il.

Roll call

Approval of Agenda*

2026 Meeting Schedules, PY27 Allocation Timeline (pages 3-8) No action needed.
CCMHB Acronyms and Glossary (pages 9-20) No action needed.

Public Participation/Agency Input See below for details. **

Chairperson’s Comments — Molly McLay

Executive Director’s Comments — Lynn Canfield

Action is requested to approve minutes of the CCMHB January 21, 2026 meeting and

January 28, 2026 study session.

Vendor Invoice Lists (pages 29-32)*

Action is requested to accept the “Vendor Invoice Lists” and place them on file.

Old Business

a) Agency Updates
Oral updates will be provided on GCAP’s and Uniting Pride’s progress with PY25
financial reviews. No action is needed.

b)  Agency Request for Special Consideration (pages 33-38)*
A decision memorandum presents context for a request to reopen the application
system. Courage Connection’s request is attached. Action is requested. *

New Business

a) Review of Applications for PY2027 Funding (pages 39-44)
For information only, the packet includes a briefing memorandum on the process
for reviewing funding requests, with a checklist for (optional) use by Board
members. A list of applications is also attached.

Reports

a)  Staff Reports (pages 45-50)
For information only, staff reports are included in the packet.


https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81393675682

XIV.
XV.
XVI.
XVII.
XVIII.
XIX.

b)  Evaluation Capacity Building Project Update
An oral update will be provided. See resources developed by the team
at https://www.familyresiliency.illinois.edu/resources/microlearning-videos.
c) Community Behavioral Health Needs Assessment Activities
An oral update will be provided.
d)  disAbility Resource Expo and AIR Updates
An oral update will be provided. See also https://disabilityresourceexpo.org and
https://champaigncountyair.com/
e)  PY2025 Utilization and Outcome Results (pages 51-74)
For information, a summary of PY25 utilization and outcome results is included.
f) PY2026 Second Quarter Program Activity Reports (pages 75-128)
For information, service activity reports from funded programs are included.
Public Participation/Agency Input See below for details. **
Board to Board Reports (page 129)
County Board Input
Champaign County Developmental Disabilities Board Input
Board Announcements and Input
Adjournment

* Board action is requested.
**public input may be given virtually or in person.

If the time of the meeting is not convenient, you may communicate with the Board by

emailing stephanie@ccmhb.org or leon@ccmhb.org any comments for us to read aloud during the meeting.
The Chair reserves the right to limit individual time to five minutes and total time to twenty minutes.

All feedback is welcome.

The Board does not respond directly but may use input to inform future actions.
Agency representatives and others providing input which might impact Board actions should be aware of the
lllinois Lobbyist Registration Act, 25 ILCS 170/1, and take appropriate steps to be in compliance with the Act.

For accessible documents or assistance with any portion of this packet, please contact us (leon@ccmhb.org).


https://www.familyresiliency.illinois.edu/resources/microlearning-videos
https://disabilityresourceexpo.org/
https://champaigncountyair.com/
javascript:void(0);
mailto:leon@ccmhb.org
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs3.asp?ActID=465
https://www.ilga.gov/Commission/jcar/admincode/JCARTitlePart.asp?Title=002&Part=0560
mailto:leon@ccmhb.org

CHAMPAIGN COUNTY
DEVELOPMENTAL

c DISABILITIES BOARD
CHAMPAIGN COUNTY
MENTAL HEALTH BOARD

CCMHB 2026 Meeting Schedule

5:45PM the Wednesday following the third Monday of each month, plus study sessions and off-cycle meetings
Scott M. Bennett Administrative Center, 102 E. Main, Street Urbana, IL 61801
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81393675682 (if it is an option)

January 21, 2026 — Shields-Carter Room

January 28, 2026 — Study Session - Shields-Carter Room
February 18, 2026 — Shields-Carter Room

March 18, 2026 — Shields-Carter Room

March 25, 2026 — Study Session -Shields-Carter Room
April 22, 2026 —Shields-Carter Room

April 29, 2026 — Study Session -Shields-Carter Room
May 20, 2026 — Shields-Carter Room

May 27, 2026 — Shields-Carter Room (off cycle)

June 24, 2026 — Shields-Carter Room (off cycle)

July 22, 2026 — Shields-Carter Room

August 19, 2026 — Shields-Carter Room - tentative
September 23, 2026 — Shields-Carter Room

September 30, 2026 — Joint Study Session w CCDDB - Shields-Carter
October 21, 2026 — Shields-Carter Room

October 28, 2026— Study Session - Shields-Carter Room
November 18, 2026 — Shields-Carter Room

December 9, 2026 — Shields-Carter Room (off cycle)

This schedule is subject to change due to unforeseen circumstances.
Meeting information is posted, recorded, and archived at http://www.co.champaign.il.us/mhbddb/DDBMeetingDocs.php
Please check the website or email stephanie@ccmhb.org to confirm meeting times and locations.

All meetings and study sessions include time for members of the public to address the Board. All are welcome to attend,
virtually or in person, to observe and to offer thoughts during "Public Participation" or “Public Input.”
An individual’s comments may be limited to five minutes, and total time for input may be limited to twenty minutes. The
Board does not respond directly but may use the content to inform future actions.

If the time of the meeting is not convenient, you may communicate with the Board by emailing stephanie@ccmhb.org or
leon@ccmhb.org any comments for us to read aloud during the meeting.
Agency representatives and others providing input which might impact Board actions should be aware of the Illinois
Lobbyist Registration Act, 25 ILCS 170/1, and take appropriate steps to be in compliance with the Act.

For alternative format documents, language access, or other accommodation or support to participate, contact us in
advance and let us know how we might help by emailing stephanie@ccmhb.org or leon@ccmhb.org.



https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81393675682
http://www.co.champaign.il.us/mhbddb/DDBMeetingDocs.php
javascript:void(0);
mailto:leon@ccmhb.org
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs3.asp?ActID=465
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs3.asp?ActID=465
https://www.ilga.gov/Commission/jcar/admincode/JCARTitlePart.asp?Title=002&Part=0560
javascript:void(0);
mailto:leon@ccmhb.org

CHAMPAIGN COUNTY
DEVELOPMENTAL
c DISABILITIES BOARD
CHAMPAIGN COUNTY
MENTAL HEALTH BOARD

CCDDB 2026 Meeting Schedule

9:00AM the fourth Wednesday of each month
Scott M. Bennett Administrative Center, 102 E. Main, Street Urbana, 11 61801
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81559124557

January 28, 2026 — Shields-Carter Room
February 25, 2026 — Shields-Carter Room

March 25, 2026 — Sheilds-Carter Room

April 22, 2026 — Shields-Carter Room

April 29, 2026 — Shields-Carter Room — fentative
May 27, 2026 — Shields-Carter Room

June 24, 2026 — Shields-Carter Room

July 22, 2026 — Shields-Carter Room

August 26, 2026 — Shields-Carter Room - fentative
September 23, 2026 — Shields-Carter Room
September 30, 2026 5:45 PM — Shields-Carter Room — joint study session with NIHB
October 28, 2026 — Shields-Carter Room
November 25, 2026 — Shields-Carter Room
December 9, 2026 — Shields-Carter Room (off ¢ycle)

This schedule is subject to change due to unforeseen circumstances.
Meeting information is posted, recorded, and archived at
http://www.co.champaign.il.us/mhbddb/DDBMeetingDocs.ph
Please check the website or email stephanie@ccmhb.org to confirm meeting times and locations.

All meetings and study sessions include time for members of the public to address the Board. All are welcome to
attend, virtually or in person, to observe and to offer thoughts during "Public Participation" or “Public Input.”
An individual’s comments may be limited to five minutes, and total time for input may be limited to twenty
minutes. The Board does not respond directly but may use the content to inform future actions.

If the time of the meeting is not convenient, you may communicate with the Board by
emailing stephanie@ccmhb.org or kim@ccmhb.org any comments for us to read aloud during the meeting.

Agency representatives and others providing input which might impact Board actions should be aware of the

Illinois Lobbyist Registration Act, 25 IT.CS 170/1, and take appropriate steps to be in compliance with the Act.

For alternative format documents, language access, or other accommodation or supportt to participate, contact us in

advance and let us know how we might help by emailing stephanie@ccmhb.org or kim@ccmhb.org.



https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81559124557
http://www.co.champaign.il.us/mhbddb/DDBMeetingDocs.php
javascript:void(0);
mailto:kim@ccmhb.org
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs3.asp?ActID=465
https://www.ilga.gov/Commission/jcar/admincode/JCARTitlePart.asp?Title=002&Part=0560
javascript:void(0);
mailto:kim@ccmhb.org

IMPORTANT DATES

2026 Meeting Schedule with Subjects, Agency and Staff Deadlines,

and PY27 Allocation Timeline

The schedule offers dates and subject matter of meetings of the Champaign County
Mental Health Board. Subjects are not exclusive to any given meeting, as other
matters requiring Board review or action may also be addressed. Study sessions may
be scheduled on topics raised at meetings, brought by staff, or in conjunction with
the CCDDB. Included are tentative dates for steps in the funding allocation process
for PY27 and deadlines related to PY25 and PY26 agency contracts. Regular
meetings and study sessions are scheduled to begin at 5:45PM and may be
confirmed with Board staff.

11/28/25

12/17/25

12/19/25

12/31/25

1/21/26

1/28/26

1/28/26

2/2/26

2/18/26

3/18/26

Public Notice of Funding Availability to be published by date,
giving at least 21-day notice of application period.

Regular Board Meeting - fentative
Online System opens for Applications for PY2027 Funding.
Agency PY25 Independent Audits, Reviews, Compilations due.

Regular Board Meeting
Mid-Year Program Presentations

Study Session: Mid-Year Program Presentations
Agency PY26 2" Quarter and CLC progress reports due.

Deadline for submission of applications for PY27 funding
(Online system will not accept any forms after 4:30PM).

Regular Board Meeting
Discuss list of PY27 Applications and Review Process

Regular Board Meeting



3/25/26 Study Session

4/15/26 Program summaries released to Board, posted
online with CCMHB April 22 meeting packet.

4/22/26 Regular Board Meeting

Board Review of Funding Requests
4/29/26 Study Session

Continued Board Review of Funding Requests
4/29/26 Agency PY2026 3™ Quarter Reports due.
5/13/26 Allocation scenarios released to Board, posted

online with CCMHB May 13 study session packet.

5/20/26 Study Session
Discussion of PY2027 Allocations
5/27/26 Regular Board Meeting — off cycle
PY2027 Allocations
6/1/26 For contracts with a PY26-PY27 term, all updated PY27

forms should be completed and submitted by this date.

6/16/26 Deadline for agency application/contract revisions.
Deadline for agency letters of engagement w/ CPA firms.

6/24/26 Regular Board Meeting — off cycle
Election of Officers
6/18/26 PY2027 agency contracts completed.
6/30/26 Agency Independent Audits, Reviews, or Compilations due.
(only applies to those with calendar FY, check contract)
7/22/26 Regular Board Meeting
Draft FY2027 Budgets



8/19/26

8/26/26

9/23/26

9/30/26

10/21/26

10/28/26

10/28/26

11/18/26

11/27/26

12/9/26

12/18/26

12/31/26

Regular Board Meeting — fentative

Agency PY2026 4" Quarter reports, CLC progress
reports, and Annual Performance Outcome Reports due.

Regular Board Meeting
Draft Three Year Plan 2025-27 with 2027 Objectives

Joint Study Session with CCDDB

Regular Board Meeting
Draft Program Year 2028 Allocation Criteria

Study Session

Agency PY2027 First Quarter Reports due.
Regular Board Meeting

Approve Three Year Plan with One Year Objectives
Approve PY28 Allocation Criteria

Public Notice of Funding Availability to be published by
date, giving at least 21-day notice of application period.

Regular Board Meeting — off cycle
Online system opens for applications for PY28 funding.

Agency Independent Audits, Reviews, Compilations due.



(This page is intentionally left blank.)



Champaign County Mental Health Board
(CCMHB) Acronyms and Glossary

Agency and Program Acronyms

AA- Alcoholics Anonymous

AIR — Alliance for Inclusion and Respect (formerly Anti-Stigma Alliance)

BLAST — Bulldogs Learning and Succeeding Together, at Mahomet Area Youth Club
CC — Community Choices or Courage Connection

CCCAC or CAC — (Champaign County) Children’s Advocacy Center

CCCHC - Champaign County Christian Health Center

CCDDB or DDB — Champaign County Developmental Disabilities Board

CCHCC - Champaign County Health Care Consumers

CCHS — Champaign County Head Start, a department of the Champaign County Regional
Planning Commission (also CCHS-EHS, for Head Start-Early Head Start)

CCRPC or RPC — Champaign County Regional Planning Commission

CN - Crisis Nursery

CSCNCC - Community Service Center of Northern Champaign County, also CSC
CU TRI - CU Trauma & Resiliency Initiative

Courage Connection — previously The Center for Women in Transition

DMBGC - Don Moyer Boys & Girls Club

DREAAM - Driven to Reach Excellence and Academic Achievement for Males
DSC - Developmental Services Center

ECHO - a program of Cunningham Children’s Home

ECIRMAC/TRC — East Central Illinois Refugee Mutual Assistance Center/The Refugee Center
ECMHS - Early Childhood Mental Health Services, a program of CCRPC Head Start
FD — Family Development, previously Family Development Center, a DSC program
FF - FirstFollowers

FS - Family Service of Champaign County

FST — Families Stronger Together, a program of Cunningham Children’s Home
GCAP — Greater Community AIDS Project of East Central Illinois

ISCU - Immigrant Services of Champaign-Urbana

MAYC - Mahomet Area Youth Club

NA- Narcotics Anonymous

NAMI — National Alliance on Mental Illness

PATH - regional provider of 211 information/call services

PEARLS - Program to Encourage Active Rewarding Lives

PHC - Promise Healthcare

PSC - Psychological Services Center (UIUC) or Problem Solving Courts (Drug Court)
RAC or ECIRMAC — East Central Illinois Refugee Mutual Assistance Center
RACES — Rape Advocacy, Counseling, and Education Services

RCI — Rosecrance Central Illinois

RPC or CCRPC — Champaign County Regional Planning Commission

UNCC — Urbana Neighborhood Community Connections Center

UP or UP Center — Uniting Pride

UW or UWCC — United Way of Champaign County

WELL — The Well Experience

WIN Recovery — Women in Need Recovery

YAC — Youth Assessment Center, a program of CCRPC

1

9



Other Terms and Acronyms

211 — Information and referral services call service
988 — Suicide and Crisis Lifeline

ABA — Applied Behavioral Analysis - an intensive behavioral intervention targeted to autistic
children and youth and others with associated behaviors.

ACA — Affordable Care Act

ACEs — Adverse Childhood Experiences

ACMHALI - Association of Community Mental Health Authorities of Illinois
ACL - federal Administration for Community Living

ACT- Acceptance Commitment Therapy

ACT — Assertive Community Treatment

ADD/ADHD - Attention Deficit Disorder/Attention Deficit Hyperactivity Disorder
ADL — Activities of Daily Living

ALICE - Asset Limited, Income Constrained, Employed

A/N — Abuse and Neglect

ANSA — Adult Needs and Strengths Assessment

APN — Advance Practice Nurse

ARC — Attachment, Regulation, and Competency

ARCH — Access to Respite Care and Help

ARMS — Automated Records Management System - used by law enforcement

ASAM - American Society of Addiction Medicine - may be referred to in regard to assessment
and criteria for patient placement in level of treatment/care.

ASD — Autism Spectrum Disorder
ASL — American Sign Language

ASQ — Ages and Stages Questionnaire — screening tool used to evaluate a child’s developmental
and social emotional growth.

ASQ-SE — Ages and Stages Questionnaire — Social Emotional screen.

10



ATOD — Alcohol, Tobacco, and Other Drugs
BARJ - Balanced and Restorative Justice approach
BD — Behavior Disorder

BJMHS - Brief Jail Mental Health Screening Tool

CADC — Certified Alcohol and Drug Counselor - provides clinical services, certified by the Illinois
Alcoholism and Other Drug Abuse Professional Certification Association.

CALAN or LAN — Child and Adolescent Local Area Network

CANS — Child and Adolescent Needs and Strengths - a multi-purpose tool to support decision
making, including level of care, service planning, and monitoring of outcomes of services.

C-CARTS — Champaign County Area Rural Transit System
CATS - Child and Adolescent Trauma Screen

CBCL - Child Behavior Checklist

CBT — Cognitive Behavioral Therapy

CC — Champaign County

CCBHC - Certified Community Behavioral Health Clinic
CCBoH — Champaign County Board of Health

CCHVC - Champaign County Home Visiting Consortium

CCMHDDAC or MHDDAC — Champaign County Mental Health and Developmental Disabilities
Agencies Council

CCSO — Champaign County Sheriff's Office

CDC — federal Centers for Disease Control and Prevention

CDS — Community Day Services - day programming for adults with I/DD
CES — Coordinated Entry System

CESSA — Community Emergency Services and Support Act - an Illinois law also referred to as the
Stephon Watts Act, requiring mental health professionals be dispatched to certain crisis response.

C-GAF — Children’s Global Assessment of Functioning

CGAS — Children’s Global Assessment Score

11



CHW — Community Health Worker

CILA — Community Integrated Living Arrangement - Medicaid-waiver funded residential services
for people with I/DD

CIT — Crisis Intervention Team - law enforcement officers trained to respond to calls involving an
individual exhibiting behaviors associated with mental illness or substance use disorder.

CLC — Cultural and Linguistic Competence

CLST — Casey Life Skills Tool

CMS — federal Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services
COC - Continuum of Care Program

CQL — Council on Quality and Leadership

CPTSD or c-PTSD — Complex Post-Traumatic Stress Disorder
CRSS- Certified Recovery Support Specialist

CRT - Co-Responder Team - mobile crisis response intervention coupling a CIT trained law
enforcement officer with a mental health crisis worker. Also CCRT — Crisis Co-Responder Team.

CSEs — Community Service Events, as described in a funded agency’s program plan, may include
public events (including mass media and articles), consultations with community groups and/or
caregivers, classroom presentations, and small group workshops to promote a program or educate
the community. Meetings directly related to planning such events may also be counted here. Actual
direct service to clientele is counted elsewhere

CSPH — Continuum of Service Providers to the Homeless

CSPI — Childhood Severity of Psychiatric Illness. A mental health assessment instrument

CST — Community Support Team

CY — Contract Year, July 1-June 30. Also Program Year (PY), most agencies’ Fiscal Year (FY)
CYFS — Center for Youth and Family Solutions (formerly Catholic Charities)

DASA — Division of Alcoholism and Substance Abuse in the Illinois Department of Human
Services, renamed DSUPR, and later merged with Division of Mental Health and renamed as
Division of Behavioral Health and Recovery.

DBHR - (Illinois) Division of Behavioral Health and Recovery

DBT - Dialectical Behavior Therapy

DCFS — (Illinois) Department of Children and Family Services

12



DECA — Devereux Early Childhood Assessment for Preschoolers
DEI — Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion

Detox — abbreviated reference to detoxification - a general reference to drug and alcohol
detoxification program or services, e.g. Detox Program

DD — Developmental Disability

DDD or IDHS DDD - (Illinois) Department of Human Services - Division of Developmental
Disabilities

DFI — Donated Funds Initiative - source of matching funds for some MHB funded contracts. The
[linois Department of Human Services administers the DFI Program funded with federal Title XX
Social Services Block Grant. The DFI program requires community-based agencies to match the
DFI funding with locally generated funds at 25 percent of the total DFI award.

DHFS — (Illinois) Department of Healthcare and Family Services, previously IDPA (Illinois
Department of Public Aid)

DHS — (Illinois) Department of Human Services

DMH or IDHS DMH - (Illinois) Department of Human Services - Division of Mental Health, now
merged with DSUPR and renamed as Division of Behavioral Health and Recovery.

DOJ — federal Department of Justice
DSM - Diagnostic Statistical Manual
DSP — Direct Support Professional - a certification required for those serving people with I/DD

DT — Developmental Therapy (children), or Developmental Training (adults), now renamed as
Community Day Services

DV — Domestic Violence

EAP — Employee Assistance Program
EBP - Evidence Based Practice

EHR - Electronic Health Record

EI — Early Intervention

EMS — Emergency Medical Services

EPDS — Edinburgh Postnatal Depression Scale — a screening tool used to identify mothers with
newborn children who may be at risk for prenatal depression.

EPSDT - Early Periodic Screening Diagnosis and Treatment - intended to provide comprehensive
and preventative health care services for children under age 21 who are enrolled in Medicaid.

13



ER — Emergency Room

ES — Emergency Shelter

FACES — Family Adaptability and Cohesion Evaluation Scale

FAST — Family Assessment Tool

FFS — Fee for Service - reimbursement or performance-based billings are the basis of payment
FOIA — Freedom of Information Act

FPL — Federal Poverty Level

FQHC — Federally Qualified Health Center

FTE — Full Time Equivalent - aggregated number of employees supported by the program. Can
include employees providing direct services (Direct FTE) to clients and indirect employees such as
supervisors or management (Indirect FTE).

FY — Fiscal Year, which for the County is January 1 through December 31

GAAP - Generally Accepted Accounting Principles

GAF — Global Assessment of Functioning - subjective rating scale used by clinicians to rate a
client’s level of social, occupational and psychological functioning. The scale included in the
DSM-IV has been replaced in the DSM-V by another instrument.

GAGAS - Generally Accepted Government Auditing Standards

GAO - Government Accountability Office

GAIN-Q — Global Appraisal of Individual Needs-Quick - the most basic form of the assessment
tool, taking about 30 minutes to complete and consists of nine items that identify and estimate the
severity of problems of the youth or adult .

GAIN Short Screen - Global Appraisal of Individual Needs - made up of 20 items (four five-item
subscales). The GAIN-SS subscales identify internalizing disorders, externalizing disorders,
substance use disorders, crime/violence.

GSRC — Gender and Sexuality Resource Center

GSA — Gender/Sexuality Alliances

HACC - Housing Authority of Champaign County

HBS — Home Based Support — an Illinois Medicaid-waiver program for people with /DD

HCBS — Home and Community Based Supports - a federal Medicaid program

14



HEARTH Act — Homeless Emergency and Rapid Transition to Housing
HFS or IDHFS — Illinois Department of Healthcare and Family Services
HHS — federal department of Health and Human Services

HIC — Housing Inventory Counts

HIPPA — Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act

HMIS — Homeless Management Information System

HRSA — Health Resources and Services Administration - housed within the federal Department of
Health and Human Resources and responsible for Federally Qualified Health Centers.

HSSC — Homeless Services System Coordination

HUD - Housing and Urban Development

I&R — Information and Referral

ILAPSC — Illinois Association of Problem-Solving Courts

ICADV - Illinois Coalition Against Domestic Violence

ICASA - Illinois Coalition Against Sexual Assault

ICDVP - lllinois Certified Domestic Violence Professional

ICFDD - Intermediate Care Facility for the Developmentally Disabled

ICJIA — Illinois Criminal Justice Authority

ID or I/DD — Intellectual Disability or Intellectual/Developmental Disability

IDHEFS or HFS — Illinois Department of Healthcare and Family Services

IDHS DDD - Illinois Department of Human Services Division of Developmental Disabilities
IDHS DMH or DMH - (Illinois) Department of Human Services - Division of Mental Health
IDOC — Illinois Department of Corrections

IECAM - Illinois Early Childhood Asset Map

IEP — Individualized Education Plan

I/ECMHC - Infant/Early Childhood Mental Health Consultation

IGA — Intergovernmental Agreement

15



IM+CANS - Illinois Medicaid Comprehensive Assessment of Needs and Strengths
IOP — Intensive Outpatient Treatment
IPLAN - Illinois Project for Local Assessment of Needs - a community health assessment and
planning process that is conducted every five years by local health jurisdictions in Illinois. Based
on the Assessment Protocol for Excellence in Public Health (APEX-PH) model, IPLAN is
grounded in the core functions of public health and addresses public health practice standards. The
completion of IPLAN fulfills most of the requirements for Local Health Department certification
under Illinois Administrative Code Section 600.400: Certified Local Health Department Code
Public Health Practice Standards. The essential elements of IPLAN are:

1. an organizational capacity assessment;

2. acommunity health needs assessment; and

3. acommunity health plan, focusing on a minimum of three priority health problems.
ISBE — Illinois State Board of Education
ISC — Independent Service Coordination
ISP — Individual Service Plan
ISSA — Independent Service & Support Advocacy
JDC — Juvenile Detention Center
JJ — Juvenile Justice
JJPD — Juvenile Justice Post Detention
LAN — Local Area Network
LCPC - Licensed Clinical Professional Counselor
LCSW - Licensed Clinical Social Worker
LGTBQIA + — Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender, Queer, Questioning, Intersex, Asexual, Ally
LIHEAP — Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program
LPC — Licensed Professional Counselor
LSA — Life Skills Assessment
MAP — Matching to Appropriate Placement - a tool focused on those seeking stable housing
MAR/MAT — Medication Assisted Recovery/Medication Assisted Treatment
MBSR — Mindfulness-Based Stress Reduction

MCO — Managed Care Organization - entity under contract with the state to manage healthcare
services for persons enrolled in Medicaid.

16



MCR —Mobile Crisis Response - previously SASS, a state program that provides crisis intervention
for children and youth on Medicaid.

MDT — Multi-Disciplinary Team

MH — Mental Health

MHFA — Mental Health First Aid

MHDDAC or CCMHDDAC — Mental Health and Developmental Disabilities Agencies Council

MHP — Mental Health Professional - Rule 132 term, typically referring to a bachelor’s level staff
providing services under the supervision of a QMHP.

MI — Mental Illness or Mental Impairment

MI — Motivational Interview

MIDD — A dual diagnosis of Mental Illness and Developmental Disability
MISA — A dual diagnosis condition of Mental Illness and Substance Abuse
MOU — Memorandum of Understanding

MRT — Moral Reconation Therapy

NACBHDD - National Association of County Behavioral Health and Developmental Disability
Directors

NACO — National Association of Counties

NADCP — National Association of Drug Court Professionals

NMT — Neurodevelopmental Model of Therapeutics

NOFA — Notice of Funding Availability

NOFO — Notice of Funding Opportunity

NOMS — National Outcome Measures (used by SAMHSA)

NTPC — NON-Treatment Plan Clients, described in program plans, may be recipients of material
assistance, non-responsive outreach cases, cases closed before a plan was written because the client
did not want further service beyond first few contacts or cases assessed for another agency.
Continuing NTPCs are those who were served before the first day of July and received services
within the first quarter. New NTPCs are those new in a given quarter.

OCD - Obsessive-Compulsive Disorder

ODD - Oppositional Defiant Disorder

17



OMA - Open Meetings Act

OP — Outpatient (treatment)

OUD/SUD - Opioid Use Disorder/Substance Use Disorder
PAS — Pre-Admission Screening

PCI — Parent Child Interaction groups

PCP — Person Centered Planning

PFS - Protective Factors Survey

PIT- Point in Time count - a count of sheltered and unsheltered homeless persons carried out on
one night in the last 10 calendar days of January or at such other time as required by HUD.

PLAY - Play and Language for Autistic Youngsters - an early intervention approach that teaches
parents ways to interact with their child who has autism that promotes developmental progress.

PLL — Parenting with Love and Limits —an evidence-based group/family therapy for youth/families
involved in juvenile justice system.

PLWHA - People living with HIV/AIDS
PPSP — Parent Peer Support Partner
PSH — Permanent Supportive Housing
PSR — Patient Service Representative
PTSD — Post-Traumatic Stress Disorder

PUNS - Prioritization of Urgency of Need for Services - IDHS-DDD database to assist with
planning and prioritization of services for individuals with disabilities based on level of need.

PWD - People with Disabilities
PWI — Personal Well-being Index
PY — Program Year, July 1 to June 30. Also Contract Year (CY), often agency Fiscal Year (FY).

QCPS — Quarter Cent for Public Safety - the funding source for the Juvenile Justice Post Detention
programming. Also referred to as Quarter Cent.

QIDP — Qualified Intellectual Disabilities Professional

QMHP — Qualified Mental Health Professional - a licensed Master’s level clinician with field experience.

REBT - Rational Emotive Behavior Therapy

10

18



RFI — Request for Information

RFP — Request for Proposals

RTC — Residential Treatment Center

SA — Sexual Assault. Also Substance Abuse

SACIS — Sexual Assault Counseling and Information Service
SAD — Seasonal Affective Disorder

SAMHSA — Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration - a division of the federal
Department of Health and Human Services.

SASS — Screening Assessment and Support Services - a state program that provides crisis intervention for
children and youth on Medicaid.

SBIRT — Screening, Brief Intervention, Referral to Treatment - a comprehensive, integrated, public health
approach to the delivery of early intervention and treatment services for persons with substance use

disorders, as well as those who are at risk of developing these disorders.

SCs — Service Contacts/Screening Contacts - an agency’s phone and face-to-face contacts, information and
referral contacts, initial screenings/assessments, crisis services, or similar.

SDOH - Social Determinants of Health

SDQ — Strengths and Difficulties Questionnaire

SDS — Service Documentation System

Seeking Safety — present-focused treatment for clients with history of trauma and substance use
SED — Serious Emotional Disturbance

SEDS — Social Emotional Development Specialist

SEL — Social Emotional Learning

SIM — Sequential Intercept Mapping - a model developed by SAMHSA

SMI — Serious Mental Illness

SNAP — Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program

SOAR — SSI/SSDI Outreach, Access, and Recovery - assistance with applications for Social Security
Disability and Supplemental Income, provided to homeless population.

SOFFT — “Saving Our Families Together Today,” merged with the LAN (Local Area Network)
SSI — Supplemental Security Income - a program of Social Security
SSDI — Social Security Disability Insurance - a program of Social Security

SSPC — Social Skills and Prevention Coaches

11

19



SUD — Substance Use Disorder (replaces SA — Substance Abuse)

SUPR or IDSUPR — (Illinois Division of) Substance Use Prevention & Recovery

TANF — Temporary Assistance for Needy Families

TBRA — Tenant-Based Rental Assistance

TF-CBT — Trauma-Focused Cognitive Behavioral Therapy

TH — Transitional Housing

TPCs — Treatment Plan Clients, service participants with case records and treatment plans. Continuing
TPCs are those who were served during the prior program year and then received services within the first
quarter of the current program year. New TPCs have treatment plans written in a given quarter. Each TPC
is reported only once during a program year.

TPITOS - The Pyramid Infant-Toddler Observation Scale - used by Champaign County Head Start
TPOT - Teaching Pyramid Observation Tool - used by Champaign County Head Start

TCU DS - Texas University Drug Screening tool

VAWA - Violence Against Women Act

VOCA - Victims of Crime Act

WHODAS — World Health Organization Disability Assessment Schedule - assessment instrument for
health and disability, used across all diseases, including mental and addictive disorders

WIOA — Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act

WIC — Women, Infants, and Children - a food assistance program for pregnant women, new mothers and
young children eat well and stay healthy.

WRAP — Wellness Recovery Action Plan - a manualized group intervention for adults that guides
participants through identifying and understanding their personal wellness resources and helps them

develop an individualized plan to use these resources daily to manage their mental illness.

YASI — Youth Assessment and Screening Instrument - assesses risks, needs, and protective factors in
youth, used in Champaign County by Youth Assessment Center and Juvenile Detention Center.

12

20



CHAMPAIGN COUNTY
MENTAL HEALTH BOARD
REGULAR MEETING

Minutes—January 21, 2026
This meeting was held
at the Scott M. Bennett Administrative Center, Urbana, IL
and with remote access.
5:45 p.m.

MEMBERS PRESENT:  Alejandro Gomez, Molly McLay, Tony Nichols, Elaine Palencia,
Chris Miner, Emily Rodriguez, Jane Sprandel, Jon Paul Youakim

MEMBERS EXCUSED: Kyle Patterson

STAFF PRESENT: Kim Bowdry, Leon Bryson, Lynn Canfield, Stephanie Howard-
Gallo, Shandra Summerville

OTHERS PRESENT: Jacinda Dariotis, UIUC; Brenda Eakins, GROW in Illinois; Cindy
Crawford, Community Services Center of Northern Champaign
County (CSCNCC); Jessie Heckenmueller, Champaign County
Regional Planning Commission (CCRPC); Jessica Smith, DSC;
Josh Gavel, Uniting Pride

CALL TO ORDER:

CCMHB President McLay called the meeting to order at 5:50 p.m.
ROLL CALL:

Roll call was taken, and a quorum was present.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA:

The agenda was approved.

CCDDB and CCMHB SCHEDULES:

Updated copies of CCDDB and CCMHB meeting schedules and CCMHB allocation timeline were
included in the packet.

21



MOTION: Chair McLay moved to approve the CCMHB schedule as
presented in the Board packet. Mr. Nichols seconded. A voice vote was
taken and the motion passed.

ACRONYMS and GLOSSARY:

A list of commonly used acronyms was included for information.

CITIZEN INPUT / PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:

None.

PRESIDENT’S COMMENTS:

CCMHB Chair Molly McLay reviewed agenda items.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S COMMENTS:

Ms. Canfield announced Ms. Summerville has a 10-year anniversary with Champaign County.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

Minutes from the November 19, 2025 CCMHB meeting were included in the board packet for
review.

MOTION: Ms. Rodriguez moved to approve the minutes of the
CCMHB’s meeting November 19, 2025. Mr. Nichols seconded the
motion. A voice vote was taken and the motion passed unanimously.

APPROVAL OF VENDOR INVOICE LISTS:
The Vendor Invoice List was included in the packet.

MOTION: Chair McLay moved to accept the Vendor Invoice Lists as
presented in the Board packet. Ms. Rodriguez seconded. A voice vote
was taken and the motion passed.

OLD BUSINESS:

Delayed Audits and Reviews:

A Decision Memorandum presented detailed background information as context for possible
actions to be taken by the CCMHB in relation to late audits and financial reviews. Agency

requests from Greater Community Aids Project (GCAP) and Uniting in Pride were attached.

After the 12/30/25 deadline, staff notified six agencies that payments would be paused. Champaign
County Christian Health Center (CCCHC) replied that their audit was completed before Christmas.

22



It was then sent to us January 7 and is to be approved by their board January 24. ECIRMAC/The
Refugee Center did not reply. FirstFollowers indicated they “are still working through the audit,
and I believe we are in a better position to complete it sooner in comparison to the previous years.”
Women in Need (WIN) Recovery did not reply.

Board members discussed the history of late audits as well as the option of reviewing each agency
individually based on their communications with the CCMHB.

MOTION: Ms. McLay moved to waive suspension of payments on
GCAP’s Program Year 2026 contract due to late financial review and
to authorize CCMHB staff to release January and February
payments as scheduled, with a request the agency provide a verbal
update on their financial review at the February CCMHB meeting.
Dr. Youakim seconded the motion. A roll call vote was taken. Miner
voted nay. All other members voted aye. The motion passed.

MOTION: moved to waive suspension of payments on Uniting Pride’s
Program Year 2026 contract due to late financial review and to
authorize CCMHB staff to release January and February payments
as scheduled, with a request the agency provide a verbal update on
their financial review at the February CCMHB meeting. Ms.
Rodriguez seconded the motion. A roll call vote was taken. Miner
voted nay. All other members voted aye. The motion passed.

NEW BUSINESS:

Expo Activities for 2026:

A Decision Memorandum presented an update. Director Canfield reviewed the challenges of
having an Expo this year because of various issues including the recent resignation of the Expo
coordinators.

MOTION: Chair McLay moved to direct CCDDB-CCMHB staff to
form an Advisory Committee to plan and carry out Disability
Resource Expo activities, which may include an in-person event and
to authorize the Executive Director to pay for related services and
products using approved budgeted funds. Ms. Palencia seconded. A
roll call vote was taken and the motion passed unanimously.

AIR Activities for 2026:
A Decision Memorandum presented an update. Ebertfest organizers have a final 2-day festival
planned for April 2026.

MOTION: Ms. McLay moved to approve up to $15,000 to sponsor

an anti-stigma film in Roger Ebert’s Film Festival 2026 and to
authorize the Executive Director and staff to issue payment. Mr.

23



Nichols seconded the motion. A roll call vote was taken and the
motion was unanimously approved.

REPORTS:

Staff Reports
Staff reports were included in the packet.

Evaluation Capacity Building Project Update
An oral update from Jacinda Dariotis was provided. See resources developed by the team at
https://www.familyresiliency.illinois.edu/resources/microlearning-videos

Community Behavioral Health Needs Assessment Activities:
The Community Health Improvement Plan was included in the packet.

Comparison of PY2025 Agency Revenues:
A report on revenue sources for funded agencies was included in the Board packet.

disAbility Resource Expo Update:
See also https://disabilityresourceexpo.org

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION AND AGENCY INPUT:

Jessica Smith from DSC introduced herself and provided an update on the Family Development
program.

BOARD TO BOARD REPORTS:

Ms. Palencia updated the Board on Champaign County Community Coalition activities. Ms.
Sprandel reported on a project at Community Choices.

COUNTY BOARD INPUT:

Ms. Rodriguez stated the County Board is considering re-starting the Re-entry Council.
CCDDB INPUT:

The CCDDB will meet next week.

BOARD ANNOUNCEMENTS AND INPUT:

None.

ADJOURNMENT:

The meeting adjourned at 7:18 p.m.

24


https://www.familyresiliency.illinois.edu/resources/microlearning-videos
https://disabilityresourceexpo.org/

Respectfully
Submitted by: Stephanie Howard-Gallo
CCMHB/CCDDB Operations and Compliance Coordinator

*Minutes are in draft form and subject to CCMHB approval.

25



(This page is intentionally left blank.)

26



CHAMPAIGN COUNTY
MENTAL HEALTH BOARD
STUDY SESSION

Minutes—January 28, 2026
This meeting was held

at the Scott M. Bennett Administrative Center, Urbana, IL and remotely.

5:45 p.m.

MEMBERS PRESENT:  Molly McLay, Elaine Palencia, Jane Sprandel

MEMBERS EXCUSED: Alejandro Gomez, Chris Miner, Tony Nichols, Kyle Patterson,
Emily Rodriguez, Jon Paul Youakim

STAFF PRESENT: Kim Bowdry, Leon Bryson, Lynn Canfield, Shandra Summerville,
Stephanie Howard-Gallo

OTHERS PRESENT: Brenda Eakins, GROW; Jessica Heckenmueller, CCRPC: Tracy
Parsons, City of Champaign; Amy Brown, Don Moyer Boys and
Girls Club (DMBGC); Joy Jones, Family Service (FS)

CALL TO ORDER:

CCMHB President McLay called the study session to order at 5:53 p.m.

ROLL CALL:

Roll call was taken. A quorum was not present.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA:

The agenda was in the packet. It was not approved due to the lack of a quorum.

CITIZEN INPUT / PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:

None.

PRESIDENT’S COMMENTS:

Ms. McLay introduced herself and thanked everyone for attending.

27



ASSOCIATE DIRECTOR’S COMMENTS:
Mr. Leon Bryson introduced the topics and speakers.
Mid-Year Progress Report:
Joy Jones, Director of Counseling at Family Service of Champaign County offered
a progress report on the expanded Counseling program. Materials supporting the
presentation were included in the packet.
Program Year 2025 Report:
Tracy Parsons, City of Champaign, and Amy Brown, Don Moyer Boys and Girls
Club, reported on the 2025 Community Coalition Summer Youth Initiatives.
Materials supporting the presentation were included in the packet.
Board members were given an opportunity to ask questions following each presentation.
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION AND AGENCY INPUT:
None.
BOARD ANNOUNCEMENTS AND INPUT:
None.
ADJOURNMENT:
The meeting adjourned at 7:10 p.m.
Respectfully
Submitted by:  Stephanie Howard-Gallo
CCMHB/CCDDB Operations and Compliance Coordinator

*Minutes are in draft form and subject to CCMHB approval.

28



9JUe]SISSY WJo |

Hoys 34171 Auunwwo) 680-521Saal 9¢€’6TS V9¢60T0 9¢0¢/T/T| 680-STISAAI 9T, uer| ¥YIYNSYIYL ALNNOD NOIVAINVHD T
uoipduasaqg aolonuy| 19N a210nU| uny y23yn|  21bQg 3o10nuj aa10nU| awpp Jopuap|  saquiny
10pU3A

970z Aenuer = HINOIN SaAairentu] |epads aal = ANNd 11 “Aauno) usiedwey)

1S17 3I310ANI HOAN3A

29



0] 498u0J1S sal|lwes 90-SZAHIN| 00°'TTS'EC  $ |V9Z60TO 970¢/T/1T 9€0-STaHN 9z,uer| JNOH SNIYATIHD INVHONINNND|  SOE8T
dw3 pue 3uisnoH OHDJ3 8TO-SZAHIN| 00°S£6'9T S [V¥9260TO 920¢/1/1 8T0-STEHIN 9z, uer| JINOH SNIYATIHD WVHONINNND|  SOEST
Siedwey) anjg puoAag 500-9Z9HIN| 00°00S°Z  $ |V9Z60TO 920¢/1/1 S00-9ZGHIN 9¢,uef AYISYNN SISIYD|  €9T0T

uo1323uU0) 38e4N0) L00-SZAHIN| 00°699°0T  $ [V9Z60T0 920¢/1/1 L00-STAHIN 9z, uer NOILDINNOD 39VdN0D| 26081

uoI329UU0) 324n0saY 800-9ZAHIN| 00'888°S S |V9Z60TO 920¢/1/1 800-9Z4HIA 9Z,uerN 40 ¥3LN3ID IDIAYIS ALINNININOD|  8¥TOT

MH)D PaAJOAU| 213N SH0-9ZAHIN| 00°£09°8  $ |V9Z60TO 970Z/T/1T G¥0-9ZGHIN 9Z,Uerjuvd HLTVIH ALNNOD NOIVAWVHD| 65281

1nealjddy Aujiqesiq 990-S2gHIN| 00°0S48  $ [v92Z60T0 920¢/1/1 990-SZAHIA 9Z,Uerjdvd HL1VIH ALNNOD NOIVAIAVHD|  6528T

Jauag @ Yoeasino MHD ¥70-9ZaHIN| 00'¥60'8 S [V9Z60TO 970Z/T/1T tv0-9CZaHIN 9Z,Uerjdvd HL1VIH ALNNOD NOIVAIAVHD|  6528T

GT/S/TT - ST/9/11 @dueualule|y Jaido)| 96°GT S |vazeot0 Szoz/Le/an GTAd OTYSVLTIANI SW3LSAS 301440 SAD|  0L66T

$321A43S AJY3uo 11 6Z,92a| 00°068 S |v9ze010 970¢/T/T SZA4 TOO-GHIN| ¥Y3¥NSYIYL ALNNOD NOIVAINVHD T

€50 1udYy AdIYO 9z,uer| 89°99Z°c  $ [v9z60T0 970¢/T/1T JU3Y 2140 9z, uer| YIYNSYIYL ALNNOD NOIVAINVHD T

U3) JUBWISSISSY YINOA SZ0-9ZaHIN| 00'79€‘9  § [v9Z60TO 970¢/T/T SZ0-9ZAHIN 9Z,uer| YIUNSYIYL ALNNOD NOIVAINVHD T

AS s921M9G sS9|9WOH #00-SZaHN| 00°€2S‘y S |V9Z60TO 970¢/T/1T #00-STGHIN 9z,uer| ¥Y34NSYIYL ALNNOD NOIVAINVHD T

BN pooyp|iyd AlJe3 9z0-SZaHIN| 00°'TLECE  $ [v9T60TO 920¢/1/1 970-STGHN 9z,uer| ¥Y34NSYIYL ALNNOD NOIVAINVHD T

1y2 Ayuno) usdiedweyd 900-9Z9HIN| 00°SZE'S S |V9Z60TO 920¢/1/1 900-9ZgHIN 9z,uer| ¥Y34NSYIYL ALNNOD NOIVAINVHD T

wasgeue|\ ase) 493|dYS TZ0-SZaHIN| 00'T6ETC  $ [V9Z60TO 920¢/1/1 TZ0-SZEHN 9¢,uef JNOH 1V N-D|  S088T
JOjeulpJoo)

Jiy/odx3 Auijiqesia 9z0Z 9%0-9Z9HIN TO| 00°005C  $ [v9Z0ETO szoez/Le/an 9¥0-9¢aHN TO ¥INSSIYE T vivadval €00t

uoi1diiasaqg aslonu| 19N aalonujf uny y2ayn| aipbg aalonu| aolonuy Wb J0puap| 4aquiny

JOPUIA

920z Adenuer = HINOIN pJeog yijeaH [eauslAl = aNNd 11 “Asuno) usiedwey)

1S17 3I310ANI HOAN3A

30



desay] ewnes] |eENXdS GEO-9ZEHIN| 00°0SE9T  $ [v9Z60TO S20Z/T/T1 GE0-9ZEHIN SZAON 8 ONITISNNOD ‘ADVIOAQY ‘Idvd| #9101
8TS/L6T8 #390V| TT'88T $ |v9z0€T0 9z0z/€2/1 Y€09TSLY NOILYYOdY40D 1IND|  €S+0T
ssau||9M T0-9¢9HIN| 00°9T¥0T  $ [v9Z60T0 9z07/1/1 T¥0-9ZaHIN 9¢,uer JYVOHLIVIH 3ISINOYd|  E€TH8T
JINISS Y3{eSH |BIUBIN ET0-9ZEHIN| 00°000°0€  $ |[V9Z60TO 9z07/1/1 €T0-9Z4HIN 9z,uer JUVOHLIVIH 3SINOYd|  E€TFST
diyssaquiain Auoyiny 9z0z| 00°006 $ |v9zatto 920¢/7/1 T¥Z000ANI AaHgOVN|  8866T

9|01 UgIsse
JUN0dd. 33B3UD - FOTSSGH 111 3IMSS| 05°L9 $ |v9zosto 9z0Z/v1/T TT8TTL-TO| ONISIIDOTONHIIL IDI440 SON|  8¥€0T
0IAIDS || paBeue|N §aA/aHIN 9z,uer| 00°Z9T $ |v9zatto 9z0Z/1/1 TOLZTL-TO| ONISIIDOTONHIIL 301440 SON|  8¥€0T
ST/TE/TT €€79 LO00 6426 S8 # 1V| 86°608 $ V976010 szoe/te/et ST/1€/TT €€29 YNVE 3SYHD NVOYOW dr| 04502
B3H [BIUSIA JuBJSIWW| 0TO-9ZFHIN| 00'8899T  $ |V9Z9TTO 9z07/1/1 0TO0-9Z9HIN 9Z,Uel[vdINVHD 40 SIDINYIS INVUOININI[  S8.6T
GZ/81/0T odx3 Ajiqesid 1SV 4H §'S| 0079 $ |v9zosto §20¢/81/01 Gz/81/0T odx3 HLIYATIH 31YYIHS|  SLP6T
Hoddns 493d TT0-SZGHN| 00°0VT'ET  $ |V9Z60T0 9z07/1/1 TTO-SZAHIN 9, uer SIONITI NI MOYD|  Z¥20T
ue Sulasuno) Jo1uds /TO-9ZAHIN| 00°€98°LT S |V9Z60T0 9z0¢/1/1 LTO-9CEHIN 9Z,uerpd NOIVAINVHD 40 IDIAYIS ANNVH|  €VEST
193ua) d|aH-§|3S 9T0-9ZaHIN| 00°Z8TE  $ (V96010 9z0¢/1/1 9T0-9Z4HIA 9Z,Uerpd NOIVAINVHD 40 IDIAYIS ATINVH|  EVEST
8uljasuno) ¥T0-9Z4HN| 00°S86°TT  $ [V9Z60T0 9z07/1/1 ¥T0-9ZAHIN 9Z,Uerpd NOIVAINVHD 40 IDIAYIS ATINVH|  EvEST
GZ/TE/TT - S¢/1/TT 807 [9nedL| 05°0T $ |v9zosto §20T/1€/CT  fT/1€/TT Oj|leDpiemoH YOAN3A 33A01dINT 00T
GZ/TE/TTI-ST/T/TT 807 |9AeIL| 90°ST S [v9z9tTO Sz0z/62/T1 GzZ/1€/TT Mpmog YOAN3IA JIA0TdINT 00T
8€0-9ZGHIN S|eMaudy [enuuy| S6°€0Z‘T  $ [v9Z60T0 szoez/6/Tt 0LST-¥8L T139dINVD 4 YIANVYXITVY|  €8T0T
8€0-9Z4HIN 0ddns TD| S6'v2s‘c S [v9z6010 sz0e/6/Tt 69S7-€8L T139dIAVD 4 ¥3ANVXITVY|  €8TOT
a3ueyd ND STO-SZAHN| 00'TET'L  $ |V9Z60TO 9z07/1/1 GTO-SZEHN 9z, uef[ anTd S1YID '8 SAOE YIAOW NOdA|  SZTOT
juawdolanaq Ajiweq ZT0-9ZaHIN| 00°005'8S S [V9Z60TO 9z0¢/1/1 TT0-9ZAHIN 92,UerjaLNID SIDIAYIS TVININAOTIAIA[  0LTOT

31



3D Apnis Anunwwiod ¥z0-929HIN| 00°'8¥8°TE  $ |V9Z60TO 970¢/1/1 ¥¢0-9C¢9HIN 9¢,Ue[DINNOI AOOHYOGHOIIN VNVEUN 66507
Alie3 n-D zv0-SZEHN| 009249 S |V9Z60T0 970¢/1/1 C0-STHIN 9¢,uer NOILVONd3 1TNAV VNVadN £6S0T

|eA3 AduaBy Bulp|ing 6€0-€Z8HIN| 9T'ZST'TT  $ |V9Z60T0 970¢/T/1 LECTTT pIEMY 9, Ul SIONIT1I 40 ALISYIAINN €890T
SOAS |eJJajay 7@ Uollewlolu] T-T- 9ZA4| 00°000°C S [V9ZOETO S70e/Sst/L T-T-C 9CAdN0OD NOIVAINVHI 40 AVM d3LINN 08907
a8eusis o1se|d| 00°0T S [v9zatto 970¢/L/T LTYOVT "ONI ‘JNILAHdOYL €940T

SWoH AJanoday €20-SZaHIN| 00°€EE8 S |V9Z60TO 970¢/1/1 €C0-SCAHIN 9¢,uer "ONI ‘IONVYYI3SOY 88707

1 9suodsay-0) sisl) 0€0-SZEHIN| 00°000°0Z  $ (V926010 970Z/1/1 0€0-SCIHIN 9¢,uer "ONI ‘IONVYI3SOY 88707
a8eue|A ase) s3yauag 6T0-SZHIN| 00'2S0°L S (V96010 970¢/1/1 6TO-SCAHIN 9¢,uer "DNI ‘IONVYI3SON 88707
A3.d 3IUB|OIA [BNXS Z00-9C¢AHIN| 006006 S |V9Z60TO 970¢/1/1 T00-9Z9HIN 9Z,Uerfi '8 ONITISNNOD ‘ADVI0AQY ‘IdVY 79v0T
deJay] ewned] [enxaS GEO-9ZFHIN| 00°0SE9T  $ (V926010 970¢/1/1 GE0-9ZFHIN 9Z,Uerfi '8 ONITISNNOD ‘ADVI0AQY ‘IdVY ¥9v0T
A3.d 3IUB|OIA [BNXS Z00-9C¢AHIN| 006006 S |V9Z60TO szoz/t/Tn T00-9Z9HIN §Z,22df '8 ONITISNNOD ‘ADVI0AQY ‘IdVY ¥9v0T
desay] ewned] [enxaS GEO-9ZFHIN| 00°0SE9T  $ (V926010 szoz/t/Tn SE0-9ZFHIN §T,22df '8 ONITISNNOD ‘ADVI0AQY ‘IdVY 79v0T
A3.d 3IUB|OIA [BNXDS Z00-9¢AHIN| 006006 S |V9Z60TO ST0T/T/11 T00-9Z9HIN ST,AONfi '8 ONITISNNOD ‘ADVI0AQY ‘IdVY ¥9v0T

32



CHAMPAIGN COUNTY
DEVELOPMENTAL

c DISABILITIES BOARD
CHAMPAIGN COUNTY

MENTAL HEALTH BOARD

DECISION MEMORANDUM

DATE: February 18, 2026

TO: Members, Champaign County Mental Health Board (CCMHB)
FROM: Lynn Canfield, Executive Director

SUBJECT:  Agency Request for Board Consideration

Purpose:

This memorandum offers a framework for Board consideration of agency
request(s), to support deliberations and save time on questions of process
and policy. The Board may request additional information to be answered
through Board staff review of records or by the agency directly. Thorough
response to Board questions also depends on the timing of the request.

e Two sections, Background on Requirements and Previous
Requests and Board Actions, will be familiar to many Board
members and are offered for their reference and transparency.

e The Agency Update section is supported by the attached agency
request for more time to complete a PY27 funding application.

e Afinal section offers Possible Actions in response to that request.

Background on Requirements:

The Board exercises its responsibilities and authorities as described in the
Community Mental Health Act, 405 ILCS 20/0.1-13, which incorporates
lllinois Department of Human Services Administrative Rules and the lllinois
Administrative Procedure Act. Section 5-30 of the latter details “Regulatory
Flexibility” through which rules may be established or amended to reduce

33


https://www.ilga.gov/Legislation/ILCS/Articles?ActID=1499&ChapterID=34
https://www.ilga.gov/Legislation/ILCS/Articles?ActID=1499&ChapterID=34
https://www.dhs.state.il.us/page.aspx?item=22450
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ILCS/details?MajorTopic=&Chapter=&ActName=Illinois%20Administrative%20Procedure%20Act.&ActID=83&ChapterID=2&SeqStart=&&ChapAct=FullText
https://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ILCS/details?MajorTopic=&Chapter=&ActName=Illinois%20Administrative%20Procedure%20Act.&ActID=83&ChapterID=2&SeqStart=&&ChapAct=FullText

the burden on small businesses or non-profit organizations. Case-by-case
consideration may be appropriate for some decisions.

CCMHB staff take steps to protect this public trust fund and ensure access
to information so that the procurement process is as fair as possible. Many
of these steps were in response to Board members’ suggestions:

e An allocation process timeline is developed several months in
advance of the Notification of Funding Availability and the open
period for organizations to submit funding requests. This is made
public by posting on the application website (as “Important Dates”)
and including it in the packets for each regular Board meeting.

e For the PY2027 allocation cycle, the application period dates and
times were listed in the timeline document, and a NOFA was
published in the required newspaper, on the County website, and on
the application site three weeks in advance of the application period.

e Areminder of the deadline time and date is included at the top of
online system application forms.

e Due to requests made by Board members over a decade ago, the
annual Priorities documents and NOFAs include statements that late
applications will not be considered.

The last item means that CCMHB staff do not have the authority to extend
the application open period, regardless of the reason. As a result, requests
for extra time must be brought to the Board for consideration.

Previous Requests and Board Actions:

A recording of the Board’s March 17, 2021 meeting is linked here
(https://www.youtube.com/@champaigncountymhbandddb).
FirstFollowers had missed the deadline due to miscommunication. Since
many systems were managing pressures related to the global pandemic,
the Board opted to offer a second open application period, with the
following action:

MOTION: Ms. Sprandel moved to open the CCMHB funding

application process 21 days from when a Notice of Funding

34


https://www.youtube.com/@champaigncountymhbandddb
https://www.youtube.com/@champaigncountymhbandddb

Availability (NOFA) can be posted, for any public agency to apply, for
a 7 day period. Ms. Palencia seconded the motion. A roll call vote
was taken and the motion passed unanimously.

At the April 20, 2022 CCMHB meeting, linked here
(https://www.youtube.com/@champaigncountymhbandddb), the Board
considered a request from an agency which had completed all of the
required application forms but not submitted them by the deadline. They
explained that the people working on the application were new to the
process and had misunderstood the CCMHB staff role, asking us to review
forms prior to submission. In this case the Board response was:
MOTION: Ms. Palencia moved to permit Promise Healthcare to
submit the application forms they had prepared, without further
revisions, for review and consideration at a future CCMHB meeting.
Dr. Youakim seconded the motion. All members voted aye and the
motion passed.

On February 22, 2023, the Board considered requests, for additional
application time, from Champaign County Christian Health Center, Don
Moyer Boys & Girls Club, Family Service, and Mahomet Area Youth Club.
Each agency explained the barriers they had experienced with the
application process and timeline, and while each was unique, all were
experiencing transitions in leadership and staffing. Minutes are linked here
(https://champaigncountyil.eov/mhbddb/agendas/mhb/2023/230222 Mee
ting/230222 Minutes.pdf).

The matter was described as follows:
There was a board discussion regarding opening up the application
period briefly to the public for a second time. A draft of a second
Notification of Funding Availability (NOFA) was presented to the
Board. Dr. Youakim shared that there are limited funds to spend and
he will consider applications that met the deadline before considering
the late applicants.

The actions taken by the Board at that time were as follows:

MOTION: Dr. Youakim moved to authorize the staff to post a second
Notification of Funding Availability (NOFA) giving 21 days notice of a

35


https://www.youtube.com/@champaigncountymhbandddb
https://www.youtube.com/@champaigncountymhbandddb
https://champaigncountyil.gov/mhbddb/agendas/mhb/2023/230222_Meeting/230222_Minutes.pdf
https://champaigncountyil.gov/mhbddb/agendas/mhb/2023/230222_Meeting/230222_Minutes.pdf
https://champaigncountyil.gov/mhbddb/agendas/mhb/2023/230222_Meeting/230222_Minutes.pdf

limited open period for submission of PY2024 funding requests. Mr.
Omo-0Osagie seconded the motion. A roll call vote was taken and the
motion passed unanimously.

MOTION: Dr. Youakim moved to authorize CCMHB staff additional
time to review any PY2024 funding requests submitted during this
second open period and to develop related summaries and
recommendations, with both activities along a timeline different from
that posted in allocation process documents. Ms. Sprandel seconded
the motion. A roll call vote was taken and the motion passed
unanimously.

Agency Update:

Attached to this memorandum is a request from Courage Connection. The
agency was unable to complete the PY2027 funding request forms by the
deadline and requests additional time to complete them. If the Board
chooses to offer this additional time, they might again direct Board staff to
post a new Notification of Funding Availability at least 21 days in advance of
a one-day application period, March 16, 2026, 12:01AM to 11:59PM.

Possible Actions:

Motion to approve the request from Courage Connection for additional
time to complete a PY2027 funding request, by authorizing CCMHB staff
to publish a second PY2027 Notification of Funding Availability at least 21
days in advance of another open application period.

AND
Motion to allow CCMHB staff additional time to review any PY2027 funding
requests submitted during this second open period and to develop related
summaries and allocation scenarios, with both activities along a timeline
different from that posted in allocation process documents.

OR
Motion to deny the request from Courage Connection for additional time
to complete a PY2027 funding request.

36



Special Request for Consideration by CCDDB or CCMHB

Complete and direct to stephanie@ccmhb.org and either kim@ccmhb.org or leon@ccmhb.org.
Full Board approval is needed for certain exceptions to requirements and to reverse actions taken by the
CCDDB- CCMHB staff. The completed request form will be presented to the CCDDB or CCMHB at a meeting.

Regquester’s Name: Haley Wright,Consulting CFO, CLA

Date: 2/5/2026

Agency Name: Courage Connection
Contract(s): Application for FY27 funding

Step One: Identify the type of special consideration requested.

X] Consideration of Late Funding Request
[] Release of Paused Payment(s)

[] Continuation of Contract(s)

[ ] Reversal of Other Compliance Action

[ ] Waiver of Other Contract Requirement
[ ] Other

Step Two: Describe the circumstances necessitating this request.

I am requesting consideration for a late budget submission due to running out of time
before the deadline. The budget was fully completed in Excel; however, the amounts were
still being entered into the portal at 4:30 p.m., which was the deadline.

Step Three: 1dentify a solution to be implemented to avoid this circumstance in the future.
To avoid this issue moving forward, our team will set an internal deadline at least one day
before the official due date and block dedicated time to complete the portal entry. This
buffer will ensure all information is entered and submitted well before the final deadline.

Step Four: Attach documentation which will clarify the situation, including documentation
from your CPA firm, if related to the annual audit or financial review.

37


mailto:stephanie@ccmhb.org
mailto:kim@ccmhb.org
mailto:leon@ccmhb.org

Step Five: Attend a meeting of the full Board, preferably in person, to answer questions.

38



CHAMPAIGN COUNTY
DEVELOPMENTAL

c DISABILITIES BOARD
CHAMPAIGN COUNTY

MENTAL HEALTH BOARD

BRIEFING MEMORANDUM

DATE: February 18, 2026
TO: Members, Champaign County Mental Health Board (CCMHB)
FROM: Lynn Canfield, Executive Director

SUBJECT:  Application Review Process

Purpose:

This memorandum offers a summary of activities related to the review of
requests for funding for Program Year 2027 (PY27). The focus is on those
tasks the CCMHB staff team will complete, with timelines for each, to
support the Board’s discussions and final allocation decisions. These were
modified prior to the last cycle to better support Board discussions.
Changes were based on feedback from members and President on this as
well as on the Board’s review and decision processes.

Background:

With agency requests for PY27 funding submitted on or before February
2, 2026, the review process begins. A list of applications, by agency and
program, is attached to this memorandum. This includes applications for
services which may be funded by the CCMHB. The Champaign County
Developmental Disabilities Board (CCDDB) will review 1/DD requests and
coordinate recommendations with the CCMHB later in the spring.

At any point in the process, Board members may view applications online
at http://ccmhddbrds.org using their unique login credentials. Support is
available from the site’s developer or Board staff. Printed and electronic

copies of applications are available upon request.

39


http://ccmhddbrds.org/

CCMHB staff reviews will result in a draft “program summary” or
review for each complete application. While Board discussion of
applications is supported by these staff reviews and along the timeline
below, the Board may have questions for applicants at any point in the
process or about elements not addressed through the staff review.
Board questions or concerns may be shared with staff at any time or
posed during meetings or study sessions. We will look into any we may
be able to answer or direct questions to the applicants for their
responses. To incorporate responses and concerns, two deadlines are
included in the final section of this memo.

The staff reviews, presented in April, and allocation scenarios, presented
in May, are improved by Board discussion of the process, the quality of
requests, and any information provided in response to a question.

From the Allocation Process Timeline:

e March 18 is a regular board meeting which will include other
business. Board members might have questions for applicants
about funding requests. Agency representatives are encouraged to
attend. If not present, questions will be forwarded to them.

e April 15 is the deadline for the draft staff program summaries to
be made available to the Board and public, posted online as part of
the packet for the upcoming meeting.

e April 22 and April 29 are a meeting and a study session, with focus
on Board review of applications, supported by program
summaries. The April 22 meeting will also include business items
for action.

e May 13 is the staff deadline for draft funding allocation scenarios

to the Board about allocations for PY2027. A full board packet for
the study session will be posted online and paper copies mailed.

40



e May 20 is a study session, focused on Board discussion of
allocations of funding for PY2027. Between this study session and
the next board meeting, staff will strive to track Board
modifications of the initial staff memorandum.

e May 27 is a regular meeting of the CCMHB, with a goal to finalize
decisions about allocation of funding for PY27. This meeting will
include other business.

e Following final Board decisions, CCMHB staff will begin contract
negotiations in early June to allow time for contract preparation,
completion of revisions by agency staff, and full execution, so that
July payments may be released in a timely fashion.

Expectations and Considerations:

Throughout the review and decision process, staff are available to work
with Board members. These conversations are helpful to our review and
eventual allocation decision scenarios. The timeline is intended to support
the Board’s mission of allocating funds for the benefit of the community
and may be modified to allow more or less time to phases of the process.

e Atemplate checklist for (optional) Board use is attached.

e When staff program summaries are presented, Board members
may have questions for CCMHB staff or applicants, to be answered
as time allows during the meeting. Agency representatives able to
speak to application content should attend meetings or study
sessions during which their applications are likely to be reviewed.

e Board members may have questions which relate directly to an
application or are outside the application’s scope, because their
decision process includes understanding the larger service system
and determining best value for residents of Champaign County.

41



Board questions may be raised at any time, prior to staff reviews,
during a meeting, or afterward. Staff will forward questions to the
applicant, and the applicant’s written response should relate
directly to the question(s). Responses will be shared in a publicly
posted board packet, for transparency of the process.

April 29 is the ideal final date for Board members to pose such
guestions to agencies.

May 8 is the ideal final date for applicants’ written responses,
allowing Board and staff time to consider the exchanges fully.

The time between Board discussions can be quite, sometimes
making it difficult to incorporate all concerns raised.

If the staff allocation scenarios are not revised to match
expectations by the time the May board meeting packet is
published, additional board discussion or a subsequent board
meeting may be necessary.

42



DRAFT

DRAFT

Requests for CCMHB Funding for PY2027 (July 1, 2026 - June 30, 2027)

Agency Name ‘Program Name PY26 Award ‘ PY27 Req PY26-27 Contract
CCRPC - Community Services Homeless Services System Coordination $54,281 $189,007 n/a
Youth Assessment Center $76,350 n/a $76,350
CU at Home Life Skills CM Program NEW. n/a $305,000 n/a
Shelter Case Management Program $256,700 $295,000 n/a
CU Early CU Early $80,723 $86,701 n/a
CC Children's Advocacy Center Children's Advocacy $63,911 n/a $63,911
CC Christian Health Center CCCHC Community Mental Health Program $100,000 n/a $100,000
CC Head Start/Early Head Start Early Childhood MH Svcs (MH and DD) $388,463 $411,062 n/a
CC Health Care Consumers CHW Outreach and Benefit Enrollment $97,139 n/a $97,139
Justice Involved CHW Services & Benefits $103,284 n/a $103,284
Disability Services $105,000 $121,000 n/a
Community Svc Center of Northern CC | Resource Connection $70,667 n/a $70,667
Courage Connection Courage Connection $128,038 $0 n/a
Crisis Nursery Beyond Blue-Champaign County $90,000 n/a $90,000
Cunningham Childrens Home ECHO Housing and Employment Support $203,710 $264,351 n/a
Families Stronger Together $282,139 $298,532 n/a
DSC Family Development (DD) $702,000 n/a $702,000
Don Moyer Boys and Girls Club C-U CHANGE $85,575 $94,135 n/a
Community Coalition Summer Initiatives $100,000 $100,000 n/a
East Central IL Refugee Mutual Assistanc| Family Support & Strengthening $75,441 n/a $75,441
Family First Advocacy Empowering Bridge Program - NEW n/a $233,355 n/a
Family Service of CC Counseling $143,322 n/a $143,322
Self-Help Center $38,191 n/a $38,191
Senior Counseling & Advocacy $214,360 n/a $214,360
FirstFollowers FirstSteps Community Reentry House $69,500 $69,500 n/a
Peer Mentoring for Reentry $95,000 $120,000 n/a
GCAP Advocacy, Care, and Education Services $61,566 $75[000 n/a
GROW in lllinois Peer-Support $157,690 $179,805 n/a
Immigrant Services of CU Immigrant Mental Health Program $200,256 n/a $200,256
Promise Healthcare Mental Health Services $360,000 n/a $360,000
Mobile NEW n/a $200,000 n/a
PHC Wellness $125,000 n/a $125,000
Rape Advocacy, Counseling & Education |Sexual Trauma Therapy Services $196,205 n/a $196,205
Sexual Violence Prevention Education $108,115 n/a $108,115
Rosecrance Central lllinois Behavioral Health Urgent Care NEW n/a $360,000 n/a
Benefits Case Management $84,625 $181,000 n/a
Crisis Co-Response Team (CCRT) $240,000 SO n/a
Recovery Home $100,000 SZO0,000 n/a
TASC, Inc. Outreach and Recovery Support Svcs NEW n/a $90,429 n/a
Uniting Pride of CC Children, Youth & Families Program $190,056 $225,056 n/a
Urbana Neighborhood Connections Cent Community Study Center $382,180 n/a $382,180
We Never Walk Alone Trained First Responder Peer Supportt NEW n/a $20,330 n/a
Vetted Mental Health Profession Network NEW n/a $19,656 n/a
WIN Recovery Community Support ReEntry Houses $183,000 n/a $183,000
Win Resilience Resource Ctr NEW n/a $270,000 n/a
MH-SUD PY26 = $5,077,542, PY27 = TBD, less $2,627,421 already allocated = TBD to allocate. 56,012,487 $4’408, 919 53,329,421
1/DD PY26 = $934,945. PY27 = $964,863 available, less $702,000 already allocated = $262,863 to allocate 43 pr26awards| PY27 Requests PY26-27 Contracts

DRAFT



CCMHB Application Review Checklist

Minimal responsiveness (staff confirm first):

Y/N concerns/comments

Eligible per questionnaire if new.
Eligible per compliance if incumbent.

Recent audit, review, compilation, or audited balance sheet if new.

Recent audit or review with no concerns if incumbent.

All application forms submitted on time.

Relates to M, SUD, or I/DD.

Other pay sources have been maximized.

Relationships with providers of similar or related services.

MHB Priority Categories:

Strengthening the Behavioral Health Workforce

Safety and Crisis Stabilization

Healing from Violence and Trauma

Access and Care

Thriving Children, Youth, and Families

Young Children and their Families (collaboration with CCDDB)

Best Value Considerations:

check appropriate

Y/N concerns/comments

Is there a clear connection between the budget plan and the
program activities?

Are measurable, meaningful participant outcomes included?
Are the access measures and utilization targets reasonable?

Do the people served have a say in their own service plan?
How are program activities impacted by people with lived
experience?

Does the program plan narrative add program-specific strategies
(beyond the agency CLCP) to engage underserved populations?

Does the application address whether and how rural residents
may use the program?

Is inclusion in the community described at the individual level?
Through program activities?

Does the application describe use of virtual supports and
training?

Is an evidence-based, evidence-informed, promising, or
innovative approach identified?

Are staff credentials or specialized training identified?

Are other resources identified, with efforts to leverage them
demonstrated?

44




Kim Bowdry,

Associate Director for Intellectual & Developmental Disabilities
Staff Report-February 2026

CCDDB/CCMHB/IDDSI: PY2026 2™ Quarter Reports were due on January 28, 2026. Ahead of
the deadline, | provided support for claims uploads in the Online Reporting System to CCDDB
funded agency staff.

PY2026 2nd Quarter Claims Reports for CCDDB and CCMHB I/DD Funded Programs
(included in the February CCDDB packet) were created using the data entered in the system
by agency staff. | am reviewing and documenting the information provided in the 2" Quarter
reports. This information was added to the CCDDB and CCMHB I/DD funded program
Performance Data Charts. | created a more accessible version of the PY2026 2nd Quarter
Program Service Reports for I/DD programs funded by the Champaign County Developmental
Disabilities Board and Champaign County Mental Health Board; this can be found in the
February CCDDB packet.

The deadline for PY2027 application submission was February 2, 2026, at 4:30 PM CST.
CCDDB and CCMHB requests for I/DD funding can be found in the February CCDDB Meeting
packet.

| have started working on Program Summaries for I/DD funding requests to the Champaign
County Developmental Disabilities Board and Champaign County Mental Health Board.
Program Summaries will be included in the April 2026 Board packet.

| participated in monthly meetings with CCDDB/CCMHB staff and staff from the Family
Resiliency Center related to the Evaluation Capacity project.

All consultant contracts for FY2026 have been fully completed.

| added captions to the January CCDDB Meeting and the CCMHB Meeting and Study Session
Zoom recordings. | posted all three recordings to the CCDDB/CCMHB YouTube Channel.
Please visit the CCDDB/CCMHB YouTube Channel to view the recordings
(http://www.youtube.com/@champaigncountymhbandddb).

During January 2026, | created a CCDDB/CCMHB Newsletter. Unfortunately, | encountered
an issue with the domain name which requires support from IT. This issue is still being
resolved.

Illinois Department of Human Services - Division of Developmental Disabilities IDHS-
DDD: | participated in The Arc of Illinois Listening Session at Champaign Public Library. This
event was co-hosted by the CCDDB. This event consisted of a conversation about I/DD
service options in Illinois, as well as a survey related to I/DD services. The information
gathered at this event and others throughout the state will be compiled by the University of

45


http://www.youtube.com/@champaigncountymhbandddb)
http://www.youtube.com/@champaigncountymhbandddb

Illinois — Chicago and will be shared with IDHS-DDD. The Arc of Illinois is hosting other
Listening Sessions throughout the state. If you are interested in participating in a Listening
Session, please contact Annie Bruno (annie@thearcofil.org) or visit The Arc of Illinois’ website
(https://www.thearcofil.org/events/category/arc-events/) for more information.

Contract Amendments: N/A

Learning Opportunities: Tim Offenstein, Falling Leaf Productions presented “Accessibility
Training: Creating Accessible WORD and PDF Documents” on January 29, 2026, at 10AM. The
training recording (https://youtu.be/U4XZupfQdD8) has been posted to the CCDDB/CCMHB
YouTube channel (https://www.youtube.com/@champaigncountymhbandddb).

On February 26, 2026, Mr. Offenstein will present “Accessibility Training: Building Accessible
Websites.” This training is also scheduled to begin at 10AM. Interested participants can sign-
up here (https://us02web.zoom.us/meeting/register/WSdic_WaRKkCvTj8EYO0IITg).

CCDDB and CCMHB will be partnering with UIUC School of Social Work and The University of
Ilinois Leadership Center (ILC) to offer a series of leadership training courses. The United
Way and Community Foundation of East Central Illinois are also partnering on this project.
The first training course is being planned for March 25, 2026, from 9:30-10:30 AM at the
United Way of Champaign County (time and location have been updated). Further details are
coming soon.

DISABILITY Resource Expo: | participated in an Advisory Committee Meeting for the
Disability Resource Expo. | created a Doodle Poll for the next meeting of the Advisory
Committee.

Mental Health and Developmental Disabilities Agencies Council (MHDDAC): Cindy
Crawford, Community Services Center of Northern Champaign County (CSCNCC) provided a
presentation on the programs and services offered through the CSCNCC during the January
meeting.

Association of Community Mental Health Authorities of lllinois (ACMHAI): | participated in
the February Executive Committee meeting.

National Association for County Behavioral Health and Developmental Disability
Directors (NACBHDD): N/A

Human Services Council (HSC): The February meeting was postponed.

Champaign County Transition Planning Committee (TPC): The next meeting of the TPC is
scheduled for March 5, 2026.

Champaign County Local Inter-Agency Council (LIC): N/A

Other: | also participated in several webinars.

46


mailto:annie@thearcofil.org
mailto:annie@thearcofil.org
https://www.thearcofil.org/events/category/arc-events/
https://www.thearcofil.org/events/category/arc-events/
https://youtu.be/U4XZupfQdD8
https://youtu.be/U4XZupfQdD8
https://www.youtube.com/@champaigncountymhbandddb
https://www.youtube.com/@champaigncountymhbandddb
https://www.youtube.com/@champaigncountymhbandddb
https://us02web.zoom.us/meeting/register/WSdic_WaRkCvTj8EY0IITg
https://us02web.zoom.us/meeting/register/WSdic_WaRkCvTj8EY0IITg
https://us02web.zoom.us/meeting/register/WSdic_WaRkCvTj8EY0IITg
https://us02web.zoom.us/meeting/register/WSdic_WaRkCvTj8EY0IITg

Leon Bryson
Associate Director for Mental Health & Substance Use Disorders
Staff Report-February 2026

CCMHB/CCDDB PY27 Funding: On December 19, 2025, the online PY27 funding
application portal was open for agencies to submit applications for funding requests.
CCMHB/CCDDRB staff were available to provide limited technical support at the request of the
agency. The deadline for submission of funding applications was February 2, 2026. Courage
Connection missed the deadline to reapply for funding and submitted a Request for Board
Approval Exception form. This request is included in the CCMHB packet for board members’
discussion.

Agency Progress Reports: Agency PY26 Second Quarter Program Service Activity and CLC
progress reports were due on January 28, 2026. Ms. Stephanie Howard-Gallo sent a reminder to
agencies regarding the second quarter reporting deadline and the process for requesting
extensions. The Refugee Center and Cunningham Children’s Home requested deadline
extensions to submit late reports. Ms. Stephanie Howard-Gallo issued a suspension letter to the
Don Moyer Boys and Girls Club for failure to submit a CLC report. At this time, all required
reports have been received.

Site Visits: Site visits were conducted with Champaign Christian Health Center and GROW at
their main offices, with the assistance of Ms. Shandra Summerville. No notable concerns were
identified regarding either agency’s program services. Upcoming site visits are scheduled with
the Community Service Center of Northern Champaign County, WIN Recovery, Immigrant
Services, and the Child Advocacy Center. Each site visit includes a discussion with the Program
Director and relevant personnel regarding program effectiveness, as well as a review of client
records and service utilization data. Upon request, all necessary supporting documentation was
provided by the program directors and their staff.

Mid-Year Progress Reports: The next set of mid-year presentations for the March 25 Study
Session will feature Urbana Neighborhood Connections Center, Immigrant Services, and
Rosecrance. Rosecrance will provide board members with an update on the latest developments
related to their CCBHC.

ACMHAI Committee: I attended the /DD Committee and Legislative Committee meetings. I
also participated in the following ACMHAI webinars: Making Digital Mental Health Work in
the Real World and SNAP Updates.

CCMHDDAC Meeting: The January 27" meeting was relatively short in duration with
members providing updates and a presentation from Executive Director Cindy Crawford from
Community Service Center of Northern Champaign County. At the next meeting on February
24th members will hear a presentation from Katie Harmon from CCRPC.

CIT Steering Committee: At the February 4th meeting members provided updates. Another
relatively short meeting.

47



Continuum of Service Providers to the Homeless (CSPH): On February 3™, members
gathered at the Martens Center to receive updates on homelessness response efforts. Danielle
Chynoweth and Katie Harmon shared next steps related to Homebase, a mission-driven nonprofit
focused on eliminating homelessness, alleviating poverty, and building strong communities.
Planned activities include forming a 15-member in-person steering committee, hosting an on-site
focus group in March, reviewing key policy documents, and analyzing the past 10 years of Point-
in-Time (PIT) data. The work will focus on four priority areas: CSPH structural components,
street outreach, the federal NOFO, and relationship building. Katie Harmon also provided an
update on the recent Point-in-Time count. Approximately 40 volunteers participated, and an
estimated 35—40 unsheltered individuals were surveyed. The count was considered successful,
with care packages distributed and transportation to shelters provided by Cunningham Township.
A follow-up comprehensive inventory count will be released soon. Danielle Chynoweth shared
updates on the re-visioning of Strides Shelter, noting that intake will now occur on Wednesdays.
While the shelter continues to face staffing reductions, improvements include a new floor
installation and receipt of a $10,000 donation. Fundraising efforts are ongoing. Currently, a total
of 120 beds are in use across Cunningham Township and Strides.

Evaluation Capacity Committee Team: I attend and participate in the monthly meetings with
the Evaluation Capacity project staff. The next meeting is scheduled for February 13,

Rantoul Service Provider’s Meeting: At the January 26" meeting members provided updates.

SOFTT/LANS Meeting: At the January 21% meeting, members heard from Courage Connection
Executive Director Matthew Fletcher, who provided an engaging overview of the services
offered by his agency. Members also received an overview of Family Advocacy in Champaign
County’s advocacy and outreach services. Lastly, members are moving forward with planning
Fatherhood Part 2 forum. The next scheduled meeting will take place on February 18% at 1:30pm
via Microsoft Teams.

Other Activities:

e On January 29, I attended Accessibility Training: Creating Accessible Word and PDF
Documents, presented by Tim Offenstein of Falling Leaf Productions. The training
provided one hour of instruction focused on best practices for creating accessible
documents.

e Director Canfield, Associate Director Bowdry, and I have spent the past several weeks
working to update Word and PDF documents to meet accessibility standards.

48



Stephanie Howard-Gallo
Operations and Compliance Coordinator Staff Report —
February 2026 Board Meeting

SUMMARY OF ACTIVITY:

2nd Quarter Reporting 2026:

2nd quarter financial and program reporting were due January 28th at
11:59 p.m. I sent the funded agencies a reminder of the deadline, along
with the form to submit if they need an extension.

ECIRMAC requested an extension. Cunningham Children’s Home
requested an extension after the due date. Don Moyer Boys and Girls
Club had their payment paused because they did not request an
extension and their CLC Plan update was not submitted.

Funding Applications:
[ am beginning to review eligibility questionnaires.

Audits:
Completed audits are sent to a consultant (John Brusveen) for review. I
provide the consultant with all financial reports for funded programs from

FY2025.

Trainings:
I attended Accessibility Training for WORD and PDF documents.

Community Awareness/Anti-Stigma Efforts/Alliance for Inclusion
and Respect (AIR):

[ am planning for the usual art show/sale at the final Ebertfest in April
2026. The Crow at 110 has invited AIR artists to participate in their art
show in the spring.

Other:
. Prepared meeting materials for CCMHB/CCDDB regular
meetings and study sessions/presentations.
. Attended meetings for the CCMHB/CCDDB.
. Wrote minutes for the CCMHB/CCDDB meetings.

49



(This page is intentionally left blank.)

50



Utilization Results and Consumer Outcomes
for Programs funded by the
Champaign County Mental Health Board in PY2025

Glossary and Notes

TPC = Treatment Plan Client

NTPC = Non-Treatment Plan Client

CSE = Community Service Event

SC = Screening Contact or Service Contact
Other = as defined in individual program contract

Some contract award amounts listed are not equal to actual cost of the program, as agencies’
independent audit reports might indicate excess revenue to be returned. This can result from
understaffing, one cause of underutilization. Audits may result in future revisions to this report.

While consumer outcome results are summarized very briefly below, we strongly recommend review of
the full agency reports, which address unexpected challenges and successes and even forecast the next
cycle. Each program’s performance toward defined utilization and consumer outcomes during the
contract period, July 1, 2024 to June 30, 2025, is described in a set of aggregated reports and posted at
http://ccmhddbrds.org among downloadable files and titled “CCMHB PY25 Performance Outcome
Reports.” It is also posted on our pages of the Champaign County Government’s website, Public
Documents Page, under the same name.

Priority:
Collaboration with Champaign County Developmental Disabilities
Board (CCDDB), Very Young Children and their Families

Champaign County Regional Planning Commission Head Start/Early Head Start
Early Childhood Mental Health Services $216,800 (for I/DD Services)

Addresses social-emotional concerns in the early childhood period and identifies developmental
issues and risk. The social-emotional portion of the program focuses on aiding the development
of self-regulation, problem solving skills, emotional literacy, empathy, and appropriate social
skills. Accomplishments in these areas will affect a child’s ability to play, love, learn and work
within the home, school and other environments. ($171,663 of the total contract is for mental
health services, the remainder is $216,800 for I/DD.)

Utilization targets: 116 TPC, 380 NTPC, 5 CSE, 3000 SC, 12 Other (workshops, trainings,
professional development efforts with staff and parents).
Utilization result: 116 TPC, 62 NTPC, 3 CSE, 1572.5 SC, 15 Other, 557 hours of service.

Outcome 1 target: Children will demonstrate improved social skills.

Outcome 1 result: 73% of children in the program met or exceeded social emotional
developmental expectations for their age group, with 85% of children aged 6 weeks to 3 years
meeting or exceeding, a 29% increase in SELs for those aged 3-5, a 31% increase for those
aged 3-5 and English learners, and a 29% increase for kindergarten-bound children.

51


http://ccmhddbrds.org/
https://www.champaigncountyil.gov/MHBDDB/PublicDocuments.php
https://www.champaigncountyil.gov/MHBDDB/PublicDocuments.php
https://www.champaigncountyil.gov/MHBDDB/PDFS/CCMHB_PY25_Performance_Outcome_Reports.pdf

Outcome 2 target: HS staff will demonstrate improved skills (interpersonal, stress management,
and caregiving).

Outcome 2 result: Due to program and staff changes, teachers were not assessed.
Outcome 3 target: Parents will demonstrate improved skills (stress management and
caregiving).

Outcome 3 result: Staff shortages and low attendance at family events prevented the
assessment tool from being distributed to parents.

Outcome 4 target: Classroom management will demonstrate social-emotional sensitive
interactions.

Outcome 4 result: 83% of classroom observations showed consistent, effective
support/organization; the rest were effective in each domain but not always consistent.

CU Early
CU Early - $16,145 (for I/DD Services)

Bilingual home visitor for at risk Spanish speaking families, serving expectant families and
children up to age 3; completion of developmental screenings on all enrolled children alongside
the parent to ensure that children are developing on track; referral to Early Intervention if there is
a suspected disability or concern with the child’s development. 2020 IECAM data on Champaign
County estimated there were 1,157 children under age 5 who speak Spanish, that 555 Spanish
speaking children were under 3, and that 1,188 children under 2 lived in poverty. ($64,578 of the
total contract relates to mental health, another $16,145 to I/DD.)

Utilization targets: 20 TPC, 5 NTPC, 464 SC, 4 CSE
Utilization result: 27 TPC, 7 NTPC, 714 SC, 17 CSE

Outcome 1 target: 95% improvement in each area of parenting skill and knowledge.

Outcome 1 result: Affection 100%, Responsiveness 83%, Encouragement 85%, Teaching 66%.
Outcome 2 target: 95% of children will make developmental progress.

Outcome 2 result: 92%. NOTE: of bilingual caseload, 15 children on target, 3 with delays
referred to El, 8 received El with an IFSP.

Outcome 3 target: 95% of children up to date with well child exams and immunizations.
Outcome 3 result: 100%.

DSC
Family Development $656,174

Serves children birth to five years, with or at risk of developmental disabilities, and their families.
Culturally responsive, innovative, evidence-based services. Early detection and prompt,
appropriate intervention can improve developmental outcomes for children with delays,
disabilities, or living in at-risk environments. Family-centered intervention maximizes the gifts and
capacities of families to provide responsive intervention within familiar routines and environments.

Utilization targets: 655 TPC, 200 SC, 15 CSE
Utilization result: 1045 TPC, 186 SC, 16 CSE

Outcome 1 target: 90% of caregivers will feel more competent/comfortable regarding their child’s
needs.

Outcome 1 result: 98% per program satisfaction survey.

Outcome 2 target: 90% of children will progress in Individualized Family Service Plan goals.
Outcome 2 result: 91%.

52



Priority:
Thriving Children, Youth, and Families

Champaign County RPC Head Start/Early Head Start
Early Childhood Mental Health Services $171,663 (for MH Services)

See above for service information and year-end data, disability types combined.

CU Early
CU Early - $64,578 (for MH Services)

See above for service information and year-end data.

Crisis Nursery
Beyond Blue — Champaign County $90,000

Supports mothers experiencing perinatal depression, with a focus on the mental health and well-
being of children and families, by strengthening the parent child bond through playgroups,
support groups, and home visiting services. Through coordination with the Home Visitors
Consortium, Crisis Nursery focuses on families experiencing perinatal depression and then
blends this programming with Prevention Initiative funding from the Illinois State Board of
Education which focuses on the development of children birth-3 years.

Utilization targets: 24 TPC, 56 NTPC, 300 SC, 86 CSE, 550 Other (hours in-kind/respite care)
Utilization result: 21 TPC, 44 NTPC, 346 SC, 93 CSE, 790 Other

Outcome 1 target: Mothers will gain information about effects of perinatal depression on baby.
Outcome 1 result: (not directly reported in POR.)

Outcome 2 target: Mothers will have a decrease in depressive symptoms.

Outcome 2 result: (not directly reported in POR.)

Outcome 3 target: Mothers will develop greater understanding of their child’s developmental
needs and an ability to meet those in positive and growth producing interaction.

Outcome 3 result: 90% of those surveyed reported improved parenting skills.

Outcome 4 target: Mothers will learn to reduce their stress, seek resources, broaden networks.
Outcome 4 result: 80% of those completing the survey showed a decrease In level of stress.
Outcome 5 target: Mothers will improve their capacity to engage fully in a reciprocal relationship
with their babies, resulting in the optimal development of the baby, more successful and satisfying
parenting and greater security for both.

Outcome 5 result: 90% of those surveyed reported improved parenting skills and reduced risk of
harm to children.

Cunningham Children’s Home
Families Stronger Together $282,139

Trauma informed, culturally responsive, and therapeutic and preventative services to youth...
involved in or vulnerable to being involved in the juvenile justice system. Focus is primarily on
preventative services for the younger population. FST can offer early intervention services to
Treatment Plan Client (TPC) youth and families. The FST program utilizes the ARC framework in
working with these youth, families, and community.

Utilization targets: 40 TPC, 75 NTPC, 1935 SC, 10 CSE

53



Utilization result: 19 TPC, 109 NTPC, 972 SC, 9 CSE

Outcome 1 target: Decreased scores on the “Total Difficulties” scale and increased scores on
the “Strengths” scale.

Outcome 1 result: Three youth had brief admissions lasting less than 75 days and lacked both
pre- and post-measures. Two youth did not complete closing measures due to staff's
unsuccessful engagement efforts. Among the eight youth who completed pre- and post-measures
on the SDQ, all demonstrated a net positive gain, with an overall decrease of 8.4 points in the
“Total Difficulties” score, starting at an average of 19.4 (95th percentile). Additionally, five youth
(63%) showed slight increases in the “Strengths” score, with a negligible average change of
+0.75, starting at 7.4.

Outcome 2 target: Trauma-informed caregiving skills are enhanced in several ARC areas:
foundational strategies (engagement, education, routines), attachment integrative strategies
(affect management, attunement, effective response), regulation integrative strategies
(identification, modulation), and competency integrative strategies (executive functions, self-
development, identity, relational connection).

Outcome 2 result: 13 youth were discharged from the program. Of 9 caregivers, 6 (67%)
demonstrated improved competencies; 3 (33%) showed a decrease in overall skills. Pre- and
post-measures were unavailable for 3 caregivers due to brief enroliment, and 1 caregiver lacked
an admission measure.

Outcome 3 target: Improve family’s protective factors (social supports, concrete supports, family
functioning, nurturing and attachment).

Outcome 3 result: Three youth had brief admissions of less than 75 days, and a pre- and post-
measure was neither completed nor requested from the youth's caregiver. One caregiver did not
complete the closing measure due to family disengagement. Of 9 caregivers who completed a
pre- and post-test of the PFS-2, 44% (four caregivers) reported an increase in protective factors,
while 56% (five caregivers) reported a decrease during program enrollment.

Don Moyer Boys & Girls Club
CU Change $85,575

High yield programming, mental health resources and intensive case management... to address
issues encountered in the educational setting, social settings, family, and community. With a
focus on... stabilization of the family unit to support youth in graduating from high school with a
plan for the future.

Utilization targets: 20 TPC, 20 NTPC, 480 SC, 48 CSE
Utilization result: 19 TPC, 22 NTPC, 492 SC, 65 CSE

Outcome 1 target: 100% (20 of 20) Youth will complete full intake and actively participate in
intervention strategies prescribed in comprehensive plan.

Outcome 1 result: 95% (19 of 20) Youth completed intake and participated in service delivery.
Outcome 2 target: 100% (20 of 20) Family Members/Parents/Guardians will participate in intake
and actively participate in intervention strategies prescribed in the comprehensive plan.
Outcome 2 result: 100% (20 of 20) Family Members participated in intake and service delivery.
Outcome 3 target: 95% of the Youth will remain engaged in school or take required steps
towards re-engaging in school.

Outcome 3 result: 100% of Youth remain engaged in school/took required steps towards re-
engaging in school.

Don Moyer Boys & Girls Club
Community Coalition Summer Initiatives $100,000

54



Supports youth and community mental health needs during critical out-of-school time over the
summer months, when a lack of services is prevalent. Focused on violence prevention,
enhancement of positive community engagement, academic enrichment, recreational activities,
arts exploration, and leadership skill building. Services and supports by specialized providers,
through subcontracts with Don Moyer Boys and Girls Club. The Champaign County Community
Coalition and DMBGC support and reinforce System of Care principles and values, particularly
relative to system-involved youth with emotional and environmental challenges. Reports to and
through Champaign County Community Coalition and CCMHB.

Utilization targets: 11,7500 SC, 900 NTPC, 30 CSE
Utilization result: 11,965 SC 864 NTPC, 46 CSE

Outcome 1 target: Community Connection, per pre and post test
Outcome 1 result: (not directly reported in POR.)

Outcome 2 target: Reduction of Violent Incidents, per pre and post test
Outcome 2 result: (not directly reported in POR.)

Outcome 3 target: Skill Building and Participation, per pre and post test
Outcome 3 result: (not directly reported in POR.)

East Central IL Refugee Mutual Assistance Center
Family Support and Strengthening $62,000

Supports and strengthens refugee and immigrant families transitioning and adjusting to American
culture and expectations in Champaign County. Staff speak over ten languages in house, with
other languages available through qualified translators... offers a connection to area resources
that is culturally and linguistically appropriate. Staff often accompany clients on appointments as
advisors and trusted advocates. The goal is to give low-income immigrants better access to
quality care and services, leading to thriving families and client self-sufficiency.

Utilization targets: 60 TPC, 2140 NTPC, 50 CSE, 2200 SC, 15 Other (hours of workshops)
Utilization result: 38 TPC, 3531 NTPC, 70 CSE, 3,569 SC, 8 Other

Outcome 1 target: Applications for Social Service Public Benefits completed.

Outcome 1 result: 1,149 were completed.

Outcome 2 target: If unemployed, Obtain Permanent employment.

Outcome 2 result: 71 people were assisted with employment activities.

Outcome 3 target: Improve Quality of Life.

Outcome 3 result: 892 applications for public benefits were approved.

Outcome 4 target: Improve Outlook on Life.

Outcome 4 result: Exploration of alternative methods for obtaining anonymous client feedback,
including the potential use of WhatsApp.

Outcome 5 target: Improve Relationships with Others & Improve Connections to the Community.
Outcome 5 result: Unable to measure due to limited staff capacity.

Rosecrance Central lllinois
Child & Family Services $10,476 (2 Quarters of data; contract cancelled early)

For Champaign County residents aged 5 to 17 (and their families) with MH disorder and a need
for counseling, transportation, case management, wellness, and psychiatric services supported
by a licensed nurse who provides medication education, health and wellness promotion, and care
coordination; multi-disciplinary team and coordination between psychiatrist and clinician;
individual, group, or family counseling sessions, using skill-building, psychoeducation, Cognitive
Behavior Therapy, and Play Therapy; and transportation.

55



Utilization targets: 30 TPC, 10 NTPC, 250 SC, 5 CSE
Utilization result: 32 TPC, 3 NTPC, 514 SC, 4 CSE

Outcome 1 target: Clients will show improvement in overall functioning level.

Outcome 1 result: 66% of the participants showed improvement in CGAS.

Outcome 2 target: Clients will show improvement in common problems reported by the client.
Outcome 2 result: 66% of the participants evaluated at 6-month and/or at discharge showed
improvement on the Ohio Scale Problem/symptom severity.

Outcome 3 target: Clients will show improvement in level of functioning in a variety of areas of
daily activity (e.g., interpersonal relationships, recreation, self-direction, and motivation).
Outcome 3 result: 66% of the participants evaluated at 6-month and/or at discharge showed
improvement on the Ohio Scale Problem/symptom severity.

Outcome 4 target: Clients will show improvement or no increase in the severity and immediacy
of suicide risk.

Outcome 4 result: 66% of the participants evaluated at 6-month and/or at discharge showed
improvement on the Ohio Scale Problem/symptom severity.

Uniting Pride of Champaign County
Children, Youth & Families Program $190,056

Uniting Pride (UP) works to create a county inclusive of LGBTQ+ children, youth, adults, and
families by providing programming and support across the lifespan. UP assists individuals dealing
with depression, anxiety, substance use, or suicidal ideation. Support groups meet in-person
and/or on Zoom depending on participant preferences. UP provide trainings to organizations,
agencies, schools to build inclusive communities accepting of LGBTQ+ members. UP has
launched a food pantry, increased free gender-affirming clothing program, and greatly expanded
online resources.

Utilization targets: 100 NTPC, 300 SC, 100 CSE
Utilization result: 375 NTPC, 809 SC, 250 CSE

Outcome 1 target: Social support will increase by 25%.

Outcome 1 result: 94% of surveyed individuals noted improvement.

Outcome 2 target: Self-worth will increase by 20%.

Outcome 2 result: Surveyed participants in non-education programs reported 85% improvement
in self-worth. 100% of training participants reported improved confidence.

Priority:
Safety and Crisis Stabilization

CU at Home
Shelter Case Management $256,700

The services and supports offered through the program meet the client’'s essential needs in the
midst of crisis. The program provides intensive case management and care coordination to assist
the client in moving from crisis to stabilization, and ultimately community integration. The program
eliminates the need for clients to be homeless, decreases their contact with law enforcement, or
the need for clients to seek stability through hospitalization.

Utilization targets: 50 TPC, 25 NTPC, 5500 SC, 50 CSE
Utilization result: 40 TPC, 31 NTPC, 5,131 SC, 56 CSE

Outcome 1 target: 60% of program participants will graduate.

56



Outcome 1 result: 25% graduated, with an additional 12.5% of clients exiting early, primarily
within the first two weeks. 62.5% of clients remain active and on track to graduate. Graduation
rates are expected to fluctuate annually, influenced by the average 18-month length of stay.
Outcome 2 target: 100% of program clients will be entered into HMIS system for data tracking
purposes.

Outcome 2 result: 100% were tracked through the HMIS system.

Outcome 3 target: 100% of program clients will have an initial screening for mental health and
addiction issues and be referred to resources when needed.

Outcome 3 result: 97% of clients received a screening. Some had completed a screening prior
to entry. Those who did not receive a screening either declined to participate or left the program
shortly after entry.

Outcome 4 target: 90% of clients will develop goals and action steps from seven areas: mental
health, physical health, substance abuse, income/financial, housing, life skills and spiritual.
Outcome 4 result: 97% of clients met this objective.

Outcome 5 target: 100% of clients will receive monthly goal evaluations.

Outcome 5 result: 100% of clients who remained in the program for 30 days or more received
monthly goal evaluations.

Outcome 6 target: 100% of mid-barrier clients will be assigned a case manager and receive
intensive case management averaging 3 hours per week, with a maximum case manager-to-
client ratio of 20:1.

Outcome 6 result: 100% of program clients were assigned a case manager. Case management
ratios have remained low; we anticipate an increase in caseloads with expansion of the mid-
barrier program into Mattis Street property.

Outcome 7a target: 100% of clients in the Advanced Shelter Program will receive case
management services.

Outcome 7a result: 100% of Advanced Shelter clients received case management services.
Outcome 7ai Pre & Post Surveys: Clients completed pre- and post-program surveys rating their
mental health, living skills, stress levels, substance use, and physical health.

Outcome 7ai target: 70% will improve their overall mental health.

Outcome7ai result: 85%.

Outcome 7aii target: 80% will improve their independent living skills.

Outcome 7aii result: 75%.

Outcome 7aiii target: 70% will reduce their stress.

Outcome 7aiii result: 50%

Outcome 7bi target: 60% will reduce their substance use.

Outcome 7bi result: 97%.

Outcome 7bii target: 60% will improve their overall physical health.

Outcome 7bii result: 75%.

Champaign County Health Care Consumers
Justice Involved CHW Services & Benefits $90,147

For people who have justice-involvement, Community Health Worker services area offered at the
Champaign County jail and in community. Works with individuals experiencing behavioral health
issues, helping them enroll in health insurance, food stamps, and other public benefits programs;
helps stabilize individuals with resources and benefits; and helps them navigate the health care
system to get their needs met.

Utilization targets: 50 TPC, 25 NTPC, 200 SC, 8 CSE, 10 Other (Rx fund)
Utilization result: 121 TPC, 11 NTPC, 201 SC, 16 CSE, 5 Other (Rx fund)

Outcome 1 target: 75 people served.

Outcome 1 result: 118 people served.

Outcome 2 target: All eligible clients will be approved for benefits including Medicaid, SNAP,
hospital financial assistance, prescription assistance, etc.

57



Outcome 2 result: All benefit applications were approved.

Outcome 3 target: Most clients would require 2 applications, whether for Medicaid, SNAP,
hospital financial assistance, prescription assistance, access to affordable dental or vision care,
etc.

Outcome 3 result: Almost all required multiple applications, with the majority requiring 2 or 3 at
one time. Justice Involved clients required an average of 2.7 applications.

Champaign County Regional Planning Commission — Community Services
Youth Assessment Center (YAC) $76,350

Early intervention and diversion for youth, particularly those overrepresented in the juvenile
justice system, and for youth whose behavior may be symptomatic of issues best served outside
the juvenile justice system. Screens for needs, risks, and protective factors; uses Balanced and
Restorative Justice (BARJ) approach; completes and reviews Station Adjustment as the working
plan; may include weekly check-ins with case manager, curfew checks with police officer,
reparation through written apology, community service hours, and linkage to social service, MH,
or SUD treatment. Screening scores determine access to weekly phone counseling, group
programming (CBT approach), and partnership with UIUC Psychological Services
Center/Childhood Adversity & Resiliency Services to reduce barriers to MH treatment.

Utilization targets: 115 TPC, 25 NTPC, 100 SC, 70 CSE, 50 Other (referred but ineligible)
Utilization result: 99 TPC, 24 NTPC, 173 SC, 70 CSE, 52 Other

Outcome 1 target: Divert at least 90% of youth from a juvenile court adjudication within one year
of their YAC services.

Outcome 1 result: YAC unable to report on % of youth diverted from juvenile court adjudication
within one year of their services, as YAC does not currently have access to the court records of
youth adjudicated (info formerly available).

Outcome 2 target: 10% of youth assessed at exit will have decreased from moderate/high to low
risk to reoffend.

Outcome 2 result: 15% of TPC youth assessed at exit decreased from moderate or high risk to
low risk to reoffend.

Outcome 3 target: 90% of participants will endorse having been informed of resource options,
and 50% will report successful linkage and utilization of recommended services.

Outcome 3 result: 100% of youth with Formal Station Adjustment/Engagement Agreement
receive information and referrals to community resources upon intake. 30% of all TPC youth
improved their Protective Factor levels by exit compared to their intake levels.

FirstFollowers
FirstSteps Community Reentry House $69,500

A transition house for men (and, new in PY25, one for women) returning home to Champaign
County after incarceration. Rent-free housing in homes donated by the Housing Authority of
Champaign County, for up to four people at a time; furniture, appliances, computers, kitchen
equipment, exercise equipment, basic clothing items, and food until the person has the means to
pay either through employment or Link Card. Staff assist residents in transition, help them set up
plans of action and goals, provide transportation to potential employment or service opportunities,
and facilitate integration into the community. Projected length of engagement is 3-12 months.

Utilization targets: 8 TPC, 15 NTPC, 8 SC, 15 CSE
Utilization result: 6 TPC, 18 NTPC, 36 SC, 6 CSE

Outcome 1 target: Provide a stable living situation.

58



Outcome 1 result: Maintained a stable living situation for all residents throughout the year. They
have been comfortable in the house and used drop-in and other services while preparing
themselves for the next step.

Outcome 2 target: Enhance opportunities to find employment.

Outcome 2 result: 100% of residents have found employment that pays higher wages than the
minimum and has some potential for advancement.

Outcome 3 target: Connect to social service agencies.

Outcome 3 result: Through drop-in center residents have been able to access Medicaid, Link
Card, psychological services, and veteran benefits.

Outcome 4 target: - Build connections to the community.

Outcome 4 result: This has been uneven; only one resident has made long-term connections
with community groups and social services, while others have not engaged much.

Outcome 5 target: Provide economic security.

Outcome 5 result: Residents have improved their financial situation by establishing bank
accounts, enhancing credit ratings, and saving enough money to purchase a car and cover
apartment rent.

Outcome 6 target: Provide access to long-term housing opportunities.

Outcome 6 result: This reflects the difficulties faced in the housing market, which has become
problematic. Previously, residents could save enough from their jobs to buy a house, but now
even renting apartments is a challenge. While residents have been able to secure housing after
leaving FirstSteps, the quality of available housing is lacking.

First Followers
Peer Mentoring for Re-entry $95,000

Formerly incarcerated people serve as peer mentors of the program as well as providing direct
support to clients. Provides counseling and social/emotional supports, workforce development
programs, housing, assistance in accessing photo IDs and transportation, and more.

Utilization targets: 47 TPC, 147 NTPC, 18 SC, 18 CSE
Utilization result: 36 TPC, 42 NTPC, 48 SC, 8 CSE

Outcome 1 target: 80% will access employment and housing.

Outcome 1 result: 15% accessed housing. Voucher funds ran out in October and the decline
was exacerbated by a large number of applicants on the sex offender registry. Job access
experienced fluctuations, initially showing a 60% success rate, which dropped to 25% in
subsequent quarters, before increasing to 40% in the final month of the fiscal year.

Outcome 2 target: 80% will have access to services.

Outcome 2 result: 60% of desired outcome met due to funding cutbacks as indicated by data
collected from intake forms and follow-up surveys.

Outcome 3 target: Provide Enhanced Self-Esteem.

Outcome 3 result: Peer mentors with lived experience support individuals affected by the
criminal legal system at a drop-in center, helping to address self-esteem issues related to their
experiences of isolation from incarceration.

Outcome 4 target: For workforce development: basic building skills, public speaking, critical
thinking, basic math.

Outcome 4 result: Workforce development team renovated five houses and acquired new skills,
including public speaking and critical thinking, along with basic math for construction.

Rosecrance Central lllinois
Criminal Justice PSC $336,000

Community-based behavioral health program to reduce reliance on institutional care, with
qualified professionals meeting those involved with the criminal justice system where they are—

59



Champaign County jail, probation, or community. Using a person-centered, client-driven plan, the
staff coordinates across systems, with and on behalf of people with justice system involvement.
Case managers conduct screening, assessment, case management, and group therapy while
individuals are in jail and help with the transition from incarceration to re-entry into the community.

Utilization targets: 45 TPC, 100 NTPC, 500 SC
Utilization result: 21 TPC, 174 NTPC, 229 SC

Outcome 1 target: Increase client’s access to: groups, housing, employment, education,
insurance, other benefits, primary care, MH/SUD treatment, transportation, or other.

Outcome 1 result: 100% were provided linkages to MRT and Anger Management group
services, Housing, Employment, Education, Insurance, Primary Care, behavioral health (mental
health and substance use disorders treatment), and other benefits.

Outcome 2 target: Data on length of stay in jail for people with MI or cooccurring disorders.
Outcome 2 result: Average LOS for MI/COD: 93 days.

Rosecrance Central lllinois
Crisis Co-Response (CCRT) $310,000

Responds to need for behavioral health support in Urbana, Rantoul, and Champaign County, to
reduce the number of repeat calls to law enforcement for social emotional behavioral (SEB)
needs by increasing available services, eliminating barriers to existing services, and increasing
individuals’ capacity to engage in treatment, while offering law enforcement an alternative to
formal processing.

Utilization targets: 70 TPC, 10 NTPC, 250 SC, 50 CSE
Utilization result: 26 TPC, 37 NTPC, 192 SC, 56 CSE

Outcome 1 target: Increase individual's capacity to engage in treatment and/or access
resources, as shown on improvement in score on Self-Sufficiency Matrix.

Outcome 1 result: Average scores in participants' perception of their emotional state improved
from 1.4 to 3.2 after interacting with a CCRT responder.

Outcome 2 target: Reduce number of repeat calls to law enforcement for social emotional
behavioral needs.

Outcome 2 result: Only 6% of encounters were repeat requests.

Rosecrance Central lllinois
Specialty Courts $93,450 (2 Quarters of data; contract cancelled early)

Coordinates across systems, with and on behalf of people with substance use disorders or
mental illness who have justice system involvement. Clinicians provide Specialty Court clients
behavioral health assessments, individualized treatment plans, and group and individual
counseling services. Intensive case management to help clients overcome barriers and connect
to mental health treatment and resources such as food, clothing, medical and dental services,
employment, housing, education, transportation, and childcare.

Utilization targets: 45 TPC, 800 SC, 4 CSE, 1,000 Other = # hours case management, # hours
counseling. Other represents services funded by other sources leveraged through CCMHB
support for non-billable activities crucial to the operation of the Specialty Court

Utilization result: 40 TPC, 664 SC, 1 CSE, Other 111 (hours assessment, hours case
management, and hours counseling)

Outcome 1 target: 15 participants will graduate.
Outcome 1 result: 2 graduated. Data collected only during Q1 & Q2.

60



Outcome 2 target: 65% of graduates will not experience recidivism.

Outcome 2 result: No data gathered due to the shortened window of time.

Outcome 3 target: Individuals with potential barriers who received Case Management services.
Outcome 3 result: 100% Rosecrance outreach workers track Case Management service needs
in the client chart.

Women in Need (WIN) Recovery
Re-Entry & Recovery Home $183,000

Gender-responsive, trauma-informed, health-promoting services for women and gender
minorities, as an alternative to incarceration upon reentry. Service navigation and assistance to
meet individualized self-identified needs that may include housing, case management, support
plan with self-identified goals and assessments of progress, physical/mental/emotional health
care services, substance misuse/trauma recovery, education, employment, legal assistance,
leadership training, peer-facilitated support groups, civic participation/community outreach, family
therapy/reunification, compliance with parole/probation/DCFS/ other, and recovery-based
programming. All residents are provided curriculum books for trauma, parenting, and recovery
classes.

Utilization targets: 10 CSE, 40 SC, 0O NTPC, 12 TPC
Utilization result: 58 CSE, 81 SC, 1 NTPC, 22 TPC

Outcome 1a target: Successful completion of relevant AA and/or NA sobriety milestones as
reported by the individual.

Outcome 1a result: 18 individuals.

Outcome 1b target: Mental/Behavioral Health Services.
Outcome 1b result: 22 individuals.

Outcome 2c target: Obtain Stable Housing.

Outcome 2c result: 8 individuals.

Outcome 2d target: Obtain Employment.

Outcome 2d result: 10 individuals.

Outcome 2e target: Access to Education.

Outcome 2e result: 15 individuals.

Outcome 2f target: Family Reunification.

Outcome 2f result: 6

Outcome 2g target: Program Completion.

Outcome 2g result: 22 continuing services.

Outcome 2h target: No Recidivism.

Outcome 2h result: 22 individuals.

Priority:
Healing from Interpersonal Violence

Champaign County Children’s Advocacy Center (CAC)
Children’s Advocacy $63,911

Using a child-centered, evidence-based, coordinated response to allegations of child sexual
abuse and serious physical abuse, the CAC promotes healing and justice for young victims
through: a family-friendly space for initial interview and parent meeting; a legally-sound,
developmentally appropriate child forensic interview; comprehensive case management provided
by the CAC Family Advocate to help the family navigate the crisis; crisis counseling to the child
and any non-offending family member; referrals to specialized medical services; and coordination
of the investigation through multidisciplinary case reviews.

61



Utilization targets: 130 TPC, 40 NTPC, 170 SC, 8 CSE
Utilization result: 222 TPC, 49 NTPC, 182 SC, 8 CSE

Outcome 1 target: 90% satisfaction with perceived neutral, safe child and family friendly
environment.

Outcome 1 result:100% of caregivers agree that their child felt safe at the Center.

Outcome 2 target: 85% of children referred will attend counseling based on trauma screening in
order to initiate/facilitate healing process.

Outcome 2 result: 73% of clients referred to counseling attended at least one session.
Outcome 3 target: 90% Information gathered in legally sound manner (based on 115-10
hearings).

Outcome 3 result: 100% of 115-10 hearings were successful.

Outcome 4 target: 100% of caregivers report they know why they are at CAC.

Outcome 4 result: 100% indicated so.

Outcome 5 target: 95% of child victims have a perceived feeling of being safe while at CAC.
Outcome 5 result: 100% agreed CAC staff were helpful or very helpful in the child feeling safe.

Courage Connection
Courage Connection $128,038

“Our clients are not just victims, they are survivors. They have survived interpersonal violence
and are reaching out to us to find healing. According to Boston University, interpersonal violence,
also called intimate partner violence or domestic violence, is a pattern of behavior used to
establish power and control over another person. Through our counseling and advocacy
programs, we walk alongside our clients on their healing journey as we help them restore their
sense of personal freedom, power, and well-being. All our services are also victim services but
we also want to focus on this healing aspect of our work.”

Utilization targets: 600 TPC, 150 NTPC, 750 SC, 200 CSE
Utilization result: 229 TPC, 53 NTPC, 371 SC, 216 CSE

Outcome 1 target: 60% of residential clients discharge into improved, safer environments.
Outcome 1 result: 55% left under the positive indicators listed in Program Plan.

Outcome 2 target: 90% of clients surveyed (90% of 100=90) survivors’ skills and confidence to
move to a more positive situation.

Outcome 2 result: 100% of clients surveyed reported improved survivors’ skills and confidence
to move to a more positive situation.

Rape Advocacy, Counseling & Education Services
Sexual Trauma Therapy Services $140,000

Improves the health and success of survivors by providing confidential trauma therapy and crisis
intervention services to survivors of sexual violence and stalking. Therapy services at RACES are
part of the agency’s Survivor Services Program. Master’s level clinicians provide trauma-
informed, culturally competent therapy through multiple treatment modalities, utilizing approaches
that best meet the goals and the needs identified by clients. Cognitive-behavioral therapy, EMDR,
and arts-based therapy, provided by five full-time staff members at Urbana office and contractual
therapist with office in Rantoul, to increase access to therapy services for survivors in the area.

Utilization targets: 170 TPC, 250 NTPC, 25 SC (non-client crisis intervention contacts), 2 CSE,

2 Other (# therapeutic groups)
Utilization result: 168 TPC, 237 NTPC, 136 SC, 10 CSE, 22 Other

62



Outcome 1 target: Increase feelings of well-being, decrease PTSD and other trauma-related
symptoms, and provide clients with tools that foster self-care and resilience. NOTE: therapists
attempt to gather outcome information from every participant but by mandate do not force them to
complete the tool, the Impact of Event Scale (IES-R)/

Outcome 1 result: 66% (62 of 94) participants provided information, with an average 16.82%
decrease in symptoms. 5 people scored increased symptoms. 13 scored decreased symptoms.

Rape Advocacy, Counseling & Education Services
Sexual Violence Prevention Education $75,000

Services for residents of Champaign County aged three and older, at no cost. Uses a
comprehensive, multi-level, evidence-informed strategy to provide age-appropriate programming
to students, parents, teachers, and other community members. Special attention is given to
ensuring the inclusion of historically underserved and marginalized communities, including racial
and ethnic minorities, rural residents, members of the LGBTQ+ community, and individuals with
disabilities. The most common locations for RACES prevention programming are K-12 schools.

Utilization targets: 4000 (# attending) SC, 600 CSE, 10 Other (JDC presentations)
Utilization result: 3898 (# attending) SC, 747 CSE, 1 Other

Outcome 1 target: Knowledge gained. The goal is to increase knowledge.

Outcome 1 result: For K-2 and 3-5 grades, pre- and post-tests showed an increase in
comprehension (content knowledge) of 8.75% among K-2

and a lower 4.2% increase among the 3-5 grades, indicating retention of material presented to
them as K-2 students.

Outcome 2 target: Attitude change related to risk factors. Goal: Decreased acceptance of
measures related to risk factors.

Outcome 2 result: 43.20% of students responded neutral about the question in the pre-test, only
28.5% were neutral about it at the post-test, a 34.03% decrease, meaning that 34% more
students understood that desire is not

part of what drives sexual assault. And, of those who agreed with the statement in the beginning,
11% less agreed with it at the post-test.

Outcome 3 target: Attitude change related to protective factors. Goal: Increased acceptance of
measures related to protective factors.

Outcome 3 result: 25% of the students strongly agreed with the

statement before the sessions. After the sessions, 41.4% of students strongly agreed that they
knew of sources for supporting survivors, an increase of 65%.

Priority:
Closing the Gaps in Access and Care

Champaign County Christian Health Center
Mental Health Care at CCCHC $33,000

A psychiatrist provides direct mental health care to patients; mental health patients receive
mental health screenings, primary care, prescriptions, and referrals to specialized care as
needed. Primary care providers also treat or refer those with mental health conditions, especially
anxiety and depression. Provided to any uninsured and underinsured resident of Champaign
County, typically between the ages of 18 and 64 (as those under 18 and over 64 generally have
some form of health care coverage).

Utilization targets: 200 TPC, 500 NTPC, 800 SC, 8 CSE, 100 Other
Utilization result: 183 TPC, 1389 NTPC, 70 SC, 33 CSE, 19 Other

63



Outcome 1 target: 500 patients will be screened to assess mental health needs.

Outcome 1 result: CCCHC did not reach the 500 goal for screening (strictly for mental health) —
other screening was conducted at events.

Outcome 2 target: 50 patients will receive ongoing mental health care.

Outcome 2 result: Achieved.

Outcome 3 target: 75 patients will have acute mental health issues treated/addressed.
Outcome 3 result: Closer to 50 for direct acute mental health issues addressed.

Champaign County Health Care Consumers
CHW Outreach & Benefit Enrollment $86,501

Works with individuals experiencing behavioral health issues, helping them enroll in health
insurance, food stamps, and other public benefits programs. Community Health Workers help
stabilize individuals with resources and benefits and help navigating the health care system to get
their needs met... establishes trust with clients by helping them gain and maintain access to many
needed benefits, provides emotional support, and helps them identify services they need in a
non-stigmatizing and supportive way.

Utilization targets: 160 TPC, 25 NTPC, 780 SC, 8 CSE,11 Other (Rx fund)
Utilization result: 279 TPC,19 NTPC, 1305 SC, 22 CSE, 12 Other (Rx fund)

Outcome 1 target: 120 new TPC clients and 40 continuing clients.

Outcome 1 result: 273 TPCs and 60 continuing clients.

Outcome 2 target: Eligible clients require various services, including applications for Medicaid,
Medicare, SNAP, and hospital financial assistance, along with healthcare navigation support for
accessing behavioral health, oral health, vision, and medical care.

Outcome 2 result: All TPC benefit applications were approved, and approximately 91% of clients
seeking access to care or healthcare navigation services received the necessary assistance. The
remaining 9% did not follow through for various reasons, preventing them from accessing
requested services like mental health counseling or substance use treatment.

Outcome 3 target: Estimated most clients would apply for 2 programs, which may include
Medicaid, SNAP, Medicare or related, hospital financial assistance, prescription assistance, and
affordable dental or vision care.

Outcome 3 result: Average 3.7 applications per client, with many requiring 3 or more
simultaneously.

Champaign County Health Care Consumers
Disability Application Services $105,000

Evaluations of disabling conditions and determinations of whether to apply for SSI or SSDI or
both (depending on client's work history); assistance applying for and appealing adverse
decisions; coordinating with attorney if an appeal is needed; emotional/psychological support for
individuals applying. The decision to apply for disability and the process of doing so can be
challenging to the individual as they must come to terms with the idea that they are "disabled."
Additional services include helping clients to access health services to document their disabling
conditions.

Utilization targets: 69 TPC,8 NTPC, 700 SC, 5 CSE, 12 Other (Rx fund)
Utilization result: 139 TPC, 21 NTPC, 1460 SC, 21 CSE, 49 Other (Rx fund)

Outcome 1 target: 42 new clients and 27 continuing clients.

Outcome 1 result: 139 total (17 Continuing) clients.
Outcome 2 target: 2 new clients every month to start new applications.

64



Outcome 2 result: 9 new clients per month.

Outcome 3 target: Anticipated that many clients would need help with additional services and
applications, such as Medicaid and SNAP.

Outcome 3 result: Clients receive assistance with various applications, including Medicaid and
SNAP, in addition to their disability applications. The Disability Application Specialist also aids in
housing navigation.

Champaign County Regional Planning Commission — Community Services
Homeless Services System Coordination $54,281

Supports, facilitates, and directs the IL-503 Continuum of Care (CoC) aka Champaign County
Continuum of Service Providers to the Homeless; supports the body’s mission to end
homelessness in Champaign County through a coordinated network of resources for those who
are homeless or at-risk of becoming homeless; coordinates efforts across the CoC membership
to support its goals and the Homeless Emergency and Rapid Transition to Housing (HEARTH)
Act regulations; and builds and maintains collaborative partnerships with members and affiliates,
working closely with the Executive Committee.

Utilization targets: 10 TPC, 45 NTPC, 60 SC, 30 CSE
Utilization result: 23 TPC, 30 NTPC, 205 SC, 29 CSE

Outcome 1 target: The IL-503 CSPH will replace the VI-SPDAT as the assessment tool utilized
for the Coordinated Entry System.

Outcome 1 result: The Place Value or the Matching to Appropriate Placement (MAP)
assessment tool replaced the VI-SPDAT.

Outcome 2 target: Next Steps of the Racial Equity Assessment will be conducted within CSPH.
Outcome 2 result: The CoC Coordinator presented data on the race and ethnicity breakdown of
clients served in recent individual HMIS reporting projects to the CSPH Executive Committee. A
Racial Equity Committee was established within the CSPH.

Outcome 3 target: The CSPH will receive ongoing feedback and recommendations from people
with lived experience of homelessness.

Outcome 3 result: The CSPH hosted a focus group with Strides Shelter guests and a focus
group with just the women staying at Strides Shelter. Additionally, as of December 2024, the two
seats on the CSPH Executive Committee for individuals with lived experience of homelessness
have been filled. In March 2025, the CSPH formed a standing committee for people with lived
experience of homelessness which meets monthly.

Community Service Center of Northern Champaign County
Resource Connection $68,609

A multi-service program aimed at assisting residents of northern Champaign County with basic
needs and connecting them with mental health and other resources. Serves as a satellite site for
various human service agencies providing mental health, physical health, energy assistance, and
related social services. Features an emergency food pantry, prescription assistance, clothing and
shelter coordination, and similar services for over 1,700 households.

Utilization targets: 1500 NTPC, 3700 SC, 900 Other (contacts with other agencies using
CSCNCC as a satellite site), 0 CSE
Utilization result: 1460 NTPC, 5598 SC, 933 Other, 2 CSE

Outcome 1 target: Better access to mental health/other social services.

Outcome 1 result: 61.5% of respondents used multiple services from the program or other
agencies in the CSCNCC facility.

65



Outcome 2 target: Immediate assistance with emergency food, clothing referral, prescription
assistance, and utility assistance.

Outcome 2 result: # households and individuals linked to immediate agency services is
documented (but not reported in POR.)

Outcome 3 target: Improved linkage and access to a variety of social services in one location.
Outcome 3 result: Linkage data can be obtained by requesting from agencies (not reported in
POR). Over 15 agencies currently see clients at the facility.

Outcome 4 target: Decreased food insecurity.

Outcome 4 result: 61.5% of respondents surveyed utilize multiple services, with a noted
increase in food pantry usage.

Outcome 5 target: Increased psychological well-being.

Outcome 5 result: In the annual survey, the Person Well-Being Index — Adult, known for its
reliability and validity, was used to measure well-being. Clients provided data resulting in a PWI
score of 69.8, a 4% increase from the previous year, indicating very normal levels of subjective
well-being.

Outcome 6 target: Perceived cultural competency of staff.

Outcome 6 result: The lowa Cultural Understanding Assessment indicated a cultural
competency score of 4.17 for PY25, reflecting a very high level of staff cultural competency on a
scale of 1-5.

Outcome 7 target: Satisfaction with services.

Outcome 7 result: Client satisfaction score for services is 4.7 on a 1-5 scale, indicating high
satisfaction.

Cunningham Children’s Home
ECHO Housing and Employment Support $203,710

Housing First Approach: prioritized permanent housing as a platform from which participants can
pursue goals and improve quality of life. Customized Employment: connects eligible participants
with lllinois workNet as an approach towards competitive employment for individuals with
significant disabilities; program based on determination of individuals' strengths, needs, and
interests. Case management: assists participants in applying for eligible benefits.

Utilization targets: 20 TPC, 15 NTPC, 510 SC, 25 CSE
Utilization result: 29 TPC, 8 NTPC, 1053 SC, 89 CSE, 1 Other

Outcome 1 target: At least 75% of people will obtain permanent housing within 120 days of
assessment.

Outcome 1 result: 80% (24 of 30) secured permanent housing, with 92% (22 of 24) achieving
this within 120 days of program enroliment.

Outcome 2 target: At least 80% of participants who obtain permanent housing will maintain this
housing for more than 90 days.

Outcome 2 result: 100% (23 of 23) who secured permanent housing and stayed in the program
for over 90 days maintained their housing for 90 days.

Outcome 3 target: At least 70% of individuals will obtain employment within 90 days of
assessment and/or will have secured applicable social security benefits prior to discharge.
Outcome 3 result: 83% (25 of 30) achieved employment (n = 15) and/or received social security
benefits (n = 10).

Outcome 4 target: At least 80% of clients receiving both pre- and post- life skills assessment will
show improvement in life skill mastery.

Outcome 4 result:

4 of 9 (44%) increased life skills as measured by the assessment tool

2 of 9 (22%) had the maximum score at both pre- and post-measure (no improvement possible)
1 of 9 (11%) clients had no change between admission and discharge (pre-test score was 99%)
2 of 9 (22%) clients decreased in score between admission and discharge. Both had the
maximum score at admission and lower score at discharge.

66



Family Service of Champaign County
Counseling $30,000

Affordable, accessible counseling services to families, couples and people of all ages. Serves
Drug Court clients and participates in Specialty Courts collaboration. Clients are given tools and
supports to successfully deal with life challenges such as divorce, marital and parent/child
conflict, depression, anger management, anxiety, abuse, substance abuse/dependency, and
trauma. Strength-based, client-driven services utilize family and other natural support systems
and are respectful of the client’s values, beliefs, traditions, customs, and personal

preferences. Clients can be as young as 5.

Utilization targets: 40 TPC, 20 NTPC
Utilization result: 15 TPC, 28 NTPC

Outcome 1 target: Individuals receiving services will report improvement in four areas of
functioning: individual, relational, social and overall.

Outcome 1 result: 100% of treatment plan clients who completed both an initial and follow-up
ORS score demonstrated improvement; 5 clients achieved a benchmark score of 35-40; 3 clients
were minors, and one had dementia, thus were not surveyed for the ORS.

Outcome 2 target: Individuals who have a treatment plan will meet the treatment goals that they
established with their therapist.

Outcome 2 result: 17% of closed TPCs met their goals, 80% made progress, and 3% made no
progress. For open cases, 100% made progress on their goals. Three clients will have a
treatment plan review in the first quarter of FY26 (therefore no data on them for the POR).
Outcome 3 target: Individuals who have a treatment plan will have improvement in their
functioning over the course of treatment.

Outcome 3 result: GAF and WHODAS scores for treatment plan clients: 76% increased their
GAF or WHODAS scores. 24% saw no improvement in the score.

Outcome 4 target: Drug Court clients will complete a relationship assessment with the therapist.
The therapist will make recommendations for additional services if appropriate.

Outcome 4 result: 100% of Drug Court clients who called to schedule an appointment for a
Relationship Assessment completed their appointment.

Family Service of Champaign County
Self-Help Center $28,930

Self-Help Center maintains and publishes information about and referral to local support

groups. Provides information about local self-help groups and provides training, assistance, and
publicity for group facilitators in Champaign County. Information is available online and in printed
directory and specialized support group listings. Provides consultation services, workshops,
conferences, educational packets and maintains a lending library of resource materials.

Utilization target: 300 CSE
Utilization result: 259 CSE

Outcome 1 target: Through the Self-Help Center, individuals and families will be made aware of
self-help groups and provided information and/or referral to a group(s) appropriate to their needs
(when one is available).

Outcome 1 result: Staff engaged in 5 community fairs, recorded information on over 200 support
groups, distributed 90 printed directories, addressed 32 information and referral calls, achieved
3653 website views, responded to 691 email contacts, distributed 3 editions of the newsletter.

67



Outcome 2 target: Through the Self-Help Center, individuals wanting to start a group and group
leaders experiencing difficulties will be able to effectively start and lead groups (through
consultation services, trainings, and additional resources) and group visibility will increase.
Outcome 2 result: Staff met with potential members for a new support group, but the effort did
not proceed. New books were added to the SHC library, and four workshops were conducted:
one in the fall on leadership for support group leaders, which received a perfect score from eight
participants, and three in partnership with Champaign Public Health District focusing on women's
wellness, garnering positive feedback. The planned conference, “Living Beyond Covid: Building
Better Communities Together,” scheduled for May 8 with Dr. Kevin Tan as keynote speaker, was
cancelled due to insufficient sign-ups.

Outcome 3 target: Professionals will be able to use the Self-Help Center to find self-help groups
for client referrals and learn effective collaboration methods with these groups. This includes
distributing printed Support Group Directories, Specialized Lists, quarterly newsletters, and
website information to group leaders and professionals.

Outcome 3 result: 90 support group directories were distributed in Champaign County, with at
least 32 callers and 691 emailers receiving information on self-help groups and SHC activities.
Specialized lists are available in the lobby and at health fairs attended by Family Service.
Outcome 4 target: The SHC coordinator will monitor and track the existence of the support
groups in Champaign County to better know and understand the demographics of the groups and
maintain relationships with group leaders.

Outcome 4 result: A survey was conducted among self-help and support group leaders,
resulting in three responses after multiple outreach attempts. Key findings indicated that all
groups were peer-led, with no professional involvement, and topics included Substance Use
Disorder, Co-dependency, and Depression and Bi-polar disorder. Group sizes ranged from 8 to
15 attendees. Common challenges included limited visibility, low attendance, resource
constraints, and leadership fatigue. The groups expressed a desire for continued access to
directories and workshops and suggested increased promotion for support groups via platforms
like WCIA and Facebook.

Family Service of Champaign County
Senior Counseling & Advocacy $178,386

Caseworkers assist with needs and challenges faced by seniors (60 or older) with multiple needs
in terms of their emotional and/or physical health, as well as their requesting assistance in
completing numerous applications and contacts with various safety net programs and service
providers. Services are provided over the phone, Zoom, in the home, or in the community.

Utilization targets: 325 TPC, 700 NTPC, 2900 SC, 4 CSE, 2500 Other
Utilization result: 179 TPC, 592 NTPC, 3392 SC, 19 CSE, 323 Other

Outcome 1 target: People will be referred to needed services for anxiety, depression, and/or
social isolation.

Outcome 1 result: Case managers, now Aging Services Navigators, assess clients for anxiety,
loneliness, and other mental health issues. They may refer clients to PEARLS for coaching aimed
at reinvigorating seniors or enroll them in Creativity on Wheels (COW), which delivers art supplies
bimonthly. COW includes follow-up calls to discuss activities and monitor loneliness. This
program complements the Friendly Caller initiative, providing regular social contact. Seniors are
encouraged to participate in activities at the new Stevick Senior Center, which offers options such
as BINGO, card games, and crafting groups.

Outcome 2 target: People will have reduced anxiety, depression, and social isolation scores.
Outcome 2 result: 9-month UCLA score reduction from Pre-Test was 6.00 to 4.00.

Outcome 3 target: PEARLS clients will have reduced PHQ-9 scores.

Outcome 3 result: 100% of PEARLS clients assessed using the PHQ-9 show improvements in
scores. The program is prioritized for growth due to positive feedback about its curriculum,
particularly regarding PHQ-9 advancements. However, Family Service faces challenges in

68



encouraging potential participants. Joy Jones is now responsible for promoting and enrolling
individuals in PEARLS to enhance awareness and access to this effective resource for seniors.
Outcome 4 target: People beginning Healthy-Aging classes will complete the series.
Outcome 4 result: During FY2025, 56 clients completed Healthy-Aging classes, while 19 more
started a class set for completion in Q1 of FY2026.

GCAP
Advocacy, Care, and Education (New) $61,566

Addresses existing gaps in care for people living with HIV/AIDS (PLWHA)... holistic support,
empowering individuals through: Independent Living Skills (education on life skills, budgeting,
managing finances, and building self-reliance); Transportation Assistance (access to essential
services, appointments, and opportunities); and Social Connection & Belonging (access to
community activities, learning, and peer support). People to be served are those in GCAP
transitional or emergency/rapid rehousing units, those who are unsheltered or at risk of becoming
unsheltered and interested in GCAP housing or supportive services, and those receiving
emergency assistance.

Utilization targets: 8 CSE, 20 SC, 60 NTPC, 10 TPC, 0 Other (hours of assistance)
Utilization result: 13 CSE, 40 SC, 96 NTPC, 19 TPC, 72 Other

Outcome 1-1 target: 90% of clients will score 25% or higher than their score upon intake on the
Rosenberg Self-Esteem Scale (RSES) at discharge.

Outcome 1-1 result: 100% of participants scored 25% or higher on the RSES at discharge. 94%
of clients scored 25% or higher on the RSES at end of Q4

Outcome 1-2 target: The average client score on the Self-Sufficiency Matrix (SSM) at discharge
will be 15 or higher (scale 0-30).

Outcome 1-2 result: The average SSM score at discharge was 18.

Outcome 1-3 target: Upon discharge, clients will have average score of +0.5 or higher on GAS.
Outcome 1-3 result: Clients discharged from the program in FY25 had an average of +1 across
all domains.

Outcome 2-1 target: 90% of clients will score 25% or higher than their score upon intake on the
Rosenberg Self-Esteem Scale (RSES) at discharge.

Outcome 2-1 result: 100% of participants scored 25% or higher on the RSES at discharge. 94%
of clients scored 25% or higher on the RSES at end of Q4.

Outcome 2-2 target: 90% of clients will score 25% or higher than their score upon intake on the
Multidimensional Scale of Perceived Social Support (MSPSS) at discharge.

Outcome 2-2 result: 94% of participants scored 25% or higher on the MSPSS.

Outcome 2-3 target: The average total score on the Multidimensional Scale of Perceived Social
Support (MSPSS) at discharge will be 15 or higher. 15 is chosen as scores 15-25 are considered
to be within normal range.

Outcome 2-3 result: The average MSPSS score was 20.

Outcome 3-1 target: 90% of clients will score 25% or higher than their score upon intake on the
Rosenberg Self-Esteem Scale (RSES) at discharge.

Outcome 3-1 result: 100% of participants scored 25% or higher on the RSES at discharge.
Outcome 3-2 target: the average participant score on the Self-Sufficiency Matrix (SSM) at
discharge will be 15 or higher (scale 0-30).

Outcome 3-2 result: The average SSM score at discharge was 18.

Outcome 4-1 target: 90% of clients will report a reduction in barriers related to access to
nutrition support, healthcare, and medication within the first 90 days of the program.

Outcome 4-1 result: 100% of clients reported significant reductions in barriers related to access
to nutrition support, healthcare, and medication within the first 90 days of the program.

Outcome 4-2 target: 90% of clients that identified as having a significant barrier (e.g., lack of
transportation, childcare, insurance coverage) will report that this barrier has been fully or partially
resolved at the point of discharge.

69



Outcome 4-2 result: 100% of participants reported a reduction in barriers upon discharge.
However, only 60% reported full reduction of barriers.

Outcome 5-1 target: 100% of clients will meet with their case manager to complete a
motivational interviewing assessment to define goals, goal readiness, goal importance, and to
create a goal achievement plan.

Outcome 5-1 result: 100% completed the motivational interviewing assessment and were
involved in creation of their goal achievement plan.

Outcome 5-2 target: The average Goal Achievement Scaling (GAS) score across all participants
at discharge will be +0.5 or higher.

Outcome 5-2 result: Clients who were discharged from the program in FY25 had an average of
+1 across all domains.

GROW in lllinois
Peer Support $157,690

A peer support group assisting with personal recovery and mental health of individual sufferers
which may include addictions. Through leadership and community building, individuals attending
weekly group meetings are given the tools and support to help them in their recovery and
personal growth. Weekly group meetings / Organizer and Recorder meetings, Leaders meetings,
and monthly socials. Groups (3 to 15 members) include in-person as well as virtual sessions for
men and for women, and are held in various locations around the County, including the
Champaign County Jail.

Utilization targets: 150 NTPC, 2000 SC, 24 CSE
Utilization result: 332 NTPC, 2511 SC, 25 CSE

Outcome 1 target: Decreased hospitalization frequency (from participant survey).

Outcome 1 result: 52% of surveyed individuals had not been hospitalized, while 8.7% were
hospitalized twice, and 13% once. Additionally, 24 individuals reported never being hospitalized in
their lifetime, 1 had over 10 hospitalizations, and 6 had been hospitalized once. 26 had a
diagnosis of some mental illness.

Outcome 2 target: Decreased medication (from participant survey).

Outcome 2 result: 37% were not on any medication, while 30% were on 2 or 3. Additionally,
17% collaborated with their doctor to decrease their medication.

Outcome 3 target: Increased use of social resources (from participant survey).

Outcome 3 result: 31 individuals reported an increased knowledge of social resources according
to the survey.

Outcome 4 target: Increased personal growth (from participant survey).

Outcome 4 result: 21 individuals strongly agreed that there was an increase in personal growth,
11 agreed, and 6 more both agreed and disagreed.

Outcome 5 target: Increased wellbeing (from NIH toolbox Emotional support participant survey).
Outcome 5 result: 38 individuals are very satisfied with the help received from GROW
friendship; 31 individuals report an increased sense of wellbeing; 4 report most of the time.
Outcome 6 target: Increased number of participants in leadership roles (from participant survey
and internal reports).

Outcome 6 result: 54.3% of participants were not involved in any leadership role, while 45% had
taken on such positions. Additionally, there were 299 instances of duplicated attendance for three
hours each, totaling 3,112 hours dedicated to support activities, including GROW groups,
Organizers and Recorders Meetings, Leaders' meetings, and social events, all of which require
leadership for organization and planning.

Outcome 7 target: Satisfaction with GROW program (from participant survey).

Outcome 7 result: 65.2% of participants were very satisfied with the program, 28.3% were
satisfied, and 4.3% were indifferent. Additionally, 45 individuals felt that GROW aided their
recovery from mental illness, while 41 developed personal resources, 38 noted improvements in
personal growth and maturity, and 35 reported better relationships and friendships.

70



Promise Healthcare
Mental Health Services with Promise $330,000

Mental health services to achieve the integration of medical and behavioral health care as
supported by both the National Council for Community Behavioral Healthcare and the National
Association of Community Health Centers. Mental health and medical providers collaborate,
make referrals, and even walk a patient down the hall to meet with a therapist. Patients receive
MH treatment through counselor, psychiatrist, or primary care provider. Counseling and
psychiatry available at Frances Nelson, Promise Healthcare, Promise Urbana School Health
Center, and by appointment.

Counseling Utilization targets: 600 TPC, 400 NTPC, 2800 SC, 4 CSE, 50 Other (patients with
no other pay source)

Counseling Utilization result: 806 TPC, 1029 NTPC, 3226 SC, 265 Other (patients with no
other pay source)

Psychiatric Utilization targets: 1000 TPC, 900 NTPC (receiving psych meds through primary
care), 3200 SC (psychiatric service encounters), 2 CSE, 100 Other (patients with no other pay
source)

Psychiatric Utilization result: 2615 TPC, 4218 NTPC (receiving psych meds through primary
care), 9446 (psychiatric service encounters), 4 CSE (Cl Living presentations), 545 Other (patients
with no other pay source)

Outcome 1a target: Serve 1,000 TPC and NTPCs with Counseling services.

Outcome 1a result: 904

Outcome 1ai target: Serve 1,900 TPC and NTPCs with Psychiatry services.

Outcome 1ai result: 2,011

Outcome 2a target: Conduct 2 CSEs on psychiatric topics.

Outcome 2a result: 0

Outcome 2ai target: Conduct 4 CSEs on mental health issues.

Outcome 2ai result: 22

Outcome 3a target: 2,800 total encounters to low-income patients in need of counseling
services.

Outcome 3a result: 3,246

Outcome 3ai target: 3,200 total encounters to low-income patients with psychiatric needs.
Outcome 3ai result: 9,722

Promise Healthcare
Promise Healthcare Wellness $107,078

Case Managers and Community Health Workers assist patients to address barriers to care,
access to transportation, Medicaid and Marketplace insurance enroliment, Promise Sliding Fee
Scale enroliment, SNAP enroliment, and enrollment in Medication Assistance Programs. Accepts
outside referrals for behavioral health services and enabling services. Staff assess patient need
for enabling services and assist individuals in accessing behavioral health services.

Utilization targets: 200 TPC, 400 NTPC, 1600 SC, 15 CSE, 150 Other (Utilizing a Social
Determinant of Health screening tool - PRAPARE).
Utilization result: 410 TPC, 1,807 NTPC, 2,563 SC, 40 CSE, 924 Other

Outcome 1 target: Assist a minimum of 1,600 patients with linkages to social services

(transportation, health insurance enrollment, employment, housing, food, etc.) to remove barriers
to healthcare services and treatment plans.

71



Outcome 1 result: 1906 patients

Outcome 2 target: Maintain a robust referral system with 35+ community partner organizations
who provide at least 1,100 referrals from outside entities to Promise Healthcare to accept low-
income patients in need of psychiatric, mental health, and case management services.
Outcome 2 result: 1853 referrals.

Outcome 3 target: Conduct a minimum of 150 patient assessments utilizing a Social
Determinant of Health screening tool (PRAPARE).

Outcome 3 result: 106 patient assessments.

Rosecrance Central lllinois
Benefits Case Management $84,625

Benefits Case Manager assists clients with benefits enroliment, outreach and education, benefits
counseling, and assistance with obtaining myriad resources available to behavioral health clients.
Helps clients obtain the benefits necessary to receive coverage for behavioral health and medical
services, as well as other public benefit programs. May assist clients with access to housing,
employment, healthy food, and other resources.

Utilization targets: 600 SC, 250 NTPC
Utilization result: 521 SC, 167 NTPC

Outcome 1 target: 100% of those seeking information, assistance with applications, or referral
will receive an appointment for services.

Outcome 1 result: 100% of those seeking an appointment received an appointment for services.
Outcome 2 target: Clients seeking services will be offered an appointment within 5 business
days of referral, call, or walk-in.

Outcome 2 result: 83% provided with a service with the Benefits Case Manager within 5 days.
Outcome 3 target: 100% of eligible clients will be assisted with benefits acquisition.

Outcome 3 result: 100% of clients who attended scheduled appointment with Benefits Case
Manager received assistance.

Outcome 4 target: 600 contacts to assist clients with benefits acquisition will be completed
annually.

Outcome 4 result: 521 contacts to assist clients.

Rosecrance Central lllinois
Recovery Home $100,000

An alcohol and drug-free environment that provides individuals a safe, supportive living
environment. Individuals go through a peer support recovery program while developing
independent living skills in a community setting. Staff assist clients in addressing “problems in
living” and the social determinants of health. The recovery home model demonstrates efficacy in
mitigating risk of relapse and decreasing psychiatric symptoms when involved in 12-Step
recovery and developing social supports.

Utilization targets: 22 TPC, 65 SC
Utilization result: 14 TPC, 53 SC

Outcome 1 target: Successful linkage to items in individualized plan such as: affordable housing,
vocational/educational resources, medical, dental, psychiatric/counseling services; engagement
in 12-step support groups.

Outcome 1 result: 100% of participants were linked with at least one resource

identified on their individual service plans while in the program.

Outcome 2 target: Step down to less intensive services.

Outcome 2 result: 73% of clients stepped down to less intensive services.

72



Outcome 3 target: Secured housing.

Outcome 3 result: 44% were able to secure stable housing at time of discharge.
Outcome 4 target: Secured employment or engagement in education program.
Outcome 4 result: 74% were employed or enrolled in an education program while in the
recovery home.

Terrapin Station Sober Living, Inc.
Recovery Home $44,436 (Contract cancelled after 2" Quarter)

Equitable housing for dual diagnosis persons in recovery from drug addiction, homelessness, and
the justice system, in a manner that is forward-thinking and original. Intensive individualized case
management; support for activities of daily living and relapse prevention skills; access to
vocational/educational programs; assistance linking to medical, psychiatric, counseling, and
dental services in the community; education on money management/budgeting; education on
accessing peer or community supports and activities such as church, AA/NA meetings, other
sobriety-based/mental health support groups, recreational activities, transportation services, and
provision of service work/volunteer/work opportunities.

Utilization targets: 9 NTPC
Utilization result: 5 NTPC

Outcome 1 target: Participants will experience decreased likelihood of relapse, homelessness,
and recidivism and will gradually adjust to community living while increasing sustainability of
recovery supports.

Outcome 1 result: Data not reported due to shortened contract period and loss of the program’s
director and founder.

In memory of Terrapin’s Founder, Nelson K. Novak, who leveraged his own creativity, genius,
and recovery to support others.

73



(This page is intentionally left blank.)

74



pJeog YijeaH |eiusa|n Ajuno) ugdiedwey)
9yl Ag papun4 sweusold Joj
S0day 921AI3S wea3oud Ja1enD pug 920ZAd

75



%LCT
$Jd1 OET
S2d1 991

SJdl Ss€

SJd1 O€T
SJdl

%S9
SJdLN O
SJdIN ¢¢
SOdIN S

SOdIN LT
SJOd1N

%15
sOS0LT
SJS 98
SJS ST

SOSTL
0N

(asn u1 jou) 10043u00 wWpiboud [pnpiAlpul ul paulap so 13Yy10
SIU3ID UD|d JUBWIIDAI] = DdL

SJU3I|D UDb|d JUBWIIDAIL-UON = DdIN

$1003U0) BUIUS31IS JO 10DIUO) JIINISS = IS

SIUANT S2INIAS ANUNWWO) = 35
:suonutfaqg A106310H uonvZIIIN

%S¢
5350 8
s3S0 ¢
$3S0 ¢

S350 0
S350

‘Aduade ay3 Aq papinoad syuswwod oN

:sjuswwo) Aduasdy

EINRIERIER
39b4p] [pNUUY
|eiol

Jayuenp 2

J31eNYD I
sa140823e) uonezijun

ejeq Ajenenp

1Jo0day AlAnoy weladodd 720 9ZAd
J91ua) Adedoapy s,ualp|iyd Ajuno) udiedweyd — J¥IID

76



(s1uaind pup [fois

yum spioffa yuawdojanap |puoissajotd ‘sbujuipiy ‘sdoysyiom |puoLpPINPI-0YIASH) 12043u00 Wnaboid [pnpiaipul ui pauLfap so 43Y10
SIU3ID Ub|d JUBWIIDAI[ = D]

SIU3ID Ub|d JUBWIDAI[-UON = DdIN

$1003U0) bUIU3343S 10 12DIUO) JINIIS = IS

S1UaNg S32INI3S AjIUunwiwo) = 35

:suonyutfaqg A106310H uonvZIIIN

‘Aduade ay3 Aq papinoad syuswwod oN

:Sjuawwo) Aduasdy

%S¢ %06 %TE %CC %08 19|\ JUad43d
19410 CT sJd1 00T SOdAIN 08€ sJOS 000€ 53S0 6 19b.ip] [pnuuy
19Yl0 € SJd1 06 SOd1IN 9T1 SIS S/L°/99 SISO ¥ |[elol
19Y10 ¢ $Jdl 0€ SJd1N 6€ SJS SC'E8E S350 ¢ J91enp ,,¢
1BYlo T S$Od1 09 SOdIN LL SOS §'178¢ S3SO ¢ Jouenp T
13430 sJdL SDdLIN $JS 535D sali08a1e) uoneziun

ejeq Ajenenp

Hoday ANARdY weldold 7D 9ZAd
SAS UY1|eaH [e1us|A pooyp|iyd Alie3 — 1eis peaH AjJe3-1eis peaHq — Dd4d)

77



(*sauj1o0f 3402Y1 DAY 413Y10 03 Paliafal spuanpd Aup) 1o043u02 wWpiboad [pnpiaipul ul pauLfap so 43yl0
SIU3ID Ub|d JUBWIIDAI[ = D]

SIU3ID Ub|d JUBWIDAI[-UON = DdIN

$1003U0) bUIU334IS 10 1ODIUOD JINIIS = IS

SIUaNT S32INI3S AUNWIWO) = 35

:suonutfag A1063a1p) uonvZIIIN

‘syuaned ||eJ9A0 S40W dJe I3y
‘Adesayy pe pue weisgosd Aduapisad dl3elyoAsd s ade) wody a4ed yijeay |elusw SuUlAII4 9S0Y3 A[Id141S 4. SJUd||d Juswieall 67 9yl
‘9)doad g/ ¢ Sundedwi 4snienb ayy ul syuss g ul Suneddnled Jo/pue SuldNPUOd Y3noayl SuoJls 9q 01 SNULIUOI SIIOYD YIeauino unQ

:Sjuawwo) Aduasdy

%CT %CS %CLT %9 %CTT 19|\ 1U3dJ9(d
49410 00T sJd1 00 SOdIN 00S sOS 00S $3S0 9T 12b64p] [onuuy
19yl0o ¢T SJdl €0T SJOd1IN 898 SJS 0€ $3SDO 8T [erol
1PYi0 L SJdl 6¢ SJOdIN S.€ $JS 0¢ s3S0 8 J9yenp ¢
19Y10 9 SOdl vL SOd1N €8V SOSOT S3SO 0T Jauenp T
13410 sJdL SOdIN $2S 5315 saioga1e) uoneziiun

ejeq Ajenenp

Hoday AlAndY wetdold 20 9ZAd
welt304d YijeaH |eiusin -191ua) yijeaH uensiayd Aiuno) ugdiedweyd

78



(212 ‘Wwpaboud xy ui paianod suondrasald fo saquinpn) 12043u00 wWpaboad [pnpiaipul Ul pauLfap so 4aYi0
SJU3I[D Ub|d JUaWIIPAI] = Dd L

SJU3I[D UDb|d JUAWIIDAIL-UON = IdIN

$1001U0) BUIUS34IS 4O 12DIUOD) 3IINIIS = IS

SIUANT $2IAIAS AJUNWWO) = IS

:suonurfaq A10b63ap) uonvzIN

Juawdinba [eaipaw djgesnp pue ‘suondiasald ‘ssuoyd 994y yum djay Suipn|aul ‘s92IAISS JO AJalJeA B U0) D49M U340 Japun QT 9yl

‘pasned asay}
uopeJsisniy pue Alaixue ayy pue sadueyd 9sayl Jo }nsal e se 4auenb snoiaaud ay) 01 pasedwod ‘SOSS JNO Ul 1dS 9y} 995 Ued NOA
‘awl} 3544 9y 404 uejd mau e 9SO0YD 03 P40} Sul9q 949m - sue|d adejuenpy aJ4edIpalN pue adejdiayJe 9yl ydnoayl yioq - ajdoad
Auew se soeyp Jo |eap 1248 e pasned YdIym ‘aauel||y YijesaH jo Suipus pue aunjedap ayl IN0ge s||ed JO 10| e pap|ay OS|e 3/\\ "dwodul
S,3uU31|2 ay1 uo 3uipuadap ‘Yyuow e Ogs ueyl ssa| sulaq dn papus 1eyl sueld p|oo a|qepoye AIaA Ul ||0Jua SuU3l|d UNo Jo awos djay 01
3|ge a1am am ‘AjSuizewy ‘sue|d aoe|diayJe|A JO) SHPaID XB WNIWald Padueyul ayl Mauad 03 ssa43U0) JO ainjie) syl 1noge suonsanb
JO S10| pey sjual|d uno jo Auely "s1yauaq d¥NS Sulldaye umop 1nys Juswuianog syl pue juawjjosui uado yum Asng sem usrienb sy

:Sjuawwo) Aduasdy

%CCT %S0T %0¢T %TTT %0ST 19|\ 1U3dJ9d
19410 8T SJdl1 S9T SOdIN 0T $OS 0c6 $3S0 0T 196.4p] [pnuuYy
19410 ¢¢ SOdl €41 SOdIN CT $OS G¢0T $3SD qT |[erol
19410 0T SOd1 T8 SOdIN 8 $JS 8¢€9 s$3SD0 6 J9yenp ,,¢
19Yyl0 ¢T SJdl ¢6 SOdIN ¥ SOS /8¢ $3S0 9 Jauenp T

13410 sJdL SDdLN $JS 515 saioga1e) uoneziiun

ejeq Ajenenp

Hoday AlAnoy weltdold 70 9ZAd
1yauag g yoeasinQ MHD siawnsuo) ate) yijeaH Aiuno) udiedwey)

79



3M ‘SJ3Y30 J0j INQ ‘Suolpuod Yijeay |eaisAyd pue [ejoireyaq yioq Jo siseq ay3 uo Ajjiqesip Jojy wayl Ajdde am ‘awos Jo4 aJed yyeay
Jo adAy 1ey3 8uiyaas wWay} JO 3NS3J B SB PIIUSWNIOP 153 4B SUOLHIPUOI J13Y3} JO YdIYMm 4O siseq 3yl uo wayy Aldde am ‘syual|d asay}
Joj suopeajidde ay3y op am uaypn ‘suonipuod Suijgesip yieay |eaisAyd pue yijeay |esoineyaq yioq YHm s|enpiaipul aJe sjuai|d asayy
Jo Ajuofew 31sea ay] "2ouelsisse [eauaL JO dIuelsIsse dIysumo] palinbas oym asoyi aJe JayiQ Japun £z ay] 0312 ‘@ouelsisse diysumol
‘@auelsIsse |elual ‘dyNS ‘predipaln Suipnioul ‘iaoddns Jo Spupy ||e JO pPaSu Ul e pue ‘SSaUSSI|aWOoY 4O 9849A Y3 UO JO SSI|dWOoY dJe
Sjual|d Alljigesip Jno o Auely 1eaJ8 0S aue SPadU 3yl ASNEID ‘U0 SYJOM DDIHDD 1BY] SISEI DAISUSIUI ISOW B3 dJB SISED JUdl|d 3SaY |

'Spasu Jdwun uo dn

3uiyoies ‘Ajjeso] awooul 419yl puads AjjeaidAy sjuaip asayl asneaaq Awouods |ed0| Jno 3uld|ay pue spjoyasnoy pue sjenpiAlpul 9say3
01 32eq Asuow Suiduliq sI }40M JNQ ‘000 9SS J9A0 SI SN YlIM UOLIBWIOJUI 1BY] BJ4BYS 0] 9SO0YD OYM 3S0Y] WoJ) Junowe |e10l Aedyoeq
wns dwn| ayl pue ‘ypuow Jad Q0L ‘vTS 490 SI (SN YIIM uoljewoul siyl aJeys 0} 500yd OYyM suai|d 3yl wodj) syuasaudal siyl

12y} Swodul Ajyluow |B30} M3U JO JUNOWE 3y "SIUdID Jno Suowe siyauaq Ayjiqesip 404 sjerosdde mau T pey aAey am ‘Uaenb jsed
Syl “s9oujo diysumoj ay3 Suipnpul ‘AJunwwod JNo Ul S912USZe SNOJSWNU WOJ4 S[Bddd)24 PUe ‘S|euld4a] Yinow JO PJOM dABY M MOU
pue ‘siyl yum d|ay am 1eyl In0 S| PIOM Y] ‘S|etud4] YUM Paw|ayMIa0 A|919|dwod S| wesdoud sa21AI9S uonedljddy Anjigesig 4nQ

:Sjuawwo) Aduasdy

%.99 %LLT %09 %8ST %00¢€ 19|\l JU32.43d
19410 CT sJdl1 69 SOdIN 8 $JS 00/ 53S0 6 19b.4p] [pnuuy
49Y10 89 SOdlL ¢cT SOdIN ¥ SOS GOTT S$3SD 6T [elol
19410 L¢ SJd1 18 SJOdIN ¢ SJOST9L SIS0 L J91enp ,,¢
19Yl0 Ty SOdL 1V SOdIN ¢ SOS e S3SO 8 J91eny T

PYI0 $Jd1 SOdLN $JS 535D sali0891e) Uonez|un

ejeq AjJauenp

Hoday AlAndy wesdold 70 9ZAd
SOAS uonedl|ddy Ayljigesig-siawnsuo) aJe) yijeaH Aluno) ugdiedwey)

80



(*219 ‘vonwIIddD JYNS 10 PIDIIPIN ‘Punf Xy ayl Sp Yans ‘s32IN13s 413Y1Q) 19043u0d wpiboid [pnpiAlpul ul paulap so 13y10
SIU3ID Ub|d JUWIIDAI] = Id1

SJU3I[D Ub|d JUAWIIDAIL-UON = DdIN

$1001U0) BUIUS34IS 4O 12DIUOD) 3IINIIAS = IS

SIUANT $2INIAS AJUNWWO) = IS

:suonurfaq A10b63ap) uonvziN

‘'SuoLIpuUOd Yjjeay |esolneyaq 419yl Joj 24ed 3935
wayl djay uay3 ued am jeyl i1snJl ySnous ysijqeiss usyo am ‘suonedijdde asayl uo wayl Yum 3upom Jo ssasoud ay3 u| ‘pajeaiun
3ul9q aJe 1eyl suonipuod yijeay |esoineyaq aaey osje Asyl ysnoyl usas ‘suonipuod yijeay |eaisAyd Joj wayl Ajdde o3 aney 1ysiw

81



$1001U0) BUIUS34IS 4O 12DIUOD) 3IINIIS = IS
SIUANT $2IAIAS ANUNWWO) = IS
:suonutfag A1063310) uonvZIIIN

*219 ‘9aueisisse Ayjun ‘Suisnoy 1noge Suipnjoul ‘satdinbul JO S9J1AJ9S SNOBUE||DISIW JO4 dJe J9YI0 Japun € 3y

‘Aem 1ey3 siaylo djay 03 s|essa)ad 193 am

0s ‘Ayunwwod ay3 ul suaquaw Ajlwey 419yl djay o1 sn yse Ajjuanbauy sjual|d paseq-|1ef Jno ‘Os|y "SSIIAISS JNO 0} USWOM 3Y] 109UU0D
01 sd|ay yaiym ‘iel ayy ui Suiyoeal ase ejpne|) pue ayia|ned eyl ssed sunualed pue Adueudaid ays 4o 3nsaJ e se ‘ysed siedA ul ueyy
USWOM JO Jagquinu JaysIy e 9AI9S 03 dNULUOD SN "S9IIAIIS JNO INOCE YINOW JO PIOM JDYE |elldsaJ-§|9s J0 ‘Yels [1ef wody Suiwod ale
[ref 9yl ulyym sjelaad Jo Ayuofew ay] “19saw 03 9|qe aq 10u 31w Asyl yaiym ‘syuswadinbad yqom Sujwoddn syl 1noge paudaduod
9J4e 1nqg dYNS YUm d|ay paiinbas may v “luswieall asnge aouelsgns juared-ul 10§ 92Uesd3S0y 03 dueniwpe noge sutdinbul

9J9M oym pue ‘suonedijdde piedipalA J19yl yim djay papasu Oym S|ENPIAIPUI 919M Jalienb Siyy sjusijd paAjoAul @21SN[ JNO JO 1SOIN

%tre
13410 5T
1BY10 9
1PYIo €
1BYI0 €

1BYI0

%19 %CT
SJd1 0TT SJdLN Ss¢C
SJd1 0L SOdIN €
SOdl TE SOdIN ¢
SJdl 6€ SOdINT

SJdl SJdIN

:Sjuawwo) Aduasdy

%1S %0¢CT 19|\l JU3d.3d
SIS 0&C s3S0 01T 13b4p] [pnuuy
SOS LTT SISO ¢C1 [e1ol

SIS 19 SISO L Jauenp ,,¢
SIS 9¢ SISO § J91enp T
sJS s35) sa140891e) uonezijun

ejeq AjJouenp

1oday AlAndy welsold g0 92¢Ad

MHD PaA|OAU| @21SN[-S19WNSU0) aJe) yijeaH Ajuno) usdiedwey)

82



(212 ‘Wwpaboid xy ul paianod suondriasald fo saquinn) 12043u00 Wpaboad [pnpiaipul Ul pauLfap so 4aYi0
SJU3I[D Ub|d JUdWIIDAI] = Dd L
SJU3I[D UDb|d JUWIIDAIL-UON = DdIN

83



(:s1u31j2 yum anoy Aoof aya buisn sapUIBbL 43Y10 10Y3 S1I0IU0I Jo Jaquinu) 10043u0d Wnaboid [pnpinipul ul pauLfap so 43Y10
SIU3ID Ub|d JUBWIDAI[ = D]

SIU3ID Ub|d JUBWIDAI[-UON = DdIN

$1003U0) bUIU334IS 10 1ODIUOD JINIIS = IS

SIUaNT S32INI3S AUNWIWO) = 35

:suonyutfaqg A10631pH uonvZIIIN

‘'sweJsdoid papunj gHINDD apnjpul suaqunu Aduade 4ay3Q,, Y3 40 £/ ‘Ajuedyiudis asealdul 03 siaquinu

9593 109dxa am ‘Auenuer syl Jo pua ay3 1e Sunuels uiede 21suo spual|d ulaas weidoud dyIHIT S,DdH¥DD 40 uonippe ayl YU\ ‘sAepijoy
9y3 pue sanssi 3uyjels Aoua3e ease 01 3np si SIYL 493ienb 1siy ay3 wodj Ajpuedsyiudis aynb umop st pue Aouade Jno 1e 31SUO SIUI|D 93S
1eY3 sapuade eale Jo pasiadwod s| A1o3a31ed 4oyl 9y SuoLlpuod AJeuoniejjul JlWOU0I3 SUINULIUOI pue ‘SIIAIDS [euonippe Sulpasu
9|doad pue sadueyd |euswulIaA03 |e1dpay) Y3 01 anp Ajgeqoud ‘uiede Jayienb 1suy 490 %Tz dn aJe suaqwinu DdIN JNQO "SIDIAISS
4930 pue dyNS ul so8ueyd [eauswuiaA03 |e1opa) 9yl 03 9Np S|ela)24 pue uonewJsosul unsanbaa ajdoad 03 anp Ajay1] 1sow SI yd1ym
‘J93enb 31544 9y} WUy %SGT dn aJe S10e3u0) IIAISS JNQ "dduepuane ul 3jdoad QOg 490 03 suolisanb pasamsue pue s1dA|4 uonew.oul
Aduda8e 1no passed am a4aym ‘JUSAT USIMO||BH S,JuswWIedag uonealday |nojuey ay3 ul uonedded Jno sem Jauenb siyl 35D 4nO

:sjuswwo) Aduasdy

%8T %€6 %SS %00¢ 19|\l 1U3d.3d
412410 006 SOdLN 00ST  SDS 00TE€ 53S0 0 13b4p| [pnuuy
19410 6ST SOdLIN S6€ET  SOS 00LT S350 ¢ [e10]
19410 99T SJd1N 917¢ SJS 0T6 SISO 1T J91enp ,,¢

19Yl0O € SOdLIN 67TT SIS 06L SISO T 491enp T

Y10 SOdLIN sJS s35) sali08a1e) uoneziun

ejeq AjJouenp
11oday AlAnoy welddold 7D 9ZAd uoldauuo)
924n0Say-A1uno) ugdiedweyd) UIBYMON JO 491U 9IIAISS AJlunwiwo)

84



%31
5Jd.1 009
SOdLITTT

SJdl €

SOdl LL
SJdl

(asn uj Jou) 19043U02 Wpibo.d [pnpialpul Ul pauLfap so 4ayi0
SJU3I[D Ub|d JUaWIIPAI] = Dd L

SJU3I[D UDb|d JUAWIIDAIL-UON = IdIN

$1003U0) BUIU334IS 4O 19DIUOD 3IINIIS = IS

SIUANT $32INIAS AUNWWO) = 35D

:suonutfaqg A106310H uonvZIIIN

*Z0 Ul S90IAJSS 8U1]aSUN0D JO SINOY 8ET PAAIRIAI SIUBID Hi

:Sjuawwo) Aduasdy

%0T %LC %60¢ 19|\ 1U3d4ad
SJdLN 0ST SOS 0S4 5350 00 19b4p] [pnUUY
SJdLN ST SJS €0¢ SISO 61V [e10]
SOdINTT SIS T $3SJ0 0€¢ J91enp ,,¢
SOdLIN ¥ SJS 68 S350 681 J91enp T
SOdLIN sJS s35) sali08a1e) uoneziun

ejeq Ajenenp

Hoday ANARDY weldold 7D 9ZAd
uOL1O3UU0Y) 38eIN0)-UOLD3UU0Y) 93e1n0)

85



01 Ayljige J1ay3 syoedwi uany ul yarym Aaixue Jo/pue uoissasdap J1ay3 0} paje|as swordwAs sayisuajul os|e syl “1eyy yum uoje

SWO0D 1ey3 S|eldl 9yl pue aw 1siy 9y} Joj siaylow 3ulaq Sunediaeu os|e aJe 3Sow ‘s10ssaJls xa|dwod asoys 4o doy uQ "Suuauadxa
2Je A9y} S10SSaJ31S 9yl YUM way) d|ay ued suoissas wn|ndliind ay3 Jo saidol syl moy aziugdodau swow djay 03 pJey aq ued

11 ‘quawow 8y} ul 1e a1,Asyl a1aym wayl 19aw sisijerdads Ajiweq 1no 3|1y "S10ssaJ1s xa|dwod Sunedineu os|e ajiym so1dol wnjndLind
uo pasndoy ulewads 01 Ajljige siuased apnjoul sisije1dads Ajiwed Jno Aq pasualiadxs usaq aney eyl saduajjeyd sawos :sadud|eyd

*S10SS3J1S Jo swoldwAs ualind

1934e) 03 49pJO Ul Uoisuedxa JaYny 3SN PINO SUOISSAS YdIYym pue JISIA 3yl Ul 3uissaldxa 40 Supualuadxa s ays jeym uo Suipuadap
‘wow 01 |nydjay 1sow g |[IM SUOISSSS YdIym Suiziug0odaJ pue wnjndLINd saiqeg pue siayloln ayi Sunuaws|dwi ul 9duspyuod
paseaJsoul paoualiadxa aney sisije1dads Ajiwed Jno ‘saljiwe} J19y3 yum juoddeds pjing pue mou3 03 anuruod Asys sy ‘weadoud s,uslp|iyd
9Jes 4no Yy3nouy3 a4ed SISuI SUIAI9II JaJe Ajjeulalul PaLIasad 949M SI9YI0W MaU J9Y10 € JnQ ‘jeudsoy |eao] e y3noayl Jaylo ayl

pue isidesayl J19y31 ysnoayiy suo ‘wesdoud syl 1noge 3ulieay Joye SIA|9SWIY] 01 PaLIDJDI SI9YIOoW Z ‘SI9YI0W M3U G Jno JO ‘euequn
-uSiedwey) ul 3uipisal SI9Yl0oW { pue siaylow |ednJ G ‘Onjg puoAag ul pajjoJud Swow g pey am Uanenb 1siy 3yl UIYHAA :S955920N§

:Sjuawwo) Aduasdy

%S0T %LS %€a %1S %9¢ 19|\ JUad43d
19410 S8V SOdl I SOdIN 617 $OS §9¢ S350 S/ 19b.4n] |pNUUY
19Yl0 ¢TS SOdL T SJOdIN 9¢ SOS LET $3SD /L |e1o]
19Y10 vSE SJdl € SJd1N 9 S$JS 68 s3SI0 C1 J93enp ,,¢
19Y10 89T SJdl 6 SJOdIN 0¢ SIS 8Y S350 9T Jouenp T

3Y10 $Ddl SDdIN $JS 535D sali08a1e) UOneZI|NN

ejeq Ajenenp

Hoday AlAndy wesdold 70 9ZAd
Aluno) ugiedwey) an|g puoAag Aiasinp sisiuD

86



‘papusiul se wesdoud sy ul a8e3us 03

9NULUOD pue d1edIUNWWOD 0} d|ge U33q Ssey pue 3deds peay Jonaq yonw e olul 3uisea s WO "yidig pue Adueudaud 4oy noy3noayl
s3u||994 Jo 93ueJ Jay SsaulM 0} 103 | pe|3 we | pue ‘uawow 19aMs e sem Ageq Jay yum ano| ul pue Addey Jay Suleas "wow siy se
J9y smou ApeaJje aH “wiy Joj Sujw|ed s| Mou 3 Sulieay pue ‘quom dy3 Ul 1eaqueay s,wow J1ay3 Jeay ued saiqeq Moy noge pay||el
9/W\ "paw|ed ay pue 1sayd Jay 03 wiy nd ays ‘patd ay USYAA ‘quIoM 3yl Ul pay1| 9y uonisod awes ay3 ul Jay uo sAe| ay moy pue
Jley Yos SIy ‘spuey pue 1934 d|1| SIY 1noge payy|e1 ays U9AJ04 WIY pP|oy 03 Siuem Isnf pue wiy S9A0| 3ys ydonw moy JaA0 3ulysng pue
w1y uipjoy sem ays ‘p|o sAep gz Ajuo sem Ageq ayl 4ay 99s 03 JUaM | UBYAN 00| 01 Sul03 sem Sulpuog MOy pue yjjeay |eausw Jay
1N0Qe PauJa2U0I SEM PUB SIY} 3|puey p|NOM ays MOY 34ns 10U sem | ‘AjJea uioqg sem uos Jay ‘Suideduaal soye 3uo| JoN ‘Alixue pue
uoissaidap 949A3s Supualiadxa sem ays 1eyl mouy aw 3ula| pue 1no 3uiydead Joye pageduaad Ajjenuans ays ‘jewiuiw Aiaa 3ulaq
SUOLOLIUI JNO YHM SSWIL HSIA WJIyuod 03 43y 193 01 9|qeun sem | pue aalsuodsals 3uiaq paddois wolp ‘Adueudaud 1oy Jo pud Alaa
ay3 |nun AjjeaisAyd Jo Ajjeausaw Ageq sayi Joj asedaud 03 ajgeun sem pue 3ulAp Aqeq Jay Inoge Alaixue peq pey ays ‘|jews Sulansesw
sem Aqeq Jay pue ‘sadelssedsiw ajdujnw pey sey ays "p|iyd 1siy 49y Suiney sem oym wow jueusaid e yum 3upliom usaq aney |
:ypiq 3sod 3uipuoq se |[am se yuiq

0} Jolud uoissaidap pue Alaixue paseasdoul 3ulDUISAXS WOoW SWN-1SIY B UM YJOM I3y UO SII3[4aJ dPlieA elydos ‘1sijernads Ajiwey

's3ulj994 4oy 1noge jualedsueuy 3ulaqg pue sUSIA ma) e y3noayl Sulod Jaye 19|31n0 aAnIsod e sey ays 1| S|99) MOU 3ys 1eyl pailels

WOJA "S|93} 3ys moy 1noge uado si pue sadualiadxa Sunualed Jay Sulieys o3 uado s|93) wow os ‘diysuonelas 3unsnay pue aanisod

B }|INg 9ABY M WL} JOAO MON “Y2am Jad 2ouo ‘1s1] AlALOe Jay uo sSulyl 9y} JO auo 1sed| e Sulop 03 Jwwod 01 Al ySiw ays shem
1noge pay|e1 | pue wWoy ,3uo| 0S Ul Wayl Yum 1no 3uny 1,udAey | 9snedaaq spualij Aw yum op o1 a1 | SSUIyl Inoge yuiyl 03 iU S,
1By} palels wow ‘swaisAs Joddns pue saniAfgde juesea|d 1noge 3uyjel usypn ‘1l 98euew 01 moy pue 3uipualiadxa si ays Jeym inoge
9Jow uJes| pue s21dol ay3 uo sndoy 01 49y djay Asyil asnedaaq s1eaysydom ays suiney sAofua sey ays 1eyl pies ays ‘3ulaqg-||om ||eJan0
pue 24ed-§[9s uo 3uISnd0j 49y YIIM WN|NILLIND Salgeg pue SIaylo|Al 9yl 91eso0diodul 03 palels | 43y 03 91e|aJ P|N0d SUO OU 1eyl 194 ays
asnedaq suonows Jay Sunengal yum s9|83nJ1s usayo ays eyl palels usAs pue 3ul[99) SeM ays 1eym 1noge 240w pue 240w SSnasip

0} pauels AjMO|S WO "dW Y}IM 3|(elI0W 0 |94 03 1EeIS P|N0 dYS OS SHSIA 9yl pes| Joy 19| PUe 1e SeM 3YS 3J9YM Wow 193W p|nom

| ‘@w} J9AQ "9suodsal 4oy ul Ja1uq AJan ag pjnom ays ‘8ulod a1am s3ulyl Moy Jay yse pjnom | Usyp -sw yim dn uado o3 Juersay s|nl|
e sem ays se 3ui3uajjeyo 1q e sem wouw sy yum diysuonejas e pjing ol SuiAay pue yayiadol 3upjaom sn jo 3ujuuidaq ayz uj uoissaudap
wnlJiedisod yyum 3ul|38nJ41s sem oym wow e yym 3uplaom uaaq aney | :3oddes pjing pue ajes |99} wow d|ay 01 pash ays s||1MS ay3
pue gdd 49y Inoge uado aq 0} JUBHSIY SEM OYM J3yloW B YUM 3J0M Jay uo Auowsal Jay sapinoid ‘uosiead 0303) ‘1sije1dads Ajiwey

's3ul|99) 9SOy} Ul suoje J0u aJe Aayy os ‘saduajjeyd Sunualed
J19y1 Suipunouins uonesnpa 3ulpiroid os|e 3|Iym s3ul|9a) asoyl alepl|eA sisijedads Ajlweq anQ ‘SHSIA J19y3) 95 ew uaAa Jo a3e3ua

87



(‘siayrow pbubqin-ubiodwpy) 40f /£ pub SIYI0W [DINJ 10f 817 :papInoid 3q [|Im 3402 31dS3aJ pub 3403 SISIII Jo sinoy

S8 pa1oWsa uy *saljiwpf 03 papinodd 31pd 331dsal pup sisiid fo sinoy fo saquinn) 10043u00 wpaboud [pnpinipul ul pauLfap so 43Yi0
SJU3I[D UDb|d JUdWIIPAI] = Dd L

SJU3I[D UDb|d JUWIIDAIL-UON = IdIN

$1001U0) BUIUS34IS 4O 12DIUO) IIINIIAS = IS

SIUANT $2INIAS AJUNWWO) = IS

:suonurfaq A10b6ap) uonvziaN

88



'193.1e3 9ZA4 Y3 po30xa 03 1984e3 UO Aj3ua4ind aJe 3\ "0TS SI J1e9aA 3Y3 40§ S10BIU0D 3DIAIIS JO Jaquinu 193.4e3 9Y] *(S30eIu0D

paidwane /g |euollippe ue pue) s}eu0d Jdl GST 4O |B103 B 949M 3J4aY] J93enb pugz ayl Suunp suaid OHD3 Mau Se pa||0Jud 9J9Mm
Jauenb pug ay3 wodj Adinbui suo pue uayienb 3sT ay3 wouy Alinbul suQ "a|gqedijdde uaym sadinosads lelidosdde 4aylo 01 patudjal os|e
9J9M saldinbu| “ayeju| pazi|eiua) J0j DdY 01 patiajal alam saliinbul ‘elelidosdde sy *(papinoid 1oddns Juswadeuew ased Jo/pue
|e449)24 0} NP SIUID DJLN SE PaIuN0d aiom woym jo Auew) sjenpiAipul anbiun /g wody s30ejuod Aiinbul £/ Jo |e103 B Sem auay |

'S1Yy3Iu g 404 S9IIAIDS 4939Ys Aduadiaws

PaAI9231 LN SUQ "S9DIAIDS d|ge|ieAe 1noge aJ4inbul 01 AduaSe ay3 pa1deIu0d oym sOJIN 6T |euonippe ue 01 S9JIAISS Juswaseuew
9sed Jaliq/s|elaas papinosd weal wesSosd OHDI 9y} ‘wesSosd QOHDT Yl 03 PaNIWpPE 349M 1Byl SOJ LN SOY3 01 UOLHpPpPE U]

‘(4934BNb puz SulNp DdIN Se padieydsip sem oym) DdIN Suinunuod T pue DdIN Mau T “Ddl

M3U T ‘sDd1 Suinunuod /T 3Jam 343Y] ‘9ZA4 4O J23ienb puodas ayi Sunp weidoid QOHDI 2Y1 Ul SIDIAIDS PAAIRdAJ SIUdId (07) Ayuam]

%0¢
$Jd1 0c
SJdlL v
SJdlT

SJdle
SJdlL

%EET
SJdIN ST
SJd1IN 0¢
SJd1N 0¢

SOdIN O
SJOdIN

%L
sJS01Ss
SOS0LE
SIS ¢8T

SOS 88T
sJS

%88
$380 s¢
S350 ¢¢
53S0 91

S3S0 9
S350

:Sjuawwo) Aduasdy

19|\ 1Ud243d
19b4p] [DNUUY
|eyol

1ayenp 2
Jaueny T

sali08a1e) uoneziun

eleq AjJauenp

Hoday AlAndY wetdold 20 9ZAd
1oddng juswAojdw3 pue 3uisnoH OHD3 —AWOH S,uaJp|iyd weysuiuun)

89



(asn ui j0u) 30043U02 Wpibo.d [pnpiAlpul Ul PauLfap so 413Yi0
SU3I[D Ub|d JUaWIIDAI] = Dd 1

SU3I[D UD|d JUAWIID3I[-UON = DdIN

$1003U0) BUIUI3JIS 40 1IDIUOCD) AIINIIS = IS

SIUaAT $32INI3S AUnwWwo) = 35

:suonutfaqg A10631pH uonvZIIIN

039 ‘pealg Ajleq ‘VSvd
‘sjooyas ‘satuedwod |elual/spiojpue| |eJanss ‘uoneqold Aluno) udiedwey) ‘quswiiedaq 921j0d eueqin ayl papnjoul sdnoud/sspuagdy

‘weJt3osd OHD3I 9y3 Ihoge uonewJojul apirodd 03 sdnou3 pue sapuade 9T YUM 10e3u0d apew wedl weiddosd OHDI 9yl

‘Ajlwie) y3m apisaJ 03 21e3s Jo N0 3unedo|aJ Jaye pagieydsip Jual|d auQ dwln-||n} paAojdwa sem
pue 3uisnoy juauew.ad 3ulindas JaYe Padieyads|p sem Jual|d auQ Uanenb siyl wesdosd OHII 9Y3 WO pa3Ieydsip 949M SJUSI[d OM|

's30e3u0d (Adinbui) Dd1IN £Z + S1BIU0D Dd1 GST 4O pasiidwod S| S}0eIU0D IDIAIDS Z]T 4O |e10} VY

90



"G/ JO |e03 |enuue 193w 0} 19346}

Uo aJe aM pue GZ/TE/CT Y3noayy panias uaaq aney sjual|d DdIN uaaas-Auiy] ‘(4emenb snoinsud syl Sulinp sdnous ul pajedidnaed
pey yinoA DdIN €T) suoissas dnou3 uj pajedipnJed yinoA anbiun gT Jo |e10} e pue DAl 9Y3 e paJtayo a1am sdnous g Jo |e10}
v Jauenb pugz ayl Sulnp (Ddr) 491us) uorualdd |IUSANT 9Y3 18 paJayo sdnou3d y3noayy paniadad Saudld Dd1IN Mau (g) 9Al4 :DdIN

‘(24Nnso|o Jo awLy Je |00Yyds Suipuanie pue 3upJom

sem - gT 93e) 1no 3uiSe 03 anp pPaso|d YinoA T pue Juswade3ua J0 3de| 03 NP PISO|I YINOA T ‘S90ULISWNIIID D)1 JUSLINI SIY JO}4
SAISUDIUI 00) DJ9M SIIIAIDS passaudxa ay se (sAep 0§ ueyl $S9|) UoISSIWPE Ja1ig e JaYe Paso|d YINoA T :suonisodsip SuiMmo||o) a9yl Yim
Jauenb siyl pasgieydsip a19m sjuadl|d Dd1 934yl ‘(Syruow 8T 1S4y ay3 Sulinp sauadl|d Dd1 ZE PAAISS aAeY 9 ) Ot 4O |eos jueld Jeah-z uno
199W 03} 1984e3 UO 3Je pue 9ZA4 Ul SIUdID Dd1 €T 4O |B10) B PAAISS SABY S "DdL MBU UM S1UBI|D () dUlu pue Dd1 SuiNuUOd SJ9M
S1Ual]d (0T)usaL :Dd1 "(9AneJIRU SIYY Ul P3|IeISp SB DdLIN 8T PUe Dd1 6T) 9ZA4 JO Jo1ienb pug syl 3ulinp sjualjd L€ JO |B10) B PAAISS S\

%89
sJd1 Oy
SJdl €¢

sJd1 6

SOdL vl
SJdl

%61
SOdLN S/
SOdIN LE

SOdIN S

SOdIN ¢€
SJOd1N

:sjuswwo) Aduady

%l %085 19|\l 1U3d.3d

SJS S€6T $3S0 01T 13b4p| [pnuuy
SOS T¢v SIS0 & [e1ol
SIS vT1¢ SIS0 € J91enp ,,¢
SJS £L0¢ S3S0 ¢ 491enp T
sJS s35) sa140891e) uonezijun

ejeq Ajenenp

1oday AlARdY weldoldd Z0 9ZAd

191280 J98u0uis saljlweq —aWOH S,uaJp|iyd weyduiuun)

91



(asn ui j0u) 30043U02 Wpibo.d [pnpiAlpul ul pauLfap so 43Yi0
SU3I[D Ub|d UaWIIDAI] = Dd 1

SU3I[D UD|d JUAWIID3I[-UON = IdIN

$1003U0) BUIUI3JIS 40 1IDIUOCD) AIINIIS = IS

SIUaAT $32INI3S AUnwWwo) = 35

:suonutfaqg A106310H uonvZIIIN

‘qn|D AJeloy |nojuey ay3 pue  1un sjooyds usiedweyd ysnoayy wessoid |47 9yl ‘10131sIQ |oOYdS euegdn 1€ Judwiiedaq YoM
|B1D0S 9y} 01 suoLlelUaSaId PAA|OAUL SIUDAS 3S3Y] ‘97 A4 JO Ja1ienb puodas ay3 Sulnp sJuang 9d1AIaS Allunwiwo) (€) 934yl aJam a1y

"G/ ST J0 1984} |lEenuue By}

JO %0T Aj91ewixoidde je a4e am ‘9z A4 4O syuow g 3siy ay3 Sulanp s30euo0d DdIN ZST YHM ‘S6E JO uoneidadxa Mojaq [|9M SI Yydiym
Jayenb pug ay3 ul pa3a|dwod a49Mm $30e3U02 DdIN (8¥) 1y319-A1104 'papa9IXd Sem S}OeIU0I 06 JO 1934e3 Aj4914enb ay] -sioAI8a4ed
Jo/pue sjual|d Dd1 YHm paljdwane aJam S10eju0d Gy |euonlippe uy "sjual|d Dd1 YIM S10e1U0d 32IAISS 99T JO |e10] e pa3a|dwod apn

92



(asn ui j0u) 30043U03 Wpbo.d [pnpiAlpul ul pauLfap so 43Yi0
SU3I[D Ub|d JUaWIIDAI] = Dd 1

SU3I[D UD|d JUAWIID3I[-UON = IdIN

$1003U0) buUIUI3JIS 40 1IDIUOCD) AIINIIS = IS

SIUaAT $32INI3S AUnWwo) = 35

:suonyutfaqg A10631pH uonvZIIIN

‘ejep 10eju0d uluaalds Ajdayenb ayy ul Jo wiasAs wiep gaqg syl

Ul Pa123|4aJ 10U aJe S3UlU33JIS 3S3Y] ‘Y NSaJ e Se ssaippe ue apinoid 01 30U 3S0YI Saljlwe) YdIym ul pa1a|dwod aiam s3uUlusaads a9uy|
‘'sowoy Ajiwiey ul pue ‘S 1€ 491U Ul ‘SI93UD

9JedAep |e20] 1k PaJayo aJ9M s3uluda4ds [eauswdo|anaq *(dvL) 19foid wsnny ayl yum diyssauped uno y3noayl pue y3i 1 3jes yioq
1e panunuod sdnoJsdAe|d Apjaapn ‘pooyp|iyd Alde3 eueqin yim sdnouao jpoddng el jualed ayi pue ‘@doH Jo 93J] ‘l12ue|d 492006 }e
1uaA9 dn-dod e ‘0dx3 ALITIGVS!IP 9Y3 Sulpnjoul 4934enb syl SJUsAS yoeaino Ajjunwwod Jnoy ui pajedipnled yeis juswdojaaag Ajlwed

:sjuswwo) Aduasdy

%941 %05 %09 19|\ 1U3243d
SJdl1 SS9 sJS§ 00¢ S350 ST 13bip| jonuuy
SJdl 6T0T SJS 00T S350 6 [e1ol
SJd1N 99 SJS 6V SISO ¥ Jauenp ¢
SJdl 756 SOS TS S350 S Jouenp T
SOdlL SOS $35D s91403931e) uonez|un

ejeq AjJouenp

1oday AuAnoy weasold 70 92Ad wawdoljanag Ajjwe4 —Osq

93



(asn uj Jou) 1o043U02 Wpibo.d [pnpialpul Ul pauLfap so 4ayi10
SU3I[D UDb|d JUaWIIPAI] = Dd L

SJU3I[D UDb|d JUAWIIDAIL-UON = IdIN

$1001U0) BUIUS34IS 4O 12DIUOD) 3IINIIS = IS

SIUANT $2IAIAS AJUNWWO) = IS

:suonurfaq A10b63ap) uonvzIIN

"92L40 uoneISIUIWPY 7 # 32141SIQ 9y uonessiulwpy

9T T# 1o11sI ‘Ayuno) udiedwey) jo Aepn paiun ‘wesdouad deaHi] ‘Adejuswa|3 uonedis ‘Auejuswall [|eisydeg ‘OAlIS ‘looyds Yy3iH
[eluuaUd) ‘looyds Y3iH 20f 1S ‘|ooyds y3diH |esaud) ‘weldold uno) | ‘peay | ‘uonijeo) Aluno) udiedwey) ‘diysumol weyduiuun)

uorauuo) aselno) ‘Sulojualn aUQ

01 auQ ‘diysiaurled Ja3ua) udiedwey) ‘SNY1/L440S ‘100YIS 3|PPIA uosiayar ‘Aoedonpy Ajlweq ‘Ddy ‘(3SD) suonesoge|jo) Alunwwo)

%STT
$Jd1 0c
SJdl €¢
SOdL T

SOdLTT
SJdlL

%SST
SJdLN 0¢
SOdIN T€
SOdIN 9T

SOdIN ST
SJOdIN

:Sjuawwo) Aduasdy

%959 %6L 19|\ JU3d4ad
SIS 08Y S350 8v 19b4p] [pnuuy
SOS £9¢ S350 8¢ [e10]
SIS 691 SISO T¢ J93enp ,,¢

SJS 86 SIS0 L1 J91enp T
sJS s35) sali08a1e) uoneziun

ejeq Ajenenp

}oday AlARdY weldoldd Z0 9ZAd

23ueyd ND —gn|D s|I1D g sAog g J8AoA uoQ

94



(asn u1 jou) 10043u00 wWpiboud [pnpiAlpul ul paulap so 13Yy10

SUal|D ub|d awWILall = Jdl1

SIU3I|D UDb|d JUBWIIDAI-UON = IdIN

$1003U0) BUIU334IS JO 10DIUO) 3IINISS = IS

SIUANT S2INIAS ANUNWWO) = IS
:suonyutfaqg A106310H uonvZIIIN

'Solwapedy Aof "€T

SI9|9MIr 1S |[BM "TT ‘Awapedy asiy 'TT

‘@ouewuoiad |[ewndQ ‘0T ‘@Iniusu| Adeuldiosigaaiul ‘g ‘SuilS 1S4 '8 ‘92UBIJU0D) Y}|edH |eIUSIA de|g “/ ‘NOA Jo4 AD W "9 ‘STHID 'S
103[0ud pies ays ayl ‘v ‘|nos sioul||| “€ ‘ISYD 10} YINOA g ‘Siels uoxiqg ‘T :siduned Ajlunwwo)

%0€T
$OdIN 006
SOdIN VLTT
SOdINO

SOdIN VLTT
SJOd1N

%1
SOS0SLTT
SJS 0987
SIS0

SJS 0S8Y
sJS

%EVT
5350 0€
SISO €V

$3S0 0

S350 €v
$3SO

:sjuswwo) Aduady

EINRIERIER
39b4p] [pNUUY
|eiol

Jayuenp ,,2

J3enyD I
sali0891e) uoneziun

ejeq Ajenenp

Hoday AlAndY wetdold 20 9ZAd
saAlenu] JAwwng uonijeo) AJlunwwo?) —gn|) s|419 ¥ sAog g JaAoA uoQ

95



sageyulT Alunwwo)

GZ0Z/TT/TT 3USAS Yyoeasino 3SNvI-I|
G20Z/ST/0T I¥VYNDS NTODNIT 18 SulisA|4
G202/6/0T 4218|smau ISNYI-|

G70T/L/0T 3ueq 321nosal s|4ed 0
yoeasinQ Allunwwo)

S99PUIIE G UOISSIS OJUI SIYauaq d1jgqnd SYNPY SUJOM-UON ‘S}NPY SUJOAN ‘SIUSpISaY Jusauewad

|eS97 ‘USJP|IYD Y1IM Saljiwieq ysiueds uoissas ojul/doysyiop JIM/dYNS/dY41 D41 Inoy T SZ0Z/TZ/TT NI - doysyiom sadueyd dvNS
S99PUNE € UOISSIS 0JUI SIYaU] 21|qnd SYNPY SUJOM-UON ‘S}NPY SUIJOAN ‘SIUSpISaY JusueWIRd [eSaT ‘UBJpP|IYD YIIM Saljiwed
ysiueds uoissas oyul/doys34opn JIM/dVYNS/dH4l 193Uua) $321AI9S Aunwiwo) sinoy € §Z0z/8T/TT doysyiom sagueyd d¥NS [nojuey

SINOH - (419y1Q) sdoysyaopn

:Sjuawwo) Aduasdy

%EL %S € %C8 %18 %V8 19|\l JU32.43d
19410 ST  SOd1 S9T SOdIN 000€ sOS 00T€ 5350 0§ 19b.4p] [pnuuy
1BYl0 1T SOdlL 6 SOd1N £91¢ SOS 9¢S¢ 35S0 ¢y [elol

PYlo v SJdl 0 SJdIN V€L SOS VEL $3SJ 61 J91enp ,,¢
19Y10 L SJdl 6S SOdIN €€/T SOS ¢C6LT S3SD €¢ J91eny T
BY10 sJd1 SOdLN $JS 535D sal0891e) Uonezun

ejeq Ajenenp

1oday AlIAnoY welsold 70 9ZAd
Suiuayiduauls g oddns Ajlwed -DVIAYIDI

96



$159N3 Q€ 191Ud) 993NJaY Y] 1€ oM

Jno pue Ajunwwod juesdiwwi ay3 pajdayge dlwapued syl moy pue gT-dIAQD 03 uonoeas Suipiedal uoissnasip pey pue uopejuasaid
aAen -juedppued [sued ‘Ade3a7 6T-AIAOD 2yl pue ‘piemiod shemyied ayl ‘SUOSSDT ‘UOLID|SDY :41ET SIBSA DAl,, UOS|IMN BSIT G2/ST/TT
"JUSWIA|1IDSAJ 993N434 0} SIl4Jeq JO SUIDIUOD JDP|OYels

Aue ssnasip 01 pue uonew.aoul/sa24nosad aJeys 0l Ayiunlioddo siap|oy ¥ els |ed0| S9PIN0I Paluasasdal salouade QT "PaJ4ayo SIIIAIDS
pue eaJe 9y} Ul SJOYD JudW|NAsaJ 933nyas 3unsoddns 4o soisi3o| ayl Aue ssnasip pue s|eAllle 398n)aJ pa3dadxa Inoge Siap|oydyelrs
eaJe asiApe 0} p|ay Suneaw Ajuanenp Sunasy uonelnsuo) Ajaaueny 849qsio4 usisay pue ayusaH UA|Ysy ‘UoSIM esi] SZ/2T/2T
pajuasaidal suoneziuedio gz | 40 91e31S Y} Ul suoneziuedio Jusw|Pasal 993nyad ||e

Jo Sunsaw Ajyuow I1g Sunesw |12Un0) aALNIAXT (JIAI4[) 03eda1y) ueljodouls| JO uonelsapaL YSIMar ayusH UAIYSY 3 UOS|IA esIT T/ZT
suoneziuedso Qg siapinosd 301AI3S uewny

J9Y10 YlIM 91eJ0(E||0J puk SjUsWadunouue a¥)ew ‘sanssi ssnasip 0l Sunsaw Ajyuoln Sunsaw |1PunNo) gad/gHINDD UOS|IA esIT SZ/TT
syuedided gT "sapuade |e2o| Aq

Pa43JJ0 SIIAIS JO UOISSNISIP SulpN[oUl “3JIAIDS 0] SI31lJeq Sjeulwi|d 03 931e40q||0d 01 shem pue Ajuno) udiedwey) ul S9NSS| IIAISS
Juesdiwwi ssnasip 01 Sunesw Ajyiuo Sunesw aAleIOge||0d JueISiwwi 493Ul) SUIWOIBAN | SO1B|ISSeA 931099 73 UOS|IM esIT 0Z/TT
syuedipiaed g1 "Adljod uonesdiwwi ul sa3ueyd U234 4o 1Y3I| Ul SaNSSI Y}|eaH |BIUDIA Jueldiww|

noge pieog gHINDD YIIM UOISSNISIP pue uoljejuasald YijesH juedsiww| 3noge uolejuasald uoissas Apnis gHINDD UOS|IM esi 6Z/0T
suoneziuedso Qg siapinosd 301AI3S uewny

J9Y10 YlIM 91eJ0(e||0J puk SjuswWwadunouue axew ‘sanssi ssnasip 0l Sunsaw Ajyuolp Sunsaw |1PUN0) gad/gHINDD UOS|IAN esIT 82/0T
GT S92IAJSS pue uonuanald 3JUd|OIA |enxas ul duizijedads uoneziuedio

ue ‘S3DYyY JO Jels 01 Sanss| aadnjad/iuesSiWWl pue Sa3IAISS DY UO uoleuasald uoneiuasaud S3DQvY MuaH UAlYsy sz/zz/0T
pajuasaidal suoneziuedio GE-0€ 'S,d4N Sundaye soidol Jo Alslien e uo 3ujuledy pue Sanss| JIAIIS |BID0S |BI0] SSNISIP HJOMIdU

01 saa1uess Ayuno) usiedwey) jo Aepp pariun o Sunesw Ajyiuopy Sunesw S1012aJ1Q ALRNI9XT Aep\ pallun UOS|IAN BSIT62/T1¢/0T
syuedidied gT "sapuade |e20] AqQ

P3J43440 SIIIAIIS JO UOISSNISIP Sulpn|aul “DIIAIDS 0} SI3lJe( dleUlWI|D 0} 91e10q||0d 03 SAem pue Ajuno) udiedwey) ul SaNSS| IAIDS
Juesdiwwi ssnasip 01 Suesw Ajyluo\ Sunlesw aALEIOe||0d JueISIW W J93U) SUIWOI|DAN | SOIL|ISSeA 981099 3 UOS|IM esIT 9T/0T
+0¥ S901AJ3S

Jno 1noge s|euolssajo.ad 340m |eI20S 0} ¥|el 01 JUSAS Suljge] JaUuJ0d SUOLDBUUO0I AlUNWWOD) }JOM |BID0S JO |00YdS MuaH UAlYsY ST/0T
pajuasaldal suoneziuedio gz | 4O 91e31S Ayl Ul suoneziuedio Jusw|PRAsaJ 293Nn43l ||e 4O

Sunsaw Ajyiuow 1g Sunssw |12UNOY) 3ALNIAXT (DIN4S) 08ed1y) uelljodoJlsiA JO uoneiapa4 YSIMar M UaH UA|YSY 8 UOS|IM esIT €T/0T
+0G 92UJ34U0I Y}|eay |elusW e JO S99puaie 01 Y|el 03 JUdAS 3ul|ge] Jie4 924n0say siapiog puoAag axyusH uAlysy 0T/0T

97



('sinoy Aq paiunod ‘sdoysyiom juaijd fo Jaquinp) 12043U02 woabo.ad [pnpiaipul ul pauLyap so 43yYi0
SJU3I[D Ub|d JUAWIINAI] = Dd

SJU3I[D Ub|d JUAWIIDAI[-UON = DdIN

$1003U0) BUIUI3.4DS 10 12DIUOD) IDINIIS = IS

SJUaNT $32INI3S AUunwwo) = 35

:suonurfaq A10b63a1p) uonvzIIN

syuedipied g1 "sapuade |e20] AqQ

P390 SIIIAIIS JO UOISSNISIP Sulpn|aul “DIIAIDS 0} SI3lIe( dleUlWI|D 0} 91e10q||0d 03 SAem pue Ajuno) udiedwey) ul SaNSS| JIAIDS
Juesdiwwi ssnasip 01 Suesw Ajyluo Sunlesw aALeIOqe||0d JueISIW W J93U) SUIWOI|DAN | SOIB|ISSeA 931099 3 UOS|IM esIT 8T/ZT
pajuasaidal suoneziuedio GE-0€ 'S,d4N Surdayge so1doy Jo Ayalien e uo 3ujuiel) pue Sanss| AJIAIIS |BID0S |BIO| SSNISIP “HJOMIBU

01 saajuess Ajuno) usiedwey) jo Aepy pariun jo Sunessw Ajyauoy Sunssw S1032341g aALNIAX3 Aep\ pPa1iun UOS|IM esI7 9T/ZT

98



‘8u1]9SUN0D |BNPIAIPUI JO} BUO puUE JUBWSSasSe diysuone|aJ e 1o} XIS 4914enb siy3 921AI9S Ajiwe
1B U93S aJaMm S1udl|d 1N0) SnuQg UaAas *1uno) Snig ayl Agq pallagal sjenpiaipul 03 Suljasunod Ajiwey pue sajdnod ‘|enpiaipul apinoad
01 3|qe|ieAe aJe s3sidelay)l JnQ 'SUOISSAS 1UN0D |BUOISEID0 pue s§undaw wea) 1no) Sniqg Apj@am ay3 spuane Jo3dalip wessoud ay|

*Jud1|2 3y} JO dUJd4a.d By} UO paseq Y3|eayd|d} 4o uosiad ul SJudl|d 33S 03 SNULUOD I\

‘wyed

2Jow 3|3} pue ‘dnosd sy ul Sunedidiued Ja1e SISYI0 pue SIA|ISWIYI YHM PI3D3UU0D SJoW 134 ‘WaY} 3193w 01 Moy pue sAepijoy

9Y3 JOA0 SPadU JI3Y3 JO e3pl JoNag e aney Aayiy dnoud ay3 Jo 3 nsad e se 1ey) pailess ||e AdAauns dnoud 3sod pue aud ay3 palajdwod oym
syuedionded syl pue paAIddad |[9M AJDA sem 3| aJed-43S Aepl|oH Uo pasnd0y} Jaqwadaq ul dnoto Adelay | SHY SAISS24dX] SUO pIday I
J9QWISAON Ul 249y Sunjiom uedaq n essiiey| “isidesayl/iosiAIadns [BaIUlD MU PaJly I

*}s9nbaJs uo 3|ge|ieAe ale s8uIUaA3 JaY3Q "sAepsiny] uo sinoy Suluana sapnjoul
3INPaYos s,1s1desayl ¥ "ul WO S|edd4al uaym Appdinb pajnpayds aJe syuswiujodde Juaid pue 1si| Sulziem ou aAey 03 dNULUOD 3\

%L9°9
$Od1 09
SOdlL v
SJdlv

S2d1 0
SJdl

%99
SJdLN s
SOdIN 7T

SJd1IN 6

SJOdIN S
SJOd1N

:Sjuawwo) Aduasdy

EINRIERIER
19b4p] [pNUUY
|elol

Jayuenp ,,2

J3enyD I
sall0891e) uoneziun

ejeq AjJouenp

110day AlALRDY weaSodd 70 9ZAd Suljasuno)-3dIAJas Ajlwe

99



(asn ui j0u) 30043U03 Wpbo.d [pnpiAlpul ul pauLfap so 43Yi0
SU3I[D Ub|d JUaWIIDAI] = Dd 1

SU3I[D UD|d JUAWIID3I[-UON = IdIN

$1003U0) bUIUI3JIS 40 1IDIUOCD) AIINIIS = IS

SIUaAF $32INI3S AUnWwWo) = 35

:suonutfaqg A10631pH uonvZIIIN

‘sanIALoe S1e aAIssaldxa s,J9Y10 yoea Supgowoud
$S0J2 248 JSSH pue geq Suludea Ayunwwo) ay] "qeq Suluiea] Ajlunwwo) ayl yim Suieaw uaaq sey Jodalip weidoud ay |

‘weJ3doid 3ujasuno) ay3 jo uopnowoud pue Yoeauino 4oy
s3upaaw Ajyuow ayj spuane pue Ajuno) ugdiedwey) Jo [1DUNO) SIIIAIDS uewnH ay3 uo Juedpued sapgde ue s| 1032341p wesdoud syl

J914enb S|yl uoyenpeds pue suoneljuasald salenpesd 14no) 3nig 9yl papuanie os|e J030aJ41p wea3old ay |

100



(TX) Sunaaw Aep payiun e
(TX) SunneaIN 92404 ySe] JOI1UlS e
(€X) sSuneaw [1PUNO) AIOSIAPY DHS
(TX) Sunas\ Suluue|d odx3 ANjIQYSIP e
(€X) [1PUNO) SIJIAIBS UBWINH @
A1032241p dnouo d|aH-4[9S paMpPT e
aseqelep ay3 ojul paJajus pue spejuod dnoud poddns wols paldijos aJam sazepdn dnoud Jyoddng e
SIUSAS JOPUDA JO IPISINO PAINGIIISIP S911030341p dnoto JoddnS € e
‘apew a1am sdnoug
1oddns Jo sSmaIA 082‘T ‘smaln 93ed Suipue| syl Suipnjoul J0N ‘91SgaM JDS4 9yl uo d3ed 3uipue| JHS Y3 10} SMIIA 93ed Opyy e
S[|ed |edJa424 pue uonewJoUl 6 e
S)0BJUOD |lBWD G97 e
:191enp pJ1YL 9yl 404 so1isLels Jo1euipiood weia3doldd

:Sjuawwo) Aduasdy

%1V EINRUERIER
$35004¢ 19b4p] [pNUUY
SISO CTT |eiol

$3SJ 89 Jayuenp ,,2
SISO v Jouenp T
$3%D $91403331e) uonezi|un

ejeq Ajenenp

Hoday AlAndY weldold 20 9ZAd
191U9) d|9H-}|9S-921AI3S Ajlwe

101



(asn uj Jou) 19043U02 Wpibo.d [pnpialpul Ul pauLfap so 4ayi0
SU3I[D UDb|d JUAWIIPAI] = Dd L

SIU3I[D UDb|d JUAWIIDAIL-UON = IdIN

$1001U0) BUIUS34IS 4O 12DIUOD) IIINIIAS = IS

SIUANT $2IAIAS ANUNWWO) = IS

:suonurfaq A10b63ap) uonvzIN

$314039341p pue s3sl| dnoud Jyoddns |enpiAlpul Auew 1n0 aAe3 pue JOPUdA e se odx3 AYljIqysSIp papuany e
sdoysy4opn Suluds pue J91uIpn 404 Suluueld e

JONID|SMAN JOIUIAN JO) YdIeasay e

(TX) doysy4om Joy uaxeads Ylm 19|\ e

102



OS[B 3/\\ "UOISEID0 Y} 03} 3S0J A|NJ3 JBIS 9IINIDS AjlWe BY) pue ¥ Se} 3|gepiwJo) B SBM SIY| "SIUdI|d 00 430 Joj Suljasunod (wesdoud
90UBJNSU| Y3|ESH JOIUS) dIHS pawJoiad Jeis dIAIas Ajlwed ‘7D U] "juaw|joJu3 uadQ 4o} JeaA Yyoea sjual|d 09 3noge anias AjjeaidAy
pINOM 321AJ3S Ajlweq JeaA |ewJou e u] sieaA |BIaAdS Ul dwl 3SJY 9y J0) sue|d a8ejueApy 24edIp3aJA Mau SulSOOYD 1M SiaquuaW
Ajlunwwod Auew ‘8uiso|d aouel||y Yy3eaH YA Juswjjoiug uadQ 24ed1pajA Ag 1SOWSI0) pUe 1SIY pasJew sem Jayienb ise| ayL

aduel||Y Y1eaH 18 20Q V YIM 3uld - pJE Jaquiadaq

AJeiaqn 21gnd uSiedwey) 1e siNoH 2O JUdW||04ug uadQ aJedIpalA - YITT JOqWSAON
|910H-| 3e dduaJa4u0) SuIBy AyljeaH pue yieaH ulelqg - Y18 JoqWaNoON

aduel||Y Y3|eaH 18 200 V YHM 3uId - Yi§ JaquianoN

|910H-| 18 Jie4 YyoJeasay UoLIINN sioul||] Jo ANSISAIUN - YI£Z 4990190

POD SUIAIT 3Y3 4O Y2InyD dY3 1 SID9A31|Dg PAUOSEaS 03 UOLBIUSAId - PIE J19G0I0
@duel||Y Y1|BaH 18 20Q V YUM 3uI( - 1ST 1990120

:Sjuawwo) Aduasdy

%L %8¢ %CPT %CET %011 19|\l JU32.3d

49410 002 SOd1 S/€ SOd1IN 004 505§ 006¢ 53S0 ST 12b.4p] [pnuuy
1910 17T SOdITVT SOd1N 000T SOS 618¢€ SISO T¢ |elol
1PYl0 S SJdl ¢¢ SJdIN ¢¢v SJS 10¢¢ S3S0 L J91enp ,,¢
19Yl0 6 SOd1 61T SOd1IN 8/S SOS 8191 SISO VT J91eny T
PYI0 $Jdl SOdLN $JS 535D sal0891e) Uonezun

ejeq Ajenenp

Hoday AlAndy wesdold 70 9ZAd
Aded0ApYy 13 SUI[9SUNO) JOIUSS- JIAISS Ajlwe

103



(‘wpiboud $7YvId Y1 uil squaljd Aq paiajdwod syun sspjd Jo saquinp) 19043u02 wpiboad [pnpiAlpul ul paulap so 13Yy10
SIU3ID Ub|d IUBWIIDAI] = DdL

SJU3IID UD|d 3UBWIDAI[-UON = DdIN

$1003U0) bUIU334IS 1O 1ODIUOD JINIIS = IS

SIUaNT $32INI3S AUNWWO) = 35D

:suonutfaqg A106310H uonvZIIIN

"€D Ul 1Je1S 01 Pa|Npayds uaaq Apealje aney UOLUDARI( ||B4 Ul S9SSE|D "S3npe Jap|o ul AlAndeul
pue ‘ssauljpuo| ‘uoissasdap ssaippe 03 paudisap ‘wesdoud STHYId Yl ul uonedidnued 309|424 palnided sHuNn g 8yl "ZD Ul p|ay a4am
S3SSE|D OU 43y3leam Jajuim 3Y3 01 anQ 'sasse|) 3uidy aAndy Jno ul uonedipnded ainided 03 Jueaw s Alo3a3ed | 13Yy3Q,, S,921A19S Ajlwied

‘J|]9sauo pue ‘Ajlwe} ‘Alunwwod ‘1aue|d s,auo aepasdde 03 sanlunlioddo
P3J91Ud2 SAIALDY uonedalddy JO WAyl 9y} YIM J3QWIIAON Ul XOq S|93YM U0 ALALEDI) MU B Pased|al Os|e 3d1AI3S AjlweS

'Spag awoy 3uisinu jo agelioys s,eale Ajuno) udiedwey) ay3 pue ‘uisnoy
JOluas 14ew 3uisnoy ay3y usamiaq Aejdiajul ayi se |[9m se ‘uisnoy J1dy3l Ul 9.y sy npe Jap|o jeyl saduajjeyd oyloads ay3 uo
Suolssas 3ujualsi| Sulanp yoeqpasy uipinold ‘udiedwey) jo A1) ay3y Aq pawuogiad Apnis Suisnoy e ul pajedidded os|e 921A49S Ajlwed

*91qIssod se 3]|qISSa20e Se SIINIDS
3say} ayew 03 sn Suimojje ‘Ayuno) uSiedwey)d uJayIoN JO 493U 1AISS AHUNWWOD 3Y3 3B SINOY 240 AY33M JNO panuluod

104



:suonuifaq A10b6ap) uonvzIIN

‘970 U1 ssa480.4d aiow 03} pJEMIO) 3 00| M PUB ‘@SNOY UOLISUBJ} 3y} 40} Ja3enb |nyssadons

AJan e usaq sey 1 ‘||e ul [ 49G0IX0 Ul JBISIUIW B SB PauUlepJo SeM I "SaLIALDe Pased-Yile) ul PaAjOAUl 9Q pue sdoysy4om auljuo
19NPUOD ||IM 3y a1aym o1y ul wesdoud Aijusad e ein JuswAojdwa pauleiqo sey 1sn3ny Ul PaAlLIe OYM JUIPISaL J9Y10 INQ 4013341J
suopesad(Q ay3 SI S9|eJO|A uenr ,S1amo||0431sal4 a49ym Asjued poo ay3 1e SuliauN|oA yum Suoje yaom dwal swos auop sey pue
suoned|jdde 3no 3ul||y usaq Ajjeanadisua sey aH "qof e 4oj uiy00| SI pue (493udd ul-dolp Jno y3noJayl SulJOUBW SWOS J9Ye) ISUd||
S,JOALIP SIY Sey MOU 3H "YiM wiy pad[ay aAey am yd1ym syuswndop d| Siy YyHm sadus||eyd |edanas pey sey [eAldde Juadal 1sow JnQ

JeaA 1xau

Ajaea Ag uswiiede ue ojul pue 3snoy Jno JO 1n0 3q P|NOYS pue JIVH 34l yiim aaey am weadoud 1ayonoa ay3 y3noayy Auadoud |ejual
e Suidinboe Jo ssas04d 9y ul s1 9 "wesdouad 3uisnoy Atesodwal DdY 9yl Joj suonedijdde 3uad uo 3updom pue 3yejul 3ulop JIUD Ul
-doup 3ay3 1e updom os|e uaaq sey Juapisal SuiAias 3sa3uo| JnQ Uaxenb syl Jo ¥ ng ayi 4o} Ayoeded ||nj 1e sem asnoy sda1sisii4 Ayl

%085
5Jd1 8
SOdlL v
SOdLT

SOdl €
SJdlL

%L8
SJOdIN ST
SOdIN €T

SOdIN ¥

SJOdIN 6
SJOdIN

%09
sJS ST
SJS 6
SIS S

SOS v
SJS

%08
5350 8
SISO v
s3S0 ¢

S3S0 ¢
S350

:Sjuawwo) Aduasdy

EIINRUERIER
19b4p] [pNUUY
|eyol

13yienp 2

J31eNYD I
sa140823e) uonezijun

ejeq Ajenenp

Hoday AlAndY weldold 20 9ZAd
9snoH AJluaay Allunwwo) sdais 15414-S19MO0||04 1S414

105



(asn ui Jou) 19043U02 Wpibouad [pnpialpul Ul pauLfap so 4ayi0
SJU3I[D UDb|d JUdWIIPAI] = Dd L

SJU3I[D UDb|d JUAWIIDAIL-UON = IdIN

$1001U0) BUIUS34IS 4O 12DIUOD) 3IINIIS = IS

SIUANT $2INIAS AJUNWWO) = IS

106



"92ue)sisse siyl 4oy Ajljenb |jim oym Jo Ddy 9yl Aq uoneuiwialap [euy 9yl Ieme dM pue S1usl|d JNo Wody
suoped|jdde £z papiwqgns ap ‘(uonednp ul JeaA T) siaydnoa suisnoy Asesodwal Jo) ajdoad [j0Jus 03 DdY Ag Pa3129|9S 949M 0S|e I

"SIUIAD 35aY1 yim dn daay 01

paau 4no pue Suidey aie am 1ey3 sasueyd Adljod Jo 3J10miau xa|dwod 3yl uo AJUaNSUOI JNO 91BINPS 03 SIOKYD JNO JO Hed aJe SJUIAD
9say] ‘sidwnsuo) aJeayyeaH Ayuno) udiedweyd ay3 Jo Joyuua ejpne|d pue JN|N e suone|ay JusawAojdw3 pue Jjoge Jo |00ydS
33 JO POOAN SND PaINIBd} YdIYM ||ig |nyaneag Sig auQ 3y} Uo Jeuigam pIp OS[e SN "I0BJe4 |Ned "USS pUB SUOWWY |0Je) ‘day paJinieay
JUIAS 3y "pJeD yul] e uleiqo o1 3jdoad Joy syuawalinbal yJom Jo sanieas 3yl IN0ge Jeuigam auljuo ue pauiof ing siual|d ul-dosp
[ewJou Jno passadosd Ajuo 10U am ‘@suodsal U| "SI9MO||041SJ1{ WOJ} SIDIAIDS PUB UOLBWIOLU] JOJ puewap ul ysni agny e paydwoud
JO 1n2 3q p|nom s3yauaq dyNS 1eyl Joqwiaidas ul Jusawadunouue ay| Ja3uad ul-dosp Jno 4oy Jaxienb Asng AJan e uaaq sey siyl

%00T
SOdlL Ly
SOdl LYy
SJdl €¢

SOdl v¢
SJdlL

:Sjuawwo) Aduasdy

%S %€8 %6E 19|\ 1U3d.4ad
SOdLN LPT SIS 81 S350 81 19b4p] [pnuUYy
SJdIN 64 SIS ST SISO L [e10]
SOdIN LE SIS L SISO v J91enp ,,¢
SJdLN ¢v sJS 8 SISO € J91enp T
SOdLIN sJS s35) sali08a1e) uoneziun

ejeq Ajenenp

Hoday AlAndY weldold 20 9ZAd
AJ1u3-3Y J0) SUlIOUB|A J99d-SI9MO||04 1SJ1

107



(asn ui j0u) 30043U02 Wpibo.d [pnpiAlpul ul pauLfap so 43Yi0
SU3I[D Ub|d JUaWIIDAI] = Dd 1

SU3I[D UD|d JUAWIID3I[-UON = DdIN

$1003U0) buUIUI3JIS 40 1IDIUOCD) AIINIIS = IS

SIUaAF $32INI3S AUnwWwo) = 35

:suonutfaqg A106310H uonvZIIIN

JE9A M3U 9y} Ul JUIAS Ajyluow e 3w 023 [|IM SIY] "Saxa|dwod
3004g AJ3uno) pue N0 uadsy ‘9del] poomyeQ Ul paYJom dAeY am Jej 0S ‘A11D 9y3 punode saxa|dwod Juswiiede 1e uonednpa pue
dnuea|d 3uiop SA|OAUI YdIYM SJUBAD 3D0|g 3Y3 aulys ul Jed Supjel usaqg aaey am uonljeo) €H a3yl ul uonedpnled uno jo 1ied se ‘Ajse]

"doMm jo eade siy3 ul diysisuyled

Japeouq e p|ing 031 S19Mo||0431s.14 40} Allunlioddo ue pue Ao uno ul aaneniul Juexodwi ue sy siy] usiedwey) uj wesdoud e dn 19s

01 udiedwey) jo A1) 9yl Aq paldesiuod uaaq sey yorym ‘ogedty) wod dnois aoua|oin Ajjunwiwod-1ue ue ‘SNAIDOY YHM 1DW OS|e I\
‘(L66T Ul pauueq sem 31) sloul||| ul |0J3U0d

JUaJ 9z]|e33| ujede aduo p|NOM YdIYym /89¢€9gH ssed 03 10y apimalels e ul ulof [im ydaiym udiedwed 3uisnoy e 3unenjiul aJe os|e apn

‘'sadeuew diysumo] ayi 1ey3 syun Suisnoy Joj 340Mm uoljeAouas awos sulop
se ||[am se (udledwey) ul Alowuy pjo ayi e paledo) 493 aYs Mau 9yl Yyioq Joj weal uoleAouas ayi ul ujof 03 diysumo] weysguiuun)
yim pasaulied aney am ‘snid ‘sandadoud S19amo||041si14 OM] UO suonreaoual ayl Sunajdwod Asnq usaq sey weal qyIN0D INO

108



JAduunol moyYo Aw pue yijeay jeausw Aw ‘puiw Aw yym saw padjay sey 1ey3

[tel 3yl ojul swod aAey oym 3jdoad ay3 jyueys | "yimou3 anuruod 4o adoy | ‘a4 Aw Jano 3ouepingd Joy Aead | ‘sw pad|ay sey dnoug
MOYD SIY3 Sy "9s|9 auoawos djay ued | 1eyl pue uiede peod siy3 umop o3 JaAau | eyl Aead pue adoy sAem|e | *90usapyuUOI MO| pue
MO| ‘WD31S9-4|9S MO| Y}IM Jauosiid e uaaqg shemje aney | ‘sn Sujualealyl pue ujujwiapun S| 1eys *|IAS JejnonJed ay3 ueyl Juepodwi
2J0W S| Yyaiym pood ay3 uo 3ulp|ing pue uipuy JO SISISUOI } “9d2UdPLYUOI pue 3dueldadde Jo Ayljigers ayl aziudodal | OYD U,

4 8upjuiyl pue shem aane3dau Aw uo yaom ued | 1eyl adoy | ‘auljdidsip-}9s pue 3oueidadde-4|as jo Asuinol Aw
uo anunuod ued | dnou3 MOYD ay1 uj ‘jiel ui ydaeq dn pus 3uop | eyl os ‘Sunysy dois o1 3ulos osje we | "yyeay [eausw Aw 3uidejoges
10U pue s3nip 3ulop Jou djdwexa 10} pIp dM leym Jo 31si| daay SI 3eyl op 01 ue|d | MOH ‘93e30ges-4|9S 10U 0} uJed| ued | 1eyy Aeud |,

‘Jodau siy3 ul Jaded ay3 Jo dwos Sulpnjoul we | "sajewu] sy} 01 dle|aJ Ajjeas ued pue Auowysal |euostad umo Jay sey ays ‘weigoud
9Y3 01 19sse 93ny e uaaq sey umoug eysiuo] |1ef ay3 ul sdiysuone|as Jno yim Japaq usnos Ajjeas aaey s3uily] "padjay sey MOYO
Moy uo siaded ajam 03 sajewu] 9y3 uiSesnodus uaa(q aAey osje am ‘sdnodo |ler Ayunod usiedweyd 9yl Ul 9AIDS 0} SNULUOI I

%ITT
SOdLN 0S¢
SOdIN 64¢

SJdIN T6

SOd1IN 881
SJd1N

%18
$J§ 000¢
SJS 0€9T1

SJS v¢8

SJS 908
sJS

%LE
$3S0 vc
sISD 6
SISO v

S3S0 S
$3SO

:sjuswwo) Aduady

EINRIERIER
39b4p] [pNUUY
|elol

Jayuenp ,,2

J3enyD I
sall0891e) uoneziun

ejeq AjJouenp

10day AlIARDY weld04d ZD 9ZAd 1oddng uaad-p\OYD

109



(asn ui j0u) 30043U02 Wpibo.d [pnpialpul ul pauLfap so 43Yi0
SU3I[D Ub|d JUaWIIDAI] = Dd 1

SU3I[D UD|d JUAWIID3I[-UON = IdIN

$1003U0) BUIUI3JIS 40 1IDIUOCD) AIINIIS = IS

SIUaAF $32INI3S AUnwWwo) = 35

:suonutfaqg A106310H uonvZIIIN

‘Auowysay Jeuossad 4oy aned (uoj ‘sdnoud

9y} JO SI9PJ0J3J pue SJ3ZIuedio 3yl 03 IN0 pJeme pue $93edyLJad aned 3\ "duoAlana Suipnpul € pey am Aunwwod A\OYD JapIm
9Y3 Sapn|[oul 3| "uosJ4ad ul pue WOOz UO 11 JHO I\ ‘|[NOJUBY Ul 131U AJlUNWWOD Y3 1. 11 pey 3\ "eaJe 9y} wodj /T pey am unssw
MOYD |enuuy 1e343 e pey os|e 9\ “d|ay 01 Sw oI SI9,MMOHD M3} e d3linb pey pue JeaA siyy odxa Alljigesip ayl ui paledipnled apy

'ss24304d 1ea43 Su|9as we | ‘weidosd ay3 0} SWOI 0} pajuem eyl maj e aney Ajuo pjnom
9M ‘U3YQO "uswom ay3 3uidedua sawn piey e pey 3\ 'Sdnod3 MOYD Y3 Ul UBWOM 3y} JO dWOS JO ssaJdoud ay3 99s 03 pa||ldyl we |

. ‘Ajlwey Aw pue jjasAw ano| 03 pauses| aney | \\OYD U,

+OA0| YUM M\OYD NoAuey |
W Joj Jels poo3d e S| jeyl MOYD ul 1snay Aw ind | pue ‘§jasAw yim aw padjay sey 3| ‘moJ3 aw pad|ay sey 1 MA\OYD 03 W0 03 dAO| |,,

110



(asn ui j0u) 30043U03 Wpibo.d [pnpiAlpul ul pauLfap so 43Yi0
SU3I[D Ub|d JUaWIIDAI] = Dd 1

SU3I[D UD|d JUAWIID3I[-UON = DdIN

$1003U0) bUIUI3JIS 40 1IDIUOCD) AIINIIS = IS

SIUaAT $32INI3S AUNnWwWo) = 35

:suonyutfaqg A106310H uonvZIIIN

"UaJp|IYd sapnjou|

*219 ‘s92IAJ9S uoneliodsuedy azijun ‘welsSoldd uonLIINU Ul P3||0JUD SJe ddUBRISISSE |eldueUY AduaSiawa pazijan aAey oym Ss1ual|d :DdN

"(Td) 3uswasdeuely ase) Alisuaiu|

MO7 0 ‘(zd) wuswadeuey ase) Aysuaiul wnipaN T ‘(€d) uawasdeuelp ase) Alisusiul ysiH € ‘20 ul weadoud 3DV J0) Dd1 MaU 7 :DdL

‘weJ3oid syl

8ua1ud 01 Jold panow g ‘wes3oud ay3 J0o} 3]qISI[BUI PAUIWISIDP D49M ¢ ‘wea3old 3yl 0juUl Pa||0JUD D49M § S}0BJUO0D SUlUIIIS § 1DSS
1594 9pld :SZ/0T NG dVI9D :6T/0T ‘0dx3 22unosay ANjigesiq :8T/0T ‘AJesianiuuy Yoy :9T/0T :3SD

%091
$Od1 0T
SOd1 9T

SodL v

SOdl ¢T
SJdl

%Sv1
SJdIN 09
SJOdIN £8
SJdIN €S

SJOdIN P€
SJOd1N

:sjuswwo) Aduady

%0L %SL 19|\l U243
sJS 0c $3S0 8 13bip| jonuuy
SOS T $3S0 9 |ejol

sJS 8 SIS0 v J91enp ,,¢
sOS9 S350 ¢ J3enyD I
$OS $39D s91403931e) uonez||un

ejeq Ajenenp

}oday AlAndY weldoldd Z0 9ZAd

S92IAJS UoLleINPJ pue ‘aled) ‘AdedoApY -dVID

111



(asn u1 jou) 10043u00 wWpiboud [pnpiAlpul ul paulap so 13Yy10
SIU3ID Ub|d JUBWIIDAI] = DdL

SIU3IID UD|d IUBWIDAI[-UON = DdIN

$3003U0) bUIU334IS 1O 1ODIUOD JINIIS = IS

SIUaAT $32INI3S AUnWwo) = 35

:suonyutfaqg A1063a10H uonvZIIIN

"UaJp|IYd sapnjou|

*219 ‘s921AJ9S uonelodsuedy azijun ‘welsSold uonlIINU Ul PIJ|0JUD aJe ddUR)SISSE |elouBUY AduaSiawa pazijan aAey oym S1udl|d :DdIN

"(Td) 3uswasdeuely ase) Alisuaiu|

MO7 0 ‘(zd) uswadeuey ase) Aysuaiul wnipaN T ‘(€d) uawasdeuelp ase) Alisusiul ysiH € ‘20 ul weadoud 3DV 410} Dd1 MaU 7 :DdL

‘weJ3oid syl

8ula1ud 01 Jond panow g ‘wesdoud ay3 4o} 3]qISI[SUI PAUIWISIDP D49M ¢ ‘wea3old 3yl 0jul Pa||0JUD D49M § S}OBJUO0D SUlUIIIS § 1DSS
3594 9pld :GZ/0T NG dVI9D :6T/0T ‘0dx3 22unosay AMjigesiq :8T/0T ‘Adesianluuy Yoy :9T/0T :3SD

%091
$Jd1 0T
SOd1 9T

SOdL v

SOdl T
SJdl

%Sv1
SJdIN 09
SJdLN S9¢
SJd1N Ot

SJdIN S¢¢
SJOd1N

:sjuswwo) Aduady

%0L %SL CIIRUERIER
sJS 0¢ $3S0 8 13bip| [pnuuy
SOS vt CERONA |eiol
$JS Ot $3S0 € J91enp ,,¢
SOS 178 S350 6 Jouenp T
$OS $39D s91403931e) uonez||un

ejeq Ajenenp

}oday AlARDY weldoldd Z0 9ZAd

welSold Yi|eaH |eIUSA JueISiww| -S32IAISS JueISiww|

112



%C0¢€
49410 0ST
9410 €SP
49410 S€¢

19410 8TC
1310

(*224n0s J0Apd 4ay10 ou yim ajdoad Jo saquinp) 10043u00 wpiboud [pnpiAlpul ul pautap so 13Yy10

%EET %61
$2d1 005 SOdIN 056
$2d1999 SJOd1N 997
SJdl SPE SJOdLN S6T
SOdL Tce SOdIN T/L¢
SJdl SJdIN

Sjualld upbjd uawvall = Jd1

SJU3I[D UDb|d JUAWIIDAIL-UON = IdIN
$1001U0) BUIUS34IS 4O 19DIUOD) 3IINIIS = IS
SIUANT $2INIAS AJUNWWO) = IS
:suonutfag A106331pH uonvzIIIN

'924n0s JoAed 4ay3o ou yum sjuaned DS GET 49Y10
SJO[9sunod Agq 92U0 uey3 aJow PanJas syuapisal Ajuno) usiedwey) anbiun sy :DdL

‘Adesayy ul 93e3us 03 10U 3SOYD JO JUBWSSISSe 919|dwod J0u pIp oym syuapisal Ajuno) udredwey) S6T :DdIN
'sjuapisay Auno) udiedweyd Aq s10j9sUN0d Yym syuswiulodde 3day €2/T :0S

J934enb Syl Ul papuaNe SJ19M SJUBAS 3SD 9

%06
$J5 008€
SOS STvE
SJS €L

SJS ¢691
sJS

%0S¢
$3SO v
CENONI]
$3SJ 9

SENOR Y
$3SO

:sjuswwo) Aduady

EINRIERIER
39b4p] [DNUUY
|elol

Jayuenp 2

J3enyD I
sali0891e) uoneziun

ejeq Ajenenp

Hoday AlAndY wetdold 20 9ZAd
(Suljasuno)) sa2IAIaS Yl|eaH |eIuaA -2Jedy3ljeaH asiwoid

113



%6
419410 00
J9Y10 LLE
49410 ¥8T

19410 €61
1310

(*224n0s J0Apd 4ay10 ou yim ajdoad Jo saquinp) 10043u00 wpiboud [pnpiAlpul ul paulap so 13Yy10

%L0T %9L
$2d1 000T $JdIN 000C
S2d1¢/0T SOdIN €¢ST

SJdl €LY SJOdLN ¢9L
SJdl 66S SJOdIN T9L
SJdl SJdIN

Sjualld upbjd uawvall = Jd1

SJU3I[D UDb|d JUAWIIDAIL-UON = IdIN
$1001U0) BUIUS34IS 4O 19DIUOD) 3IINIIS = IS
SIUANT $2INIAS AJUNWWO) = IS
:suonutfag A106331pH uonvzIIIN

924n0s JoAed 4aylo ou yum syuaned IS 8T 49Y10
SJO[9sunod Agq 92U0 uey3 aJow PanJas syuapisal Ajuno) usiedwey) anbiun €/ :DdL

Adesay) u1 98e3us 03 10U 3SOYD 40 JUBWISSISSE 919|dw oI 10U pIP oym siuapisal Ayuno) usiedweyd 29/ :Dd1N
sjuapisay Ajuno) usiedwey) Ag siojasunod yim syuswiuiodde 1day Z06T DS

%CS
$2§ 0008
SOS 8L1Y
$JS <061

sJS9/L¢c
sJS

%0
$350 ¢
$3SO 0
s3SJ 0

S350 0
$3SO

Japienb siy1 ul papuane alam s1UAAd 38D 0

:sjuswwo) Aduady

EINRUERIER
39b4p] [oNUUY
|elol

Jayuenp 2

J3enyD I
sali0891e) uoneziun

ejeq Ajenenp

Hoday Alandoy wesdold 70 9ZAd
(A13e1ydAsd) sa21AI9S YijeaH |eIuU|A -2Jeday)|eaH asiwold

114



(‘1003 Buiuaa.12s IYVdvHd 3yl buizian sjuawissassp juannpd fo Jaquinp) 12043u02 wpbodd [pnpialpul uj pauLfap so 4ayio

%111
49410 0ST
49410 9T

19410 €9

1910 10T
13410

%TLT
5Jd1 0S€
sJd1 009
sJdl 86T

SJdl ¢0ov
SJdlL

SIU3I[D UD|d JWUBWINALL = Dd1

Sjual[) ub|d Juawball-uoN = d.IN

$1903U0) BUIU33JIS JO 1ODIUOD) 3IINISS = IS

SIUANT $2IAIAS AJUNWWO) = IS
:suonurfaq A10b63ap) uonvzIIN

‘JYVdVYd Suisn pauaaJds asam syuaned JS €9 1I2YI0

'$10|3sun0d Aq 92U0 ueyl dJ0W PaAIIS spuaplsals Ajuno) udiedwey) anbiun 86T :DdL
‘Adesayy ul 93e3us 03 10U 3S0YD JO JUBWSSISSe 319|dwod 10U pIp oym syuapisal Ajuno) udiedweyd 109 :DdIN

'S1uapIsay Aluno) udiedwey) Aq s1oj9sunod yyum syuswiulodde 1day z0zT :0S

%EET
SJdLN 00CT
SOdIN €091

SJd.1N 709

SJdLIN 666
SJOdIN

%ETT
525 000€
SJS V6€EE
$JS ¢0¢t

SIS ¢61¢
SJS

%¢E8
5350 0€
$3SD S¢
S350 01

S350 ST
S350

J1914enb SIy1 ul papuane aJam suand 35D 0T

:Sjuawwo) Aduasdy

19|A 1Ud243d
19b4p] [DNUUY
|eyol

1ayienp 2

J31eNYD I
sa140823e) uonezijun

ejeq Ajenenp

}oday AlAndY weldodd Z0 9ZAd

SSaU|[9/\\ DHd-24edyyjeaH asiwoid

115



(asn ui Jou) 19043U02 Wpibo.ad [pnpialpul Ul pauLfap so 4ayio

SUal|D ub|d awWILall = Jdl1

SJuallD uo|d Juawilbail-uUoN = JddiIN

$1003U0) BUIU331IS JO 10DIUO) 3IINISS = IS

SIUANT S2INIAS ANUNWWO) = IS
:suonutfaqg A10631pH uonvZIIIN

‘panJas Sulaq ApeaJje a1am OyMm Sjuai|d JO UOLENUKUOD B 0} NP 7D Ul

S1UDI|D M3U JaM34 ‘S1udl|d Supjeads ysiueds 01 S9IIAISS PaSEaIIU] PUB S1BIOAPE JO JUSW|dWO) [N} B 01 NP ‘9ZA4 Ul USSLI OS|e aAey
S90IAJI3S AJBJOAPY ‘TD Ul |BOS [ENUUE PIASIYIE M - SJUDAT DDIAISS AJlUNWWIOD Ul 3SBaJoUl Pa1dadxaun ue Moys sainpadold pasinay

%99
SJd1 0TT
SOdl €4
sJdl 8

SJdl S9
SJdl

%09¢€
SJdLIN 0T
SJd1N 9€
SOdIN TT

SJd1N S¢
SJOd1N

%0¢9

$OS S
SOST¢€
sJS 61

SIS T
sJS

%00TT
$380 ¢
$3SD ¢¢
$3SJ S

SISO LT
$3SO

:sjuswwo) Aduady

EINRIERIER
39b4n] [DNUUY
|eiol

Jayuenp 2

J3enyD I
sali0891e) uoneziun

ejeq Ajenenp

}1oday AlAlRDY weldoldd Z0 9ZAd
S9JIAISS >Qm‘_w£._. ewneJd| _msxwm -S3OVHY

116



(asn uj Jou) 19043U02 Wpibo.d [pnpinlpul Ul pauLfap so 4ayi10
SIU3I[D UDb|d JUdWIIPAI] = Dd L

SJU3I[D UDb|d JUWIIDAIL-UON = IdIN

$1003U0) BUIUS34IS 4O 12DIUO) 3IINIIAS = IS

SIUANT $2INIAS ANUNWWO) = IS

:suonutfag A1063a1pH uonvzIIIN

‘(po1e011dnpun) suonejuasald asoyy ul Sunedipnled sjuapNIS JO JBGUNU Y3 S| DSS puUe SIsse|d 03 suoneuasald 3d Jo Jaqunu s| 35D
'$911089182 49410 10 DdLIN “DdL 9y} 4104 SIUSID PJSPISUOD J0U Je pue sue|d Juswieal) aney jou op syuedpnied uoredonpl UOLUSAIY

:Sjuawwo) Aduasdy

%6¢€ %LE 19|\ JU3dJad
sJS 000% 5350 009 19b4p] [pnuUUY
SJS ¢SST S350 ¢t [e10]
SJS 68€T S350 8T¢ J91enp ,,¢

SJS €91 SISO v J91enp T
sJS s35) sali08a1e) uoneziun

ejeq Ajenenp

Hoday AJIAnoy weasold 70 9ZAd
uopeinp3y uonuaAald aJUl|OIA |eNXaS -S9IJVY

117



:suonutfag A106310) uonvzIIIN

"€D Ul u13aq ||IM SIY] 218 dVYNS/|edIpaw ‘|asS/ISS se yoans
yum sjuaid 3unsisse si Ayiey syyauaq jo sadAy Jo umopyealq ayl uo no Sundodad ui3aq ||IM am ‘Peirs gGHINDD Ag pa1sanbal SV, .«

"9IIAJDS SIY} 40} d|ge|IBAR S22UN0S Sulpuny JBY10 OU Aj3UaJind aJe aJay |

'S3Y2uaq SS22e Way} d|ay 03 SIU3I|D JO J|eyaq uo SUOLEIIUNWWOI JOYI0 PUB ‘USPIIM SI913| ‘paniwgns suonedldde ‘sjjed
auoyd ‘suoissas uosiad-ul se yons (DS) S30eju0d /T papirosd ays 'siuapisal Ajuno) udiedweyd mau Ty PaAISS ays Uanenb siyy uj

‘'swes3oud o1jgnd Jay3io pue ‘@aueisisse Adewdeyd ‘(1gss) @aueansu| Ayjigesiq
A11un29g [e120s ‘(1SS) dwodu| A11uNdas |e120S ‘@4ed1palA ‘pieDd yull/dvYNS/suoneziuediQ aJe) padeue|p/pledIpalA Se Yyons siyauaq
yum sweadoud sioul||| |B43UDD SDULIIISOY SSOJoe wod4 syudld Ajuno) udiedwey) syuil ‘Asjuid Ayiey 4a8eueln ase) siyauag ayl

%19
SJdLN 0S¢
SJOdIN PST

SJOdIN Tt

SOdIN €TT
SJOdIN

%81
525 009
SJS 06¢
$JS LiT

SOS €91
SJS

:Sjuawwo) Aduasdy

19N 1Ud243d
19b4n] [pNUUY
|eyol

13yienp 2

J31eNYD I
sa140823e) uonezijun

ejeq Ajenenp

Hoday AlAndY wetdold 20 9ZAd
pcwEwmmcm_\/_ 95e)) SlyauUag -90UkeIIaSOY

118



(asn ui Jou) 1o043U02 Wpibo.d [pnpialpul Ul pauLfap so 4ayi1o
SJU3I[D UDb|d JUdWIIPAI] = Dd L

SJU3I[D UDb|d JUAWIIDAIL-UON = IdIN

$1001U0) BUIUS34IS 4O 12DIUOD) 3IINIIS = IS

SIUANT $2INIAS AJUNWWO) = IS

119



‘uonisod siy3 Suizinioud sI Weaj JUsWNIIBL JNO "Wl SIY3 1. JuedeA sulewad uonisod | YD S J144ays Ayuno) usiedwey)
91 "JUAS SISII-1s0d paydeal g 0} 3|geUN 2J9M OYM JO SIIIAIDS PAUI[IBP OYM S|ENPIAIPUI JO JUNnowe 3gie| pasualadxa uonisod
[noluey ay] 'S} NsaJ Jusawssasse AJua uo paseq Suliojiuow pue uoneulpiood ‘Suiuueld aJed WJa3-1Joys Ul Paj|0Jud S|ENPIAIPU] 1€ :DdL

‘Alessadau s Juawiealy

Joj ue|d ou pue YD) WOI} UoKIE J3YLINS INOYHM PIAJOSDI 9 UBD SISIII 1By} S91BJIpUl SUIUS3UIS |BLIUI SOYM S[ENPIAIPU] 0 :DdLN

*10B1U0D dIjod paje|a.

213SAWOP JO (1[D) WE] UOLUBAIIU] SISLID pey dABY OYM Saljiwey) pue sjenpialpul a8eSua pue 10e3u0d 01 sydwane Jo Jaquinu (€ :JS

‘do) e yum doys g ‘SulnlD Jo Aeq yueg poo4 |3 T ‘Sunlasw SiaplAoid |nojuey
T ‘DY43S ¢ ‘HOV3Y ¢ :8uimoj||of ay3 papn|aul Janienb siy| ‘sSunsaw uoneulpiood Jo/pue ‘siie) 921nosal ‘suonjejuasald Jeis 6 135D

%6C'V
$Jd1 0/
SJdl €
SJdl €

SJd1L 0
SJdlL

%P
$J§ 08¢
SJS 09
SJS €¢

SOS L€
SJS

%8¢
5350 0§
S3SO 61

s3SJ 6

S3SO 01
S350

:Sjuawwo) Aduasdy

19N 1Ud243d
19b4p] [DNUUY
|eyol

13yenp 2

J31eNYD I
sa140823e) uonezijun

ejeq Ajenenp

Hoday AlAndY wetdold 20 9ZAd
41D UOISJIoAI(Q § Wea]| wmcoamwm_-ou SIS1JD -°9J3UBJI3S0Y

120



(‘ddpb uonn.aisibai

Y3 UO papJ023aJ SO 193U 324N0SAY UOISIAAIJ SISIID Y 03 SI0SIA Jo 4aquinpn) 19043U02 wpaboud [pnpialpul ul pauLfap so 4aYyi0
SJU3I[D UDb|d JUaWIIPAI] = Dd L

SJU3I[D UDb|d JUAWIIDAIL-UON = DdIN

$1001U0) BUIUS34IS 4O 12DIUOD) 3IINIIAS = IS

SIUANT $2IAIAS ANUNWWO) = IS

:suonurfaq A10b6ap) uonvzIN

‘dde uoneJisi8as 3yl U0 PAPI0II SB J2IUDD 324N0SAY UOISIDAIQ SISLID Y3 03 SI0USIA JO JAqWINN :0 :43Y10

121



€0 404 S1y3 uo Supodau

u18aq |im apn “weuSoud siy3 Joy saSexul] pue s|eda4a4 3IeJ) 03 pPaIeasd uaaq sey 13ays Suydesy e ‘Yeis gHINDD Ag paisanbal Sy, .«

‘Ajuno) uSiedwey) wodj aJam yoiym Jo ST ‘syuedljdde Jo) SMIIAIDIUI 62 JO |B10) e pala|dwod am Uapienb siyy surng (DS)

(4934enb siy3 Ayuno) uSiedwey) wod) dJ9M SUOISSIWPE MU ||Y) "Uoissiwpe uodn ssaippe Juauewad J19y3 paJapIsuod
S| 9WOH A1anod9y ay] awoH Aianoday ay3 Suliaius oy Jolud syuapisal Ajuno) usiedwey) a4am oym suosiad s3o9|ja4 1oday
G :u9uenb siyy wesdoud ul Sunedpnaed syuald Ayuno) ugdiedwey) man €10l (Ddl)

"sauN}I0ddo }40M/1993UN|OA/3I0M DIIAISS JO UOISIA0Id pue

‘(ssmiAnoe jeuoneasdal ‘ssunlesw YN/VYY ‘Yaanyd "a°1) saniAnde pue suoddns Ajlunwwod Jo J9ad 3ulssadde ‘Sunadpng/iuswaseuew
Asuow uo uonednpa ‘AjunwWWOod 3y} Ul SAIAIBS Alej|ioue Jaylo pue ‘|eyuap ‘Sulj@sunod DuieiydAsd ‘|eaipaw 01 Squal|d

Supjui| duelsisse ‘swesdoud [euOEINPI/|BUOLIEIOA 0] SS322. [S||13S uonuanaud asdejau pue 3ulAl| Ajiep Joj saniande Joddns ‘Yijesy
JO SlueUIWJIDP |BID0S SSaUppe 01 sue|d 9JIAIDS PAzI|ENPIAIPUI UO paseq Juawadeuew 3sed dAISUdLUI 3pinoid Jels awoH AJan0day

%S
SJdLIN ¢c
SOdlL ¢T
sJdl S

SOdl L
SJdlL

%19
$JS 59
SOS O
sJS ST

SJS S¢
sJS

:Sjuawwo) Aduasdy

19|A 1Ud243d
19b4n] [DNUUY
|eyol

13yienp 2

J3enyD I
sa140893e) uonezijun

ejeq Ajenenp

110day AlAnoy welddodd 70 9ZAd QWOH A1aA029Y-90UBID3S0Y

122



(asn ui Jou) 1o043U02 Wpibo.d [pnpinlpul Ul pauLfap so 4ayio
SJU3I[D UDb|d JUWIIPAI] = Dd L

SJU3I[D UDb|d JUAWIIDAIL-UON = IdIN

$1001U0) BUIUS34IS 4O 12DIUOD) 3IINIIS = IS

SIUANT $2IAIAS AJUNWWO) = IS

:suonurfaq A10b63a1p) uonvzIIN

123



'140ddns |eluaiew paliwi| AjpwallIxa yum siaquiaw Ajjunwiwod Joy Ajjedueuy yoead Jo 1n0 ujewad Jo ‘piedipalA 1dadoe jou

op ‘Ayoeded je usayo ale Asyy ‘Aj|ed0] 1SIXD S901AISS ulwayje usym uaAa]j "ded 3d1A19s Suluspim e 03 julod sisanbad asay3 Jo Alsuaiul
pue awWn|oA 3Y3 Ing ‘9]q1Ssod J9A3UIYM SUOLIDBUUOI paseg-Alunwwod pue ‘9auelsisse Sulylo|d pue pooy ‘sjellasal ‘Adedonpe
apinosd apn ‘saiels ajusoy 3ulaaly 9jdoad Joj Joddns pue ‘aied yijjeay 3ulwayje-1apuad 01 ssadde ‘uonesineu |eaipaw ‘Joddns
3uisnoy pue |ejuau ‘@auelsisse |e3a] ‘S9IAISS Yl|eay |edolAeyaq pue |eyusw 3aJip Suipnjoul ‘Ajpeded pue 9dods 3Ua44Nnd JNO puoAaq
$9083 1ey3 1oddns Joj upyse aJse siaquuiaw Ajlunwwod ‘Ajduiseasou| *xa|dwod a1ow 3ulwod3q os|e aJe sn 0} uliq 3jdoad spasu ayL

%871
SOdLIN 00T
SJOdIN 99T

SJd.1N 9t

SOdIN 61T
SJOd1N

%16
52§ 00€
SOS €L¢
SIS 091

SOSETT
sJS

*3|doad +D1g97 410} shosa3uep
9JOW pue }NdYIP 2J0W SWO0I3( Seale SulpunoJJns uj suonipuod se ‘Ajisualul Ajay|1| pue ‘anuruod 03 S1y3 199dxa 9\ "91e1s pue Ajunod
Suiwuyye aiow 4no 01 3unedo|ad o ssadoad syl ul Apeadje Jo ‘onow e Sujuue|d AjpAnoe ‘Suneso|al SulSpPISUOD dJe OYM S|enpIAIpUl
woJj usayo aJow 3ulieay osje aje am pue ‘Ajuno) udiedwey) Inoy3noayl wodj Ino ulyoeal ale 9)doad "uoI3aJ Y3 SSOIJE 1e|eIsd
Ayjusoy |eroos pue ‘uone|si3a) O14019Y4 +D1997-1ue se Joddns 4oy s3sanbad Jo Jaquinu SuIMoJ3 e 9AI9I3J 0} SSNULUOD 3plid Suniun

%071
5350 00T
SENON0 A

S3SJ sL

53S0 §9
$3SO

:sjuswwo) Aduady

EINRIERIER
39b4n] [pNUUY
|elol

Jayuenp 2

J3enyD I
sali0891e) uoneziun

ejeq Ajenenp

Hoday AlAndY weldold 20 9ZAd
wela304d saljlwed 1 Yinoa ‘uaip|iyd -aplid suniun

124



(asn ui j0u) 30043U02 Wpibo.d [pnpialpul ul pauLfap so 43Yi0
SU3I[D Ub|d JUaWIIDAI] = Dd 1

SU3I[D UD|d JUAWIID3I[-UON = DdIN

$1003U0) BUIUI3JIS 40 1IDIUOCD) AIINIIS = IS

SIUaAF $32INI3S AUnwWwo) = 35

:suonutfaqg A106310)H uonvZIIIN

‘94ed Sutwiye pue ‘Ayljigels ‘Alajes ssadoe ued saljiwey

pue sjenpiAipul 401997 0s Ajjeuorjualul 3uiMmoJa3d 0} pPaRIWIWOI SI Ipldd Suniun ‘Ajpeded Juoddns 30a41p pue ‘uonesiAeu ‘uoleu|piood
95ed p|ing ued am os 3uipuny pauleisns pue ‘sdiysiaulied pauayiduaJls ‘Suyjels papuedxa asinbad ||Im spasu 9say3 3ulSsaIppy

‘'Spud pol4ad jey3 9dUOo uiny 0} JaYMou aAey sioddns Jaylo InoyHm sjuaid Auew pue ‘pajyiwi-awn st 3l ‘poddns 4939ys Adussiaws
Asesodway pajiwi| 404 smojje diysumo] weyguiuun) yum diysisaupied Jno 9|y 493 9ys Suy99S uswom suedl 4oy and) Ajjedadsa

SI SIY} pue ‘saoeds paJapuasd Ajy3iy ul swodamun 1o ajesun [994 Asyi jeys aleys Ajpuanbauy susquisw Ajlunwwod ‘Ayuno) udiedwey)
Ul 3SIXD S49}|9YsS J314Je(-0U JO MO| 3[IYAA "UOI33J JnO U] suolrdo 433}9YS SAISN|IUI-SUB] ‘PaJIIUBI-+D1gDT ‘Sulwayje Jo dduasqe ay3

S| 3noge Jeay am sded Juadin 3sow Y3 JO AUQ ‘LIS 1e IpIAoLd 0} Pa24n0saJ 19A J0u aie 9am eyl Joddns au0-03-auo ‘pazijenpiAlpul
pasu siaquaw Ajjunwwod Auew jey) Juasedde awod3q sey 3l ‘SUIMO|S JO SUSIS JBD[D OU YHM dSEJoU| 0} SSNULIUOD YIeaJlno Sy

125



(asn uj Jou) 19043U02 Wpibo.ad [pnpinlpul Ul pauLfap so 4ayio
SWU3ID UDb|d JUWIILAI] = Id1

SW3IID UD|d JU3WIDAIL-UON = IdIN

$1003U0) bUIU334IS 4O 19DIUOD 3IINIIS = IS

SJUANT $32INIAS AjUNWWO) = 35D

:suonutfaqg A106310H uonvZIIIN

‘6 98e Aoq Jayjoue pue ‘g 33e Aoq e ‘€T pue g sa3e s191s1s om) 3uipnjoul ‘syuedpiaed

weJ3oid pa||0Jud MU { aAeY am ‘Ajleuoippy ‘WwlsAsS uoleanpa 3yl Ul s19p|oyaxels AJunwwod Jaylo pue ‘syusapnis ‘syualed yum
P330eJ3IUI J4BIS JNO UIRIaYM U314enb siyl suoissas Suluue|d 21891e41S OM] 104 3Jedap|1yd apinosd 03 9TT ASN YHM palesoge||od DINN

:sjuswwo) Aduady

%0¢T %00¢ %00T 19|\l JU3d.3d
SJOd1LN 09 OS¢ $3S0 01T 13b4p| [pnuuy
SOdIN ¢L SOS v SISO 0T [e10]

SOdIN Vv SIS ¢ $3S0 ¢ J91enp ,,¢
SJdLN 89 SIS ¢ s3S0 8 491enp T
SOdLIN sJS s35) sa140891e) uonezijun

ejeq Ajenenp

Hoday ANARdY weldold 7D 9ZAd
dAlenIu| SS3DIV-491ud) Apnis Ajunwwo) -DJNN

126



{uol|ined @A11oe) JUBWIEaU] JUsnedul) 8210y MaN -TZ/ZT
uoweo) Ayunwwo) - /2T

3unsaw pJieoq |4 HdSD -¢/¢T

(uotljjined @A|1oe) JUBWILBI] JUBedu|} 9210Yy) MON-SZ/ TT
A1j1oe) JUBSWIIEB] JUBeduUl 9dURID9SOY -TZ/ TT

Jwwng AJjug-ay |euondallo) aniedaq -0z/ 11

Jwuwng Aijug-ay |euondasio) uesol -6T/ 1T

uonijeod Ayunwwo) -1/ 1T

(uollined @Aal1oe) Juswieauy Juanedul} adloyd meN -6Z/0T
J91U3d) 324N0SaY 93Ual|Isay NIM @ 1eaJ] JO Juni]-87/0T
apeJed apld -G2/0T

uonenpess 1Nno) 3nig -0z/0T

:sjuswwo) Aduady

%¢CS %8¢ %6¢ %0¢T 19|\ JU9249d
SJdl1 s¢ SOdIN 0§ SOS S/ $3S0 ST 19b.ip] [pnuuy
SJOdL €T SOd1IN 1T sJOS ¢¢ $3SD 8T |e101

SJdl € SJOdIN ¢ SJS ST $3SJ 6 J91enp ,,¢
SOd1 0T SOdIN CT SOS L S3SO 6 Jouenp T
sJdL SOdLN $JS 515D sai08a1e) uoneziiun

ejeq Ajenenp

Hoday AlAndY wetdold 20 9ZAd
S9SNOH AJlu3z-3y 1oddng AJlunwiwo) -A1ano23y NIM

127



(asn ui Jou) 19043U02 Wpibo.ad [pnpialpul Ul pauLfap so 4ayi0
SJU3I[D UDb|d JUWIIPAI] = Dd L

SJU3I[D UDb|d JUAWIIDAIL-UON = IdIN

$1001U0) BUIUS34IS 4O 12DIUOD) 3IINIIS = IS

SIUANT $2IAIAS AJUNWWO) = IS

:suonurfaq A10b63a1p) uonvzIIN

128



X (19)sewas/xg-g uosiad ul ‘WyLL “UOW }SL) qB||0D Y}|edH [epud| JUsSpMS
X (wdog:g “pam puz) uonijeod Aunwuiod
X (snolLiea) sea) o) odxy
("wrd g¢:g ‘Aepuo|y pug) A1aA029Yy NIM
19jud9 suoljoauuo0) pooysoqybiaN eueq.in
(wd 0g:9 “pam pug) apld Buniun
(wd gg:§ ‘san] )se|) 9oueI29S0Y
(wd 9 “sany] pig) S3OVY
X (wd 9 “san] yip) aieoyjjea asiwoid
N9 S921A19S Jueibiww|
(wd 2 “uo 3sej) 7] ur MOYDO
dvJOo
(wd g “114 pag Ajjesauab) siamojjo4 )sai4
(uoou ‘““uop pug) 991A18S Ajlwe
(wd p “san] pug) 139 99bnjoy/OVINYIOT
(wd pg:g “sinyL yiy) osa
(we 2 “san] pug) 19ho uoQq
(Byw 911 nun) Ae3 nD
(we g “pap Yipy) swoH je NY
(wd o¢:6 “paM pug) A1asinpN sisu)
(wd gg:9 “sinyl pig) 139 991A18S Ajlunwwo)
(‘wre g1 “jeg ise|) J8juag yjeaH uensuyo
("wrd 9 ““suny] yiy)siswnsuo aied yjeaH 29
(we g “siny] yyy) 139 Aded0ApY S,uUaIp|iyd
(Aj13b sy}99w) sawoH s,uaipjiyd weybuiuund
(seo1n198 Ajlunwiwo) pue Jels peaH) 9dy9d9d
(wdpg:g ““UoiN Yiy) uonosauuos) abeinosn
NI YR/ IR
/S &L S S e
&SN NS
3 ¥ SRV > &F/ K
© ®0v 9% ) Q \ <

uosiel pleog 03 pleog 9¢0¢ 9HINOD

129



	1 MHB agenda 2-18-26
	Champaign County Mental Health Board (CCMHB) Meeting Agenda

	2 DDB 2026 Mtg schedule
	2 MHB 2026 Mtg Schedule
	4 MHB PY27 Important Dates
	Blank Page

	5 MHB Glossary
	Agency and Program Acronyms
	Other Terms and Acronyms

	6 MHBminutes 012126
	______________________________________________________________________________
	CHAMPAIGN COUNTY
	MENTAL HEALTH BOARD
	REGULAR MEETING
	CALL TO ORDER:
	ROLL CALL:
	Roll call was taken, and a quorum was present.
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA:
	CITIZEN INPUT / PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:
	None.
	Blank Page

	7 MHBminutesstudysession012826
	______________________________________________________________________________
	CHAMPAIGN COUNTY
	MENTAL HEALTH BOARD
	STUDY SESSION
	CALL TO ORDER:
	ROLL CALL:
	Roll call was taken.  A quorum was not present.
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA:
	CITIZEN INPUT / PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:
	None.

	8 Vendor Invoice List JAN 2026 IDDSI
	IDDSI

	9 Vendor Invoice List JAN 2026 MHB
	MHB

	10 DMemo Agency Exception
	Purpose:
	Background on Requirements:
	Previous Requests and Board Actions:
	Agency Update:
	Possible Actions:

	11 Request for BOARD Approval of Exception FINAL
	15 MHB BMemo PY27 Review Process
	Purpose:
	This memorandum offers a summary of activities related to the review of requests for funding for Program Year 2027 (PY27). The focus is on those tasks the CCMHB staff team will complete, with timelines for each, to support the Board’s discussions and ...
	Background:
	From the Allocation Process Timeline:
	Expectations and Considerations:

	15 MHB PY27 Requests
	PY26 Requests and PY25 Comp

	15 MHB PY27 Review Checklist
	Minimal responsiveness (staff confirm first):        Y/N   concerns/comments
	MHB Priority Categories:        check appropriate
	Best Value Considerations:         Y/N     concerns/comments

	16 Staff Report KIM
	17 Staff Report LEON
	18 Staff Report STEPHANIEFEB26
	SUMMARY OF ACTIVITY:
	2nd Quarter Reporting 2026:
	Audits:
	Trainings:
	Community Awareness/Anti-Stigma Efforts/Alliance for Inclusion and Respect (AIR):
	Other:

	Blank Page

	30 Utilization and Outcome Summaries for PY25 MHB
	Glossary and Notes
	Priority:
	Collaboration with Champaign County Developmental Disabilities Board (CCDDB), Very Young Children and their Families
	Champaign County Regional Planning Commission Head Start/Early Head Start
	Early Childhood Mental Health Services $216,800 (for I/DD Services)
	CU Early
	CU Early - $16,145 (for I/DD Services)
	DSC
	Family Development $656,174

	Priority:
	Thriving Children, Youth, and Families
	Champaign County RPC Head Start/Early Head Start
	Early Childhood Mental Health Services $171,663 (for MH Services)
	CU Early
	CU Early - $64,578 (for MH Services)
	Crisis Nursery
	Beyond Blue – Champaign County $90,000
	Cunningham Children’s Home
	Families Stronger Together $282,139
	Don Moyer Boys & Girls Club
	CU Change $85,575
	Don Moyer Boys & Girls Club
	Community Coalition Summer Initiatives $100,000
	East Central IL Refugee Mutual Assistance Center
	Family Support and Strengthening $62,000
	Rosecrance Central Illinois
	Child & Family Services $10,476 (2 Quarters of data; contract cancelled early)
	Uniting Pride of Champaign County
	Children, Youth & Families Program $190,056

	Priority:
	Safety and Crisis Stabilization
	CU at Home
	Shelter Case Management $256,700
	Champaign County Health Care Consumers
	Justice Involved CHW Services & Benefits $90,147
	Champaign County Regional Planning Commission – Community Services
	Youth Assessment Center (YAC) $76,350
	FirstFollowers
	FirstSteps Community Reentry House $69,500
	First Followers
	Peer Mentoring for Re-entry $95,000
	Rosecrance Central Illinois
	Criminal Justice PSC $336,000
	Rosecrance Central Illinois
	Crisis Co-Response (CCRT) $310,000
	Rosecrance Central Illinois
	Specialty Courts $93,450 (2 Quarters of data; contract cancelled early)
	Women in Need (WIN) Recovery
	Re-Entry & Recovery Home $183,000

	Priority:
	Healing from Interpersonal Violence
	Champaign County Children’s Advocacy Center (CAC)
	Children’s Advocacy $63,911
	Courage Connection
	Courage Connection $128,038
	Rape Advocacy, Counseling & Education Services
	Sexual Trauma Therapy Services $140,000
	Rape Advocacy, Counseling & Education Services
	Sexual Violence Prevention Education $75,000

	Priority:
	Closing the Gaps in Access and Care
	Champaign County Christian Health Center
	Mental Health Care at CCCHC $33,000
	Champaign County Health Care Consumers
	CHW Outreach & Benefit Enrollment $86,501
	Champaign County Health Care Consumers
	Disability Application Services $105,000
	Champaign County Regional Planning Commission – Community Services
	Homeless Services System Coordination $54,281
	Community Service Center of Northern Champaign County
	Resource Connection $68,609
	Cunningham Children’s Home
	ECHO Housing and Employment Support $203,710
	Family Service of Champaign County
	Counseling $30,000
	Family Service of Champaign County
	Self-Help Center $28,930
	Family Service of Champaign County
	Senior Counseling & Advocacy $178,386
	GCAP
	Advocacy, Care, and Education (New) $61,566
	GROW in Illinois
	Peer Support $157,690
	Promise Healthcare
	Mental Health Services with Promise $330,000
	Promise Healthcare
	Promise Healthcare Wellness $107,078
	Rosecrance Central Illinois
	Benefits Case Management $84,625
	Rosecrance Central Illinois
	Recovery Home $100,000
	Terrapin Station Sober Living, Inc.
	Recovery Home $44,436 (Contract cancelled after 2nd Quarter)

	Blank Page

	31 PY26 Q2 Service Reports NEW
	CCCAC – Champaign County Children’s Advocacy Center
	PY26 Q2 Program Activity Report
	CCRPC – Head Start-Early Head Start – Early Childhood Mental Health Svs
	PY26 Q2 Program Activity Report
	Champaign County Christian Health Center- Mental Health Program
	PY26 Q2 Program Activity Report
	Champaign County Health Care Consumers CHW Outreach & Benefit
	PY26 Q2 Program Activity Report
	Champaign County Health Care Consumers-Disability Application Svcs
	PY26 Q2 Program Activity Report
	Champaign County Health Care Consumers-Justice Involved CHW
	PY26 Q2 Program Activity Report
	Community Service Center of Northern Champaign County-Resource Connection PY26 Q2 Program Activity Report
	Our CSE this quarter was our participation in the Rantoul Recreation Department's Halloween Event, where we passed out agency information flyers and answered questions to over 800 people in attendance. Our Service Contacts are up 15% from the first qu...

	Courage Connection-Courage Connection
	PY26 Q2 Program Activity Report
	Crisis Nursery Beyond Blue Champaign County
	PY26 Q2 Program Activity Report
	Cunningham Children’s Home– ECHO Housing and Employment Support
	PY26 Q2 Program Activity Report
	Cunningham Children’s Home– Families Stronger Together
	PY26 Q2 Program Activity Report
	DSC– Family Development PY26 Q2 Program Activity Report
	Don Moyer & Boys & Girls Club– CU Change
	PY26 Q2 Program Activity Report
	Don Moyer & Boys & Girls Club– Community Coalition Summer Initiatives
	PY26 Q2 Program Activity Report
	ECIRMAC- Family Support & Strengthening
	PY26 Q2 Program Activity Report
	Family Service-Counseling PY26 Q2 Program Activity Report
	Family Service-Self-Help Center
	PY26 Q2 Program Activity Report
	Family Service -Senior Counseling & Advocacy
	PY26 Q2 Program Activity Report
	First Followers-First Steps Community Reentry House
	PY26 Q2 Program Activity Report
	First Followers-Peer Mentoring for Re-Entry
	PY26 Q2 Program Activity Report
	GROW-Peer Support PY26 Q2 Program Activity Report
	GCAP- Advocacy, Care, and Education Services
	PY26 Q2 Program Activity Report
	Immigrant Services- Immigrant Mental Health Program
	PY26 Q2 Program Activity Report
	Promise Healthcare- Mental Health Services (Counseling)
	PY26 Q2 Program Activity Report
	Promise Healthcare- Mental Health Services (Psychiatry)
	PY26 Q2 Program Activity Report
	Promise Healthcare-PHC Wellness
	PY26 Q2 Program Activity Report
	RACES- Sexual Trauma Therapy Services
	PY26 Q2 Program Activity Report
	RACES- Sexual Violence Prevention Education
	PY26 Q2 Program Activity Report
	Rosecrance- Benefits Case Management
	PY26 Q2 Program Activity Report
	Rosecrance- Crisis Co-Response Team & Diversion Ctr
	PY26 Q2 Program Activity Report
	Rosecrance-Recovery Home PY26 Q2 Program Activity Report
	Uniting Pride- Children, Youth & Families Program
	PY26 Q2 Program Activity Report
	UNCC- Community Study Center-ACCESS Initiative
	PY26 Q2 Program Activity Report
	WIN Recovery- Community Support Re-Entry Houses
	PY26 Q2 Program Activity Report

	32 MHB liaisonchoices
	Sheet1




